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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Your Board of Directors hereby submits the report of the business and operations of your Company (‘the
Company’ or ‘DEE Development Engineers Limited’), along with the Audited Stand-alone & Consolidated
Financial Statements, for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is enclosed as

Annexure-l.
WEBLINK OF THE COMPANY

The Weblink of the Company is https://www.deepiping.com

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

During the year, the Board of your Company comprises of Five Directors — viz. Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal

(Chairman & Managing Director), Mrs. Ashima Bansal (Whole-time Director), Mrs. Shikha Bansal, (Whole-time

Director), Mr. Satish Kumar (Independent Director), Mr. Ajay Kumar Marchanda (Independent Director).

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

During FY 2022-23, the Board of Directors met Four times on 25/07/2022, 24/09/2022, 17/01/2023 and
10/03/2023 in compliance to Section 173 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard -1 issued by

DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTORS

Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal, Chairman & Managing Director, Mrs. Ashima Bansal, Whole-time Director and Mrs.

ICSI.

Shikha Bansal, Whole-time Director are related to each other and three of them are Shareholders of the

Company and holds 74.74%, 8.29% and 2.77% respectively.



https://www.deepiping.com/

Mr. Ajay Kumar Marchanda and Mr. Satish Kumar, Independent Directors have resigned from the Board. They

had no pecuniary relationship with the Company except their sitting fees.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors do herebyconfirm that:

i) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended 315t March, 2023, the applicable Accounting

Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

Company as at 315t March, 2023 and of profit & loss of the Company for that period;

iii) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and

for preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities;

iv) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

v) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of allapplicable laws and that such

systems were adequate and operating effectively.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder mandates that the Independent
Directors of the Company shall hold at least one meeting in a year, without the attendance of Non-

independent Directors and members of Management.

The Board mandated annual meeting was attended exclusively by the Independent Directors. At such meeting,
the Independent Director discuss, among other matters, the performance of the Companyand risk faced by it, the
flow of information to the Board, competition, strategy, leadership and strengths and weaknesses, governance,
compliance, Board movements, human resource matters and performance of the members of the Board,

including the Chairman.

The Independent Directors have submitted the declaration of independence, as required pursuant to section
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in sub

section (6).




BOARD COMMITTEES

The members of the Committees are co-opted by the Board. The Board constitutes the committees addefines

their terms of reference. The Board at present has five committees as under:

Executive Committee
Currently, the Executive Committee of Board of Director comprises of two members Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal,

Chairman of the Committee and Mrs. Ashima Bansal as member of the Committee. The Committee met
Fourteen (14) times during the financial year 2022-23, on 30 April, 2022, 12" May, 2022, 08" June, 2022, 28"
June, 2022, 11 July, 2022, 07" August, 2022, 03" October, 2022, 03" November, 2022, 18" November, 2022,
03" December, 2022, 26" December, 2022, 16" January, 2023, 25" January, 2023 and 31 January, 2023.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was comprised of four members, viz. Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal as Chairman of the

Committee and Mr. Ajay Kumar Marchanda and Mr. Satish Kumar are the members of the committee. The
committee met four times during FY 2022-23 on 25™ July, 2022, 24t September, 2022, 17*" January, 2023 and
10™ March, 2023.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee acted in accordance with the terms of referencespecified by

the Board and all recommendations of the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.

The constitution of the committee meets the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act,2013.

The internal auditor presents to the committee, observations and recommendations arising out of internal
audits and also on issues having an impact on the control system and compliance. The Chief Financial Officer
and Internal Auditor are permanent invitees and attend meetings of the committee. The Company Secretary

acts as the secretary to the committee.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
The committee comprised of three members Mr. Ajay Kumar Marchanda, Chairman of the Committee, Mr.

Satish Kumar, Independent Director and Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal, Chairman of the Company are the members
of the committee. The NRC met twice a year in 2022-23, on 24" September, 2023 and 10" March, 2023.

Detailed NRC policy in “Annexure I1”.




The broad terms of reference of the committee are:

Evaluate the performance including extension of contract of Executive Directors (EDs). The NRC would set the
performance measures of EDs and evaluate their performance annually;

Recommend the remuneration for the EDs based on evaluation;
Evaluate the need for EDs and recommend their appointment;
Recommend to the Board the policy relating to the remuneration of Directors and KeyManagement

Personnel;

Lay down criteria for selecting new Non-Executive Directors (NEDs) based on therequirements of the
organization;

Carry out evaluation of the performance of the NEDs and defining the system for linkingremuneration of
NEDs with performance;

Review succession plan for those NED positions that are likely to be vacant during theyear;

Recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of directors.

CSR Commiittee

The Corporate Social Responsibility committee comprised of three members, viz. Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal,
Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Ajay Kumar Marchanda and Mrs. Ashima Bansal, were the members of the
Committee. The committee met once during FY 2022-23 on 10™ March, 2023. The required disclosures on CSR

activities are enclosed as Annexure-lll

The broad terms of reference of this committee are:
Formulate and recommend to the Board a CSR policy which shall indicate the activities tobe undertaken by the

Company as specified under Schedule VII;

Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities;
Monitor the CSR policy of the company from time to time;
Any other matter that may be referred by the Board from time to time or as may be necessary for compliance

with the Companies Act, 2013 or rules made thereunder or anyother statutory laws of India.
Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities;

Monitor the CSR policy of the company from time to time;
Any other matter that may be referred by the Board from time to time or as may be necessary for compliance

with the Companies Act, 2013 or rules made thereunder or any other statutory laws of India.

Independent Directors Committee
The Independent Director’'s Committee presently comprised of two members, viz. Mr. Ajay Kumar Marchanda,

as Chairman of the Committee and Mr. Satish Kumar, is the members of the Committee. The Committee
meeting was held once on FY 2022-23 in compliance with the Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the

Rules thereunder. The Independent Director met once in a Calendar year on 09/03/2023.




PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES & INVESTMENT

Details of Loan/ Guarantee, as per the provisions of Proviso (b) to section 185 (1) of the Act, 2013, given

during the financial year under review are as follows:

The Company has provided Corporate Guarantee of INR 12,53,00,000/- to Malwa Power Private Limited
(MPPL) towards availing Bank facilities from Bank of India from SME Branch, Faridabad.

Loan provided to Malwa Power Private Limited during the year amounting to INR 3,21,00,000 at interest rate
of 10.00% p.a. Total interest income earned during the year is INR 5,64,000. Loan outstanding at the end of
31/03/2023 is INR 71,00,000.

Loan provided to DEE Piping Systems (Thailand) Co., Limited during the year of INR 6,19,06,000/- at interest
rate 7.00% p.a. Total interest income earned during the year is INR 5,00,23,000/-. Loan outstanding at the end
of 31/03/2023 is INR 71,40,98,996/-.

The Company has provided Corporate Guarantee of INR 82,21,69,000/- to DEE Piping Systems (Thailand) Co.,
Ltd. (WQOS).

Loan provided to DEE Fabricom India Private Limited during the year of INR 97,03,720/- at rate of interest of
10.00% p.a. The WOS has made no repayment. Total loan outstanding was INR 12,60,00,000.

Details of Investment made during the financial year are as follows:

Nil investment made by the Company during the year under review.




QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS

There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark made by M/s S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP (FRN:
301003E/E300005), Statutory Auditor, in their report for the financialyear ended March 31, 2023. Pursuant to

provisions of section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors have

not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit Committee during the year under review.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis andwere in the

ordinary course of business.

Approval of the Audit Committee was obtained on a regular basis for the transactions which are of a foreseen
and repetitive nature. The transactions and a statement giving details of all related party transactions were

placed before the Audit Committee for their approval on a quarterly.

The details of Related Party Transactions in the prescribed form AOC-2 is enclosed as “Annexure-IV”.




FINANCIAL PARAMETERS
a) Financial Performance

The financial performance of the Company is as under:

Amount (in INR Lakhs)

Consolidated Financial Standalone Financial
Particulars Statements Statements
FY 2022- FY 2021- FY 2022- FY 2021-
23 22 23 22

Revenucliill 59,549.52 46,091.58 50,269.61 37,032.68
operations
Other Income 1,882.45 992.34 2,280.05 1,768.15
Total Income 61,431.97 47,083.92 52,549.66 38,800.83
Finance Cost 2,990.22 2,533.62 2,433.87 1,899.72
D 3,772.72 3,589.93 2,422.25 2,215.21
amortization expense
e 11,094.68 7,929.82 8,165.99 5,755.34
Expenses
O 22609.99 19489.73 21,503.46 17,902.69
Consumed
E:‘;;:ase < 288.98 113.52 288.98 113.52
Change in Inventory of
Finished Goods, WIP (3,876.74) (2,420.99) (3,231.18) (1853.4)
and Stock in Trade
Other Expenses 22,514.93 14,518.88 18,411.53 11216.55
Total Expense 59,394.77 45,754.51 49,994.90 37,249.63
Profit before 1,329.41
Exceptional item and 2,037.20 2,554.76 1,551.20
tax
Exceptional Item 0 0 0 0
Profit/(Loss) before tax 2,037.20 1,329.41 2,554.76 1,551.20
Current Tax 852.51 677.53 794.99 536.95
Income Tax Adjustment (3.41) (29.84) (3.41) (29.84)
related to earlier years
Deferred Tax (Credit) /
Charge (109.12) (137.96) (95.36) (186.84)
Profit after Tax 1297.22 819.68 1858.54 1230.93
Earnings per share
(Basic) (Rupees in 2.45 1.53 3.5 2.29
actual)




b) Industry’s Outlook and Description of Company’s Working

The India Metal Fabrication Market is anticipated to register a CAGR of greater than 5% during the forecast
period. India's metal fabrication sector has suffered a significant blow on account of operational difficulties and
poor demand due to COVID-19 and a slow recovery back to the pre-pandemic level of production is expected
in the forecast period. According to the Business Standards, a severe dent in domestic demand for metals is
anticipated and it will take until at least 2022- 2023 to return to pre-pandemic levels. The Indian steel industry
is one of the few bright spots in the global steel industry.

The steel industry in the country revived from the demonetization and the goods and service tax (GST) reform
and is growing at a rapid pace. The Indian metal fabrication market (henceforth, referred to as the market
studied) is fragmented in nature, with the presence of a large number of small- and medium-sized companies
and EPC companies. The rising demand for goods and services across various sectors in India, combined with
the fact that global manufacturing companies focus to diversify their production by setting-up low-cost plants

in countries, like China and India, is expected to drive the Indian manufacturing sector.

Additionally, the Indian manufacturing sector is expected to register a growth of more than six times the
current value, by 2025, to USD 1 trillion. This growth in the Indian manufacturing sector, in turn, is likely to
increase the number of manufacturing facilities in the country, which is, thus, expected to drive the demand in

the market studied.

The Indian metal fabrication market is fragmented in nature, with the presence of a large number of small- and
medium-sized companies and EPC companies. The majority of the large fabricators present in the market
studied are majorly EPC companies, which handle end-to end solutions for structural steel fabrication and
process equipment fabrication services. In structural steel, fabricators in the market are focusing on expanding
their product portfolio through pre-fabricated buildings and providing engineering solutions to their clients.

The increasing construction sector and the preference for pre-engineered buildings are expected.

Biomass Industry:

The India biomass power generation market is generally adopted to meet the thermal and electrical needs of
various industries. Due to the rising environmental concerns among the masses, biomass is widely utilized as a
preferred substitute for conventional fuels, such as diesel, coal and furnace oils. The market in India is primarily
driven by the increasing demand for rural electrification. This is supported by the numerous initiatives
undertaken by public and private agencies to provide electricity in rural areas across India. Your Directors has a
firm view that the Biomass Power plant will continue to generate revenue with optimum capacity in future as

well.




Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company

New Business Vertical: Manufacturing of Pilot Plant

Your Company has recently expanded business by entering the business of design, fabrication and
manufacturing of pilot plants. Your Company intends to provide a one stop solution for pilot plant
requirements of our customers which will range from conceptualization of the pilot plant to commissioning of
the pilot plant, and will include 3D modelling, process simulation, control engineering, design, fabrication and
construction of the pilot plant, followed by installation of the pilot plant at site. Your Company intends to
develop pilot plants which cater to the R&D needs of companies in the oil and gas, petrochemicals, refineries,
specialty chemicals and pharmaceutical sectors, as well as institutions such as the Defence Research and

Development Organisation and the Indian Institute of Technology.

Geographical Diversification:

Your Company has manufacturing experience of over three and a half decades and has been able to leverage
its brand, strategically located manufacturing facilities and engineering capabilities to successfully expand its
business. Your Company has four strategically located Manufacturing Facilities, one located at Palwal
(Haryana), one at Anjar (Gujarat), one at Barmer (Rajasthan) and another through its WOS near Bangkok,
Thailand. Apart from this, your Company also operates one temporary facility dedicated exclusively to cater to
the piping and erection need inside the HPCL Rajasthan Refinery Limited in Barmer, Rajasthan. It has a

dedicated engineering facility located at Chennai in Tamil Nadu.

Your Company is the process of increasing our installed capacity and geographical footprint by expanding our
existing facility in Anjar, Gujarat and by setting up a new fabricating facility in Numaligarh, Assam. Since a
significant portion of our sales are to our overseas customers, our manufacturing facilities in Anjar, Gujarat and

Bangkok, Thailand are strategically located with access to ports to cater to our overseas customers.

Your Company has a strong focus on automation in its manufacturing processes and Manufacturing Facilities
are equipped with equipment such as fully automated robotic welding systems capable of welding 1,000 WDI
per day, semi-automatic shot blasting machines, automatic GMAW welding system and high frequency
induction bending machines having the largest diameter and thickness range in India. Your Company was the
first company in India to have introduced robotic welding and the first non-governmental company in India to

have introduced induction bending for pipe fabrication.




O ® N o U

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN

EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The details of conservation of energy and technology absorption undertaken by the Company andthe foreign
exchange earnings and outgo along with the information in accordance with the provisions of Section 134

of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 is as under:

Conservation of Energy
Your Company has taken following measures in relation to energy conservation during the Financial Year:

Steps were taken for utilising alternate sources of energy;

. The energy conservation equipment’s were purchased;

Using Flextec 650 chopper technology-based SAW & multi-functional in the place of DC 1000 transformer-
based only SAW process machine.

Using energy meters zone wise for monitoring/improving the power factor by adding the APFC panel on
particular zone.

Using servo motors in machine in place of induction motor for more accuracy & power saving.

No lighting is required in day time because the FRP fiber sheet is fixed in shed for proper lighting.

Using VRF unit with multiple ACs in place of particular outdoor units.

Using oil-based heaters against convection heaters for office cabin heating in winters.

Using timers of shop floor & office lighting as well as using of office Zone Heavy load ACs units ON/OFF

operations.

Technology Absorption:
During the year under review, an initiative was taken to install surveillance cameras covering maximum area of

the Company to ensure proper safety and security of employees and Companyassets. This initiative helps the
Administration department to take proactive step to minimise accidents in Company facility. This technology

helps to comply with standard operating process issued by the State and Central Government.

Although COVID 19 pandemic has slowed down, as an abundant precaution measure, your Company has
continued providing infrared thermometers at each entry and exit gate of the Company along with sanitizer
dispensers, foot operated toilet taps, distributed mask and sanitizer to employees and workers and regular
spray of disinfectants in Company campus etc. One ultra-violet documents box was installed for sterilization of
documents received from or given to outsiders. This helps to ensure low risk of infection to employees who

have received documents on aregular basis.

Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange

outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows is as under:




Foreign Exchange Inflow Foreign Exchange Outflow
Currency Amount Currency Amount
EUR 7,18,896.40 CHF 99,541.29
usbD 2,81,87,348.11 EURO 93,300.40
GBP 22,451.36
usb 81,56,712.15

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has formulated its own Risk Management Policy approved by Board of Directors. The Risk
Management Policy has a strong internal control system and a risk management framework for
monitoring and approving the transactions and associated practices of the Company. The objective of the Risk
Management Policy is to enable and support achievement of business objectives through risk-intelligent
assessment while also placing significant focus on constantly identifying and mitigating risks within the
business.

During the Financial Year 23-24, The Board also formulated Risk Management Committee to develop strategies
to evaluate and minimize the risk involved in the Company.

The composition of Risk Management Committee is as follows:

i. Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal: Chairperson of the Committee

ii. Mr. Ashwani Kumar: Member

iiii. Mrs. Shilpi Barar: Member

COMPLIANCE FOR PROVISION RELATED TO SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT

WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has constituted Sexual Harassment Committee chaired by Mrs. Shruti Agarwal and Ms. Aditi
Kaushal & Mr. M Madaan as member of the Committee. The Committee met twice during the year under
review. The Company has also filed the prescribed annual return on Sexual harassment before the District

Commissioner of Palwal District at the end of each financial year.

During the year under review, the Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment

to its employees and no complaints were received by the Company related to sexualharassment.




AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

The Board’s own performance is laudable from its various actions. It has aligned its structure by inducting
Independent Directors into the Board, constituting all requisite Committees, making CSR activities as a

management function and implementing risk management policies.

The various recognitions received (as mentioned below) speak for the performance of the Board and it’s

KMP(s):

Sr.No. Awards / Certificate Description

1 Certification of Appreciation & memento for timely execution of projects and high-quality
products from IHI, one of the biggest EPC of Japan
Certification of Appreciation & Memento for Best Practice in HSE from Valmet, one of the

2 biggest developer and supplier of technologies, automation systems and services for the
pulp, paper and energy industries

3 First National Award for Engineering Exports from EEPC.

4 Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal, Chairman & Managing Director, was invited on GE's Steam Power

Suppliers' Day to Speak on "Future ofThermal Power in India"

Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal, Chairman & Managing Director, shared the Dias with Hon’ble Sh.
5 Kaptan Singh Solanki, Governor of Haryana State, Sh. Vipul Goel, Hon’ble Cabinet Minister,
Govt. of Haryana and Sh. MoolChand Sharma, MLA Ballabgarh at an event organised by
Paryas Welfare Society.

6 State Export Award for the year 2014-15 & 2015-16

7 CSR Award from Govt. of Haryana

8 Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal, Chairman & Managing Director was honoured by Honourable
Minister of Industry, Haryana for outstanding Social Services.
9 Life Time Achievement Award 2016 to Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal, Chairman & Managing

Director by Faridabad Industries Association
10 Performance Excellence Award from Mitsubishi Hitachi Power Systems for 2014-15

11 Export Excellence Award 2014-15 from NCR Chamber of Commerce & Industry

12 Export Excellence Award from Faridabad Industries Association for 2013-14

13 Vishwakarma Award 2013 from Board of Governors of Construction Industry Development
Council (CIDC) to the Company for Best Professionally Managed Company (Turnover 100-
500 Crores) category, upon the recommendation of the jury with a Commemorative Trophy
14 Business Leader of the Year award to Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal, Chairman & Managing
Director from Faridabad Industries Association for 2010-11.

15 International Business Excellence Award to Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal, Chairman & Managing
Director by International Study Circle
16 Indian Achievers Award from All India Achievers Foundation for Industrial Development to

Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal, Chairman & Managing Director

17 Business Partnership Certificate from Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited Piping Centre,
Chennai for the best performance in supply of piping system for the year 2010-11

18 Induction of Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal, Chairman & Managing Director as a Member by
American Welding Society byAuthority of Board of Directors

19 Appreciation Award by Thermax at Supply Chain Meet 2007




20 Best Quality Conscious Subcontractor by Tata Projects Limited

REPORT ON SUBSIDIARIES COMPANIES

MALWA POWER PRIVATE LIMITED (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)

During the year, this subsidiary company’s Profit After Tax was impacted from INR 5,79,52,294.39/- to INR
2,17,58,323/-. The opening balance of loan from DEE Development Engineers Limited was INR 1,19,25,409.
Further Loan of INR 3,21,00,000/- and repayment during the year was INR 3,69,25,409/-. The current
outstanding as on 31st March 2023 was INR 71,00,000/-.

This subsidiary company has transferred its entire profit for the year to the ‘Retained Earnings’.

During the Financial year this company has replaced the busbar connector links of 11/0.433KV transformer to
maintain ease for inspection & cleaning to reduce time period during overhauling. Also, 66KV SF6 gas breaker
bushing connecting link replaced with new technology type links to reduce corona loss at breaker terminals.
Maintaining the Power Factor (PF) of Generator above 0.9 led to reduction of the power losses. 66KV
Transmission line tower structure was welded to minimize the structure theft losses. Also, Oil dehydration of
Power & Auxiliary Transformers was done regularly to reduce losses.

The Company also complied with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013 in promoting Education and Rural Development. The Company spends Rs. 11,00,000/- on
CSR projects which is over and above the Total CSR obligation as computed under the various provisions of the
Act i.e. Rs. 10,88,000. This subsdiary company was not required to constitute the CSR Committee.

Apart from above, this subsidiary company spends regularly to adopt best technology of its segment and
increase its efficiency by continual improvement of its processes.

The Working capital facility, Term Loan and Vehicle Loan availed by Malwa Power Private Limited from Bank of
India, SME Branch, Faridabad is guaranteed by your Company. The balance of WCDL facility ,Term loan and
Vehicle Loan facility as on 31 March 2023 was INR 681.07 Lakhs, 265.64 Lakhs and 8.22 Lakhs respectively.




DEE PIPING SYSTEMS (THAILAND) CO., LIMITED (Wholly owned Subsidiary)

During the year under review, this subsidiary company has closed its revenue at INR 6410.78 Lakhs. They have
executed orders for various international MNC customers like with mix of job work and fabrication. Like every
year this year also they have added new logos to their customer portfolio.

As a strategy, this subsidiary company is now focusing more on job work basis where material is supplied by
Customer. The plant is near the seaport which is an advantage for customer and thereforereduces freight cost.
This subsidiary company is doing aggressive bidding for the domestic market as there are multiple upcoming
projects in the Oil & Gas. The plant is fully operational and if required, can reach to its full potential capacity of
14500 MT by adding a limited Capex. The Thailand facility also got rated from Dun & Bradstreet.

DEE FABRICOM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)

During the year, this subsidiary company’s PAT was impacted from INR 2238.37 Lakhs to INR 2041 Lakhs. It is in
the process of developing strategies and effective implementation of these process to enhance the
productivity of the Company to increase the profits. The borrowing of this subsidiary on the beginning of the

year from your Company was INR 1162.96 Lakhs. A further loan of INR 97.04 Lakhs was given by your Company

and current outstanding as on 315t March 2023 was 1260.00 Lakhs.

This subsidiary has implemented following new measures for the effective growth:

Continuous Monitoring and Reporting: real-time monitoring and reporting of energy consumption enables it
to track each progress, identify areas for improvement and make informed decisions to optimize energy usage.
Employee Awareness and Training: The company recognizes that employees play a pivotal role in energy
conservation. Through regular training sessions and awareness programs, workforce has been trained to

identify energy-saving opportunities, encouraging a culture of responsible energy usage.

ATUL KRISHAN BANSAL FOUNDATION (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)

Your Company has decided to undertake all its CSR activities though AtulKrishan Bansal Foundation, a Section 8
Company registered. Your Company has transferred all ongoing projects to said Atul Krishan Bansal Foundation.
During the year, Income of this subsidiary from donations is Rs. 53.20 Lacs which Rs. 106.53 lacs in previous
financial year. There was no adverse or disclaimer comment given by Auditor in their Audit report.

Form AOC 1 is attached as per “Annexure V”.

DETAILS OF TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the general reserve and entire amount of profit for

the year forms part of the ‘Retained Earnings’.




DIVIDEND

Ensuring internal requirement of fund, your directors propose no dividend for the FY 2022-23.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Financial Year 2022-23, there were no changes which have taken place in the Board of Directors of
your Company. During the FY 2023-24, Mr. Ajay Kumar Marchanda and Mr. Satish Kumar (Independent
Director) resigned from the Board of the Company on 20.04.2023.

Mr. Ashwani Kumar Prabhakar, Mr. Bhisham Kumar Gupta and Mrs. Shilpi Barar was appointed as new

Independent Director on the Board of the Company from 12.07.2023.

DETAILS ABOUT KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the Financial Year 2022-23, Mr. Gaurav Narang resigned from the post of Chief Financial Officer of the
Company with effect from 03 March, 2023 and Mr. Sameer Aggarwal was appointed as Chief Financial Officer
in his place with effect from 04" March, 2023.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR”)

CSR Vision:

To be a responsible corporate citizen working towards a better tomorrow.

CSR Mission:

To sincerely & effectively discharge company’s responsibility in the identified CSR thrust areas and other areas
listed out in the Companies Act, 2013.

The CSR projects of the Company are focused on communities that are disadvantaged, vulnerable and
marginalized. The Company strives to contribute positively to improve their standard of living, through its
interventions in water & sanitation, heath, education and skill development.

The Company’s CSR Policy framework details the mechanisms for undertaking various programs in accordance
with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Schedule VIl for the benefit of the community.
On 22/01/2021 the Company has incorporated its own Section 8 Wholly Owned Subsidiaries with name Atul
Krishan Bansal. Your Company has decided to spend its CSR budget through Atul Krishan Bansal Foundation.
Total amount spentanCSR activities during FY 2022-23 was INR 50.69 Lakhs, out of this INR 42.20 Lakhs was
spent through Atul Krishan Bansal Foundation. The Company earmarked activities as given in Annexure lll.
Going forward new initiatives will be taken up.

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company has certified that CSR funds so disbursed for the projects have been

utilized for the purposes and in the manner as approved by the Board.




STATUTORY AUDITOR

M/s S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP (FRN: 301003E/E300005), Chartered Accountants, was appointed as the Statutory
h
Auditors for a period of Five years commencing from the 29" Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of

the 34th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

COST AUDITOR AND REPORT THEREOF

The Company has made and maintain cost accounts and records as specified by the Central Government under

sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors on recommendation of the Audit
Committee appointed M/s JSN & Co, Cost Accountants, M-11, Shastri Nagar, near Inderlok Metro Station Delhi-
110052 for the Financial Year 2022-23. The Cost Auditors’ Report for the FY 2022-23 does not contain any

qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Your company has received consent from M/s. JSN & Co., Cost Accountants, to act as the Cost Auditors for
conducting audit of the cost records for the financial year 2022-23 along with a certificate confirming their
appointment is within the limits and also certified that they are free from any disqualifications. The Audit
Committee has also received a certificate from the Cost Auditors certifying their independence and arm’s

length relationship with the Company.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

In accordance with the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and to follow the passion of good governance, the
Company has appointed Mrs. Abha Nanda, Practicing Company Secretaries, to undertake Secretarial Audit for
the financial year FY 2022-2023. But during the Financial Year 2023-24, Ms. Abha Nanda resigned from the post
of Secretarial Auditor of the Company with effect from 29* April, 2023 and M/s Pragnya Pradhan & Associates
(COP No. 12030) were appointed in place of outgoing auditor with effect from 07" May, 2023. The Secretarial

Audit report for FY 2022-23 is annexed as Annexure -VI.

The report of the Secretarial Auditors does not contain any adverse remark /qualification requiring explanation

from the Directors.




DEPOSITS DURING THE YEAR

During the year, the Company has not received any deposits from general public.

During the Year, Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal Chairman and Managing Director of the Company has provided an
unsecured loan of Rs. 12,49,65,000/- to your Company and Mrs. Ashima Bansal Whole Time Director has also
provided an unsecured loan of Rs. 30,00,000/.

The Directors had also provided declarations in respect of Loans provided to the Company and confirmed that
the Loans provided by the Directors are not being given out of funds acquired by him by borrowing or

accepting loans or deposits from others.

DETAILS OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS

During the year, no such fraud reported by the Auditor under Sub-section (12) of Section 143.

GOING CONCERNS

There were no orders passed by Regulators, Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has adequate internal financial control vis-a-vis the size of the Company. The Internal Control

Company’s operations in future.

Systems are regularly being reviewed by the Company’s Internal Auditors with a view to evaluate the efficacy
and adequacy of Internal Control Systems in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting
procedures and policies at all locations of the Company and to ensure that these are working properly and
wherever required, are modified/ tighten to meet the changed business requirements. In addition to above the

Board closely supervise the internal control functions at regular interval.

REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES

During the year under review, there was no employee in the Company who was in receipt of remuneration in
excess of the limits prescribed under the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read

with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
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Annexure |
FORM NO. MGT 9
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31/03/2023

| REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

| CIN U74140HR1988PLC030225

li Registration Date March 21, 1988

lii Name of the Company DEE Development Engineers Limited

Iv Category/Sub-category of the Company ICompany Limited by Shares/Indian Non-Govt. Companies
Address of the Registered office &
contact House No 1255, Sector-14, Faridabad, Haryana-121002

v details

Telephone (with STD Code) : +91-127-5248345
Fax Number: +91-127-5248314
Email Address: ranjank.sarangi@deepiping.com
Website, if any: www.deepiping.com

Vi Whether listed company N.A
Name and Address and contact detail of the Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA), if any:-
Name MAS Services Limited

vii Address T-34,2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-2 New Delhi-110010
Telephone +91-011-26387281,82,83
Fax Number N.A
Email Address www.masserv.com

Il PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated :-

ion of main products /services | turnover of thecompany
NIC Code of the Product / service

Pre-fabrication of Pipes and Pipe fittings
Electricity 3603 7.91
3 Sale of Service 8990 1.89

IPARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -
I
I

No. of Companies for which information is being filled Four

HOLDING/ Applicable
SUBSIDIARY Section of
NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY CIN/GLN /ASSOCIATE/ Companie
JOINT sAct, 2013
VENTURE
Malwa Power Private Limited U40107HR2002PTC067195 Whole-owned 100 2(87)
1 Subsidiary
DEE Piping Systems (Thailand) Co., Ltd 0105557148913 Whole-owned 100 2(87)
2 Subsidiary
DEE Fabricom India Private Limited U28990HR2018PTC076325 Whole-owned 100 2(87)
3 Subsidiary
U85300DL2021NPL376061 Whole-owned 100 2(87)
Atul Krishan Bansal Foundation Subsidiary
4
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V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i. Category-wise Share Holding

es held at the beginning of the year(As on 1st April, 2022) shares held at the end of the year(As on 31st March, 2023) 15
Category of Shareholders Chan

Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of ge

Total Total durin
Shares Shares g the

year

|A. Promoter s
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 91,01,273 - 91,01,273 85.80% 91,01,263 - 91,01,26 85.79% 0.1%
3
b) Central Govt - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
c) State Govt(s) - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
d) Bodies Corp. 15,06,555 B 15,06,555 14.20% 15,06,545 N 15,06,54 14.20% 0%
5
le) Banks / Fl - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
f) Any other - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
Sub-total (A)(1): 1,06,07,828 - 1,06,07,82 100% 1,06,07,8 - 1,06,07,8 100% 0%
8 18 18
(2) Foreign
a) NRI - Individual/ - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
b) Other - Individual/ - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
c) Bodies Corp. - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
d) Banks / FI - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
e) Any Others - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
Sub-total (A)(2): - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00%
[Total shareholding of Promoter (A) = (A(1) 1,06,07,828 - 1,06,07,82 100% 1,06,07,8 - 1,06,07,8 100% 0.1%
+ 8 18 18
[B- Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
b) Banks / Fl - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
c) Central Govt - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
d) State Govt(s) - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
e) Venture Capital Funds - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
f) Insurance Companies - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
[g) Flls - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
i) Others (specify) - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%
Sub-total (B)(1):- - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0%




|2. Non-Institutions

|a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian - - 0.00% 10 10 0.00% 0%

i) Overseas - - 0.00% - - 0.00% 0%

b) Individuals - - 0%

i) Individual shareholders holding

nominal - : = 10 10 0.00% 0.00%

share capital upto Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual shareholders holding - - 0%

nominal - 0.00% - 0.00%

share capital in excess of Rs 1 lakh

c) Others (specify) - - 0.00% - - 0.00% 0%

Sub-total (B)(2):- - - 0.00% 10 10 0.1% 0.1%

Total Public Shareholding (B)=(B)(1)+ - - 0.00% 10 10 0.1% 0.1%

(B)(2)

C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs - = 0.00% - = 0.00% 0%

& ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) 1,06,07,828 1,06,07,828 100.00 1,06,07,82 1,06,07,8 100% 0.00%
% 8 28




i

Shareholding of Promoters and

Promoter group

Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

% of total % of
Shares of Shares
the Pledge
company d/
encum
bered

to total
shares

No. of Shares

Shareholding at the end of the year

% of total %of
Sharesof the Shares
company Pledged /
encumbe
red to
total
shares

No. of
Shares

%
[LEL
in
shareh
olding
during
the
year

1 Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal 79,27,837 74.74% 79,27,837

2 Mrs. Ashima Bansal 8,79,990 8.29% 0% 8,79,980 8.29% 0% 0%

3 Mrs. Shikha Bansal 100 0% 0% 2,93,426 2.67% 0% 2.67%
4 Mrs. Charu Agarwal 10 0% 0% 10 0% 0% 0%

5 DDE Piping Components Private Limited 15,06,555 14.20% 0% 15,06,555 14.20% 0% 0%

6 Shruti Aggarwal 10 0% 0% 10 0% 0% 0%

7. Mr. Atul Krishan Bansal 2,93,326 3% 0% = - - 100%

TOTAL 1,06,07,828 100% 1,0(;,;)7,8 100% 100%

change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Shareholdi
ng

No. of
share atthe
beginning
01.04.2022

»f total share
ofthe
Company

Incre
ase/
(Decrea
se) in
shareh
olding

Cumulative Shareholding during

the year

% of total

Reason No. of
shares as on

31.03.2023

shares of the
company

Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal 79,27,837 74.74% 01.04.2022
79,27,837 74.74% 31-03-2023 79,27,837 74.74%
Mrs. Ashima Bansal 8,79,980 8.29% 01.04.2022
8,79,990 8.29% 31-03-2023 Decreas Sale of 8,79,980 8.29%
ein 10
Shares Shares
Mr. Atul Krishan Lalit Bansal 2,93,326 3% 01.04.2022 Decreas Transmiss - -
e in ion due to
2,93,32 death
6
shares
2,93,326 3% 31-03-2023 - 2,93,326 1.87%
Mrs. Shikha Bansal 100 0.00% 01.04.2022 Increas ITransmiss 2,93,426 2.67%
e in ion of
293326 shares
shares from Mr.
Atul
Krishan




100 0.00% 31-03-2023 100 0.00%
Mrs. Charu Agarwal - 0.00% 01.04.2022 Increas Purchase 10 0%
e in 10 of shares
shares
- 0.00% 31-03-2023 10 0.00%
DDE Piping Components Private 15,06,555 14.20% 01.04.2022
Limited
15,06,555 14.20% 31-03-2023 15,06,555 14.20%
Mrs. Shruti Aggarwal 10 0% 01.04.2022 10 0.00%
10 0% 31-03-2023




iv Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholdi
ng

No. of
share atthe
beginning
(01/04/202
2)/
ending of
the year
(31/03/202

>f total share
ofthe
Company

Incre
ase/
(Decrea
se) in
shareh
olding

Cumulative Shareholding during
the year

% of total
shares of the
company

E))
Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal 79,27,837 .
79,27,837 74.74% 31-03-2023 - 79,27,837 74.74%
2 Mrs. Shikha Bansal 100 0% 01.04.2022 Increas Transmiss 2,93,426 2.67%
ein ion of
shares shares
293326
100 0% 31-03-2023 - - 2,93,326 1.87%
3 Mrs. Ashima Bansal 8,79,990 8.29% 01.04.2022 Sale of Sale of
shares share
8,79,990 8.29% 31-03-2023 - - 8,79,980 8.29%




INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

Secured Loans excluding deposits (Rs. in Lakhs)

Unsecured

Loans (Rs. Deposits

inLakhs)

Total
Indebtness
(Rs.in
Lakhs)

i) Principal Amount 19,293.39 1,830.87 21,124.27
ii) Interest due but not paid - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 19,293.29 1,830.87 21,124.27
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year Secured Loans excluding deposits Unsecured Deposits Total
Loans Indebtness
* Addition 5,072.41 1590.27 6,662.68
* Reduction -978.71 - -978.71
Net Change 4093.70 1590.27 5,683.93
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year Secured Loans excluding deposits Unsecured Deposits Total
Loans Indebtness
i) Principal Amount 23387.09 3421.14 26802.67
ii) Interest due but not paid - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - -
| Total (i+ii+iii) 23387.09 3421.14 26802.67




Vi REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS AND/OR MANAGER:

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager ‘Total

Mr. Krishan Lalit Mrs. Ashima Mrs. Shikha Amount
Bansal Bansal*
1,86,59,592 82,08,831 1,06,43,574 3,75,11,99

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions - - -
contained in section 17(1) of the
1 Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) - - -
Income-taxAct, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under - - -
section17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - -
Commission - -
4 - as % of profit - - -
I others, specify - - -
5 Others, please specify - - -
[Total (A) 1,86,59,592 82,08,831 1,06,43,574 3,75,11,9?

REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors
A B 1uwal AlnvuiiIu
Independent Directors Mr. Satish Kumar Mr. A.K. Marchanda
Fee for attending Board committee 2,50,000 2,50,000 5,00,000
1 meetings
ICommission - - -

Others, please specify 4 - z
Total (1) 2,50,000 2,50,000 5,00,000

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Key Managerial Personnel

Particulars of Remuneration Company CFO
Secretary

Mr. Ranjan K. Mr. Gaurav

Sarangi Narang Mr. Sameer
Resigned during Agarwal
the Year
Appointed during

the Year
Gross salary 16,24,346 41,90,948 3,16,129 61,31,423
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in - - -
section 17(1) of the Income-taxAct, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax = o -
Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) = - R
Income-tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option - - -
3 Sweat Equity = - -
Commission - -
a4 - as % of profit - - -
- others, specify... - - -
5 Others, please specify - - -
Total 16,24,346 41,90,948 3,16,129 61,31,423




Vil PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Section of Details of Penalty /
the Brief Punishment/ Authority Appeal made,
Companie Descripti Compounding fees [RD / NCLT/ if any (give Details)
s Act on imposed COURT]
IA. COMPANY
Penalty 0 NA NA NA NA
Punishment 0 NA NA NA NA
[Compounding 0 NA NA NA NA
|B. DIRECTORS
Penalty 0 NA NA NA NA
Punishment 0 NA NA NA NA
[Compounding 0 NA NA NA NA
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty 0 NA NA NA NA
Punishment 0 NA NA NA NA
[Compounding 0 NA NA NA NA




ANNEXURE I

Policy on Nomination and
Remuneration Of

DEE Development Engineers Limited




1)

2)
3)
4)
5)
6)

7)

a)

b)
<)

d)

e)

f)

8)

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

PREAMBLE
In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with applicable rules thereto and Regulation 19 read with Part D of

Schedule 1l of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board of Directors of the
Company at its meeting held on 27% day of July, 2023 re-constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (hereinafter referred to as
committee) of the Board of Directors and also stipulated terms of reference in line with the Companies Act, 2013. in order to recommend the persons to
be appointed as Director of the Company and one level below the Board of Directors, and functional heads and to pay equitable remuneration to the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company, the Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and remuneration
Committee, formulated and approved this Nomination and Remuneration Policy (“Policy”) in its duly convened and held meeting of the Board (“Board”),
dated 07 day of September, 2023.

OBJECTIVE
To lay down the criteria for identifying the persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management and

recommending to the Board of Directors of the Company their appointment and removal.
To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, competencies, positive attributes and independence for appointment of a Director.
To formulate the policy relating to remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of all the Directors on the Board.

To devise a policy on diversity of Board of Directors of the Company.

To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory notification, amendment or
modifications as may be applicable.

Implementing and administration of ESOP Policy

This Policy is divided in to two parts:

Part A covers the matters to be dealt with and recommended by the Committee to the Board;
A
Part Policy for Appointment and Removal of Director, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management;
B
Part Policy for Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
C

PART A
A COVERS THE MATTERS TO BE DEALT WITH AND RECOMMENDED BY THE COMMITTEE TO THE BOARD;

The following matters shall be dealt with by the Committee:

Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating
to the remuneration of the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

Devising a policy on Board diversity;

Identify persons who qualify to become Directors or who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend
to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance. The company shall disclose the
remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria in its annual report;

Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensation matters;

Determining our Company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for Executive Directors including pension rights and any compensation payment,
and determining remuneration packages of such Directors;

Implementation and administration of decisions regarding allotment of ESOP Shares

PART B
POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

TITLE
This policy shall be called the “policy for appointment and removal of Director, key managerial personnel and senior management”

PREAMBLE
Section 178(2) of the companies Act, requires the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to identify persons who are qualified to become Directors
and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

3. DEFINITIONS
For the purpose of this Policy the following terms shall have the meanings assigned to them hereunder:

(a) "Board" means the board of Directors of the Company;
(b) “Policy for appointment and removal of Director, key managerial personnel and senior management” means this policy, as amended from time to




time;

(c) “Key Managerial Personnel” means

the Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer;
the Whole Time Director;

the Chief Financial Officer and

the Company Secretary;
(d) “Senior Management” means officers/personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team excluding Board of Directors
comprising all members of management Grade Eight below the Executive Directors, including the functional heads and shall specifically include company
secretary and chief financial officer.

(e) "Committee" means the nomination and remuneration committee of the Board;

(f) "Companies Act" means the Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules thereunder, as amended;

(g) "Director" means a member of the Board; and

(h) "Company" means Dee Development Engineers Limited.
Words and expressions used and not defined in this Policy shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended, the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, as amended, the Depositories Act, 1996, as amended, or
the Companies Act and rules and regulations made thereunder

4. APPOINTMENT
1. The Committee shall identify and ascertain the person for appointment as Director, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management based on the
following parameters:
i Integrity;
ii. Qualification;

iii. Knowledge and Competency and

iv. Experience

2. The Committee to decide suitability of the qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person for the concerned position.

3. The Committee shall recommend the appointment to the Board of Directors of the Company.

4., The appointment of Managing Director and Independent Director of the Company shall be strictly in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and any other applicable law for the time being in force.

5. The Committee to impart training to the person appointed as Director of the Company, on matters related to the Company viz. profile, the core business,

its area of operations and work mechanism etc.

5. TERM/TENURE

The tenure for the Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors shall be governed by the terms defined in the Act and SEBI
(LODR).

The tenure of the Key Managerial Personnel (except Managing Director and Executive Directors) and Senior Management will be governed by the general
rules and regulations governing Human resources /employees of the company.

6. REMOVAL

Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act and SEBI (LODR), the Committee may recommend the removal of any of the Board of Directors of the
Company if he has incurred disqualification under Section 164 of the Act or as per Section 167 or Section 169 of the Act. The reason for removal needs to
be recorded in writing, subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations and forwarded it to the Board of Directors for their
consideration.

The removal of the Key Managerial Personnel (except Managing Director/ Executive Director) shall be as per provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and
Senior Management will be governed by general rules and regulations/ Policy governing Human resources /employees of the company.

7. RETIREMENT

The Managing Director/ Whole-time Directors (WTD), Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013/ prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the WTD, Key Managerial Personnel
and the Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise, even after attaining the retirement age for the benefit of the
Company.

8. REVIEW OF THE POLICY
The Committee will review the Policy as and when required, which will include an assessment of the effectiveness of the Policy.

9. EFFECTIVE DATE
The Board Diversity Policy shall come into effect on 07.09.2023.




PART C

POLICY FOR REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES
(Under section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013)

TITLE

This policy shall be called the “Policy for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees”

PREAMBLE

Section 178(3) o the companies Act, requires the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall recommend to the Board a policy relating to the
remuneration for the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

3. DEFINITIONS

For the purpose of this Policy for performance evaluation of board of Directors, the following terms shall have the meanings assigned to them hereunder:
(a) "Board" means the board of Directors of the Company;

(b) “Policy for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management” means this policy, as amended from time to time;

(c) “Key Managerial Personnel” in terms of sub-section (51) of section 2 of the Act means-

the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;

the Whole Time Director;

the Chief Financial Officer and

the Company Secretary;

(d) “Senior Management” means officers/personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team excluding Board of Directors
comprising all members of management one level below the Executive Directors, including the functional heads and shall specifically include company
secretary and chief financial officer.

(e) “Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for position occupied in the Company and responsibility being

vested on him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(f) "Committee" means the nomination and remuneration committee of the Board;

(g) "Companies Act" means the Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules thereunder, as amended;

(h) "Director" means a member of the Board; and
(i) "Company" means Dee Development Engineers Limited.

Words and expressions used and not defined in this Policy shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended, the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, as amended, the Depositories Act, 1996, as amended, or
the Companies Act and rules and regulations made thereunder

4. REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR/ WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR
The remuneration to Managing Director of the Company shall be governed by section 197, and Schedule V of the companies Act, 2013/ any other
enactment for the time being in force.

The Committee may make such recommendations as it may consider appropriate in connection with the remuneration to. Managing Director/ Whole-
time Director to the Board of Directors of the Company

5. REMUNERATION TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS /INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Non-Executive Directors, independent Directors of the Company may be remunerated either monthly or annually by way of fixed sum or as
percentage of net profit as decided by the Board on the recommendations of the committee in accordance with all applicable provisions of companies
Act, 2013. In addition to remuneration so paid, they are eligible to get sitting fees for attending meetings of Board or Committee, if the Board so deems
fit and approves subject to the provisions of Section 197 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as
amended from time to time.

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company unless otherwise permitted in terms of the Act and SEBI (LODR), as
amended from time totime.

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of key managerial personnel and senior management shall involve a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short- and
long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals

The fixed compensation of all employees including key managerial personnel and Senior Management will be determined on the basis of size and scope
of the job typically as reflected by the level or grade of the job, trends in the market value of the job and the skills, experience and performance of the
employee. Fixed compensation will include basic salary, housing allowance, leave travel allowance and such other allowance

6.3. The annual incentive (variable pay) of all employees, if any will be linked directly to the performance of the Company.

6.4. Employees will also be eligible for work related facilities and perquisites as may be determined through human resources policies issued from time to time

based on the grade of the employee.

6.5. The annual increment of all of all employees, including key managerial personnel and Senior Management will be on the basis of formal annual

performance evaluation. Annual increases in fixed and variable compensation of individual executives will be directly linked to the performance ratings of




individual employees.

REVIEW OF THE POLICY
The Committee will review the Policy as and when required, which will include an assessment of the effectiveness of the Policy.

EFFECTIVE DATE
The Board Diversity Policy shall come into effect on 07t day of September, 2023




Annexure lll: Annual Report on CSR Activities

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

DEE Development Engineers Limited is committed to ensuring the social wellbeing of the communities in the vicinity of its business operations through
Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives (CSR).

DEE Development Engineers Limited shall engage with the community by undertaking the following principles and activities: ® Consult pro-actively with
the community and other key stakeholders for understanding needs and designing initiatives for the social wellbeing of the community.

Main heading under which CSR activities of the Company will be carried as under:

A. Eradicating extreme hunger and poverty;

B. Promoting of education;

C. Promoting gender equality and empowering women;

D. Ensuring environmental sustainability;

E. Social Business Projects in Infrastructural Supports;

F. Contributing to Prime Minister Relief Funds or any other fund setup by Central Government;

G. Rural Development Projects;

H. Swachh Bharat Scheme;

I. Beti bachao beti padao

2. Composition of CSR Committee as on 31 March,2023

Sr. No Name of Director Designation
1. Mr. Ajay Kumar Marchanda Chairperson (Independent Director)
2. Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal Member
3. Mrs. Ashima Bansal Member

Composition of CSR Committee as on date

Sr. No Name of Director Designation
1. Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal Chairperson
2. Mrs. Shilpi Barar Member
3. Mrs. Ashima Bansal Member

3. Average Net Profit of the Company for the last three financial years: Rs. 2533.01 Lakhs.

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (i.e. 2% of Average Net Profit) Computed to Rs. 50.66 Lakhs

5. Hence. The Company has decided to undertake all its CSR activities through M/s Atul Krishan Bansal Foundation, a Section 8 Company registered in
remembrance of Late Mr. Atul Krishan Bansal, Son of Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal, Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

6. Spending during the year is Rs. 50.69 Lakhs.

7. Amount Unspent is Nil

8. Excess CSR to be carried forward of this year is Rs. 0.03 Lakhs.




Details of the amount spend during the year is detailed below.

Sr. CSR Projects Sector in which Area, Stata Direct or Expenditure Amount
No of identified project is Covered and district through on reporting spend
activity in which CSR Section 8 date directly or
is Company through
undertaken implementing
agency
1. Rural Expenditure on Village Jatola Direct Rs. Directly
Development maintenance and and Tatarpur, Expenses 5,83,519.44
Projects Cleanliness of roads Dist. Palwal,
Haryana
2. Social Granting Donation to Indirect Rs. 5,000 Through
Projects Donations/Financial Anchal Expenses Anchal
Assistance for Chhaiya Chhaiya
upliftment of Education Education
society and and
Rehabilitation Rehabilitation
Society Society
3. Eradicating Feeding the poor Village Jatola Direct Rs. Directly
Hunger and with food and Tatarpur, Expenses 2,60,390.50
Poverty Dist. Palwal,
Haryana
4, Atul Krishan Donation and Grant Donation and Through Rs. Through
Bansal to Wholly owned Grant to Section 8 42,20,000 Section 8
Foundation Subsidiary Wholly Company Company
owned
Subsidiary
Total Rs.
50,68,909.94

It is hereby Stated that the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy is in compliance with objectives of the Company and Company’s Policy.

Krishan Lalit Bansal
(Chairperson of Committee)

(Chairperson & Managing Director of the Company)




ANNEXURE IV
FORM NO. AOC.2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1.
(a)
(b)
(0
(d)
(e)
®
(8
(h)

2.

A.

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
®

B.
(8
(h)
(i)
0)
(k)
Q)

C.
(m)
(n)
(0)
(p)
(@
(r)

D.
(s)
)
C))
(v)
(w)
x)

E.

)
()
(aa)
(bb)
(cc)
(dd)

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not atarm's length basis: NO

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, ifany
Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

Date of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any:

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as requiredunder first proviso to section 188

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Malwa Power Private Limited

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Sale of Goods

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions: On going

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, ifany: Rs. 2,53,582
Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA

Amount paid as advances, ifany: NA

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: DEE Piping Systems (Thailand) Co. Limited

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Sale of goods

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions: On going

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: Rs. 13,39,31,772
Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA

Amount paid as advances, if any: NA

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: DEE Piping Systems (Thailand) Co. Limited

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Purchase of goods

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions: On going

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: Rs. 10,19,35,945
Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA

Amount paid as advances, if any: NA

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: DEE Fabricom India Private Limited

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Sale of goods

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions: On going

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: Rs. 2,18,000
Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA

Amount paid as advances, if any: NA

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: DEE Fabricom India Private Limited

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Purchase of goods

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions: On going

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: Rs. 22,58,384
Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA

Amount paid as advances, if any: NA




Annexure V

Form AOC-1

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries (Amount in Lakhs)

Name Date of Financi Country of Percentage Report Sha Reser T
of Acquisiti al Year Incorporati of ing re ves o
Subsidi on ended on Shareholdi Curren Cap and ta
ary ng cy ital Surpl |
us A
ss
e
ts
Malwa 22.01.20 31.03.2 India 100% INR 122 1026. 4
Power 16 023 0.9 61 2
Private 7 0
Limited 7.
5
5
DEE 09.10.20 31.03.2 India 100% INR 900 (917.0 4
Fabrico 18 023 .00 6) 4
m India 2
Private 7.
Limited 9
5
DEE 07.10.20 31.03.2 Thailand 100% INR 502 (5736. 1
Piping 14 023 13 24) 4
Systems 1 3
(Thailan 4
d) Co. 0.
Limited 1
6
Atul 22.01.20 31.03.2 India 100% INR 1 46.79 4
Krishan 21 023 8.
Bansal 6
Founda 9
tion




Sr. Name of Total Investments Turnover Profit Profit Proposed
No Subsidiary Liabilities before after Tax Dividend
Tax
1. Malwa Power 4207.55 NIL 3399.60 333.73 217.57 NIL
Private
Limited
2. DEE Fabricom 4427.95 NIL 2041.00 (268.58) (196.15) NIL
India  Private
Limited
3. DEE Piping 14340.16 NIL 6410.78 (566.37) (566.37) NIL
Systems
(Thailand) Co.
Limited
4, Atul  Krishan 48.69 NIL 53.20 (23.10) (23.10) NIL
Bansal
Foundation

Company has no associates and Joint Venture Company.
. No new Subsidiary Company was acquired during the year and no subsidiary Company was liquidated during the Year.

For and on behalf of
DEE Development Engineers Limited

Krishan Lalit Bansal
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 01125121




PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES

l} PRAGNYA PRADHAN & ASSOCIATES

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T March 2023
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule
No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and
Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements), Regulations, 2015, as
amended]

To,
The Members,

M/S Dee Development Engineers Limited,
1255, Sector-14, Faridabad,
Haryana, India,

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/S Dee Development
Engineers Limited CIN No.U74140HR1988PLC030225(hereinafter called ‘the Company’).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided
by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit I hereby report that in my opinion ,the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2023('the Audit period’) , complied with the
statutory provisions listed here under and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books ,forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on the 31st March 2023 ,
according to the provisions of:

{i) The Companies Act, 2013(the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made there under
{ not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

(ii1) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act,1999 and the rules and regulations made there
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PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES

[’ PRAGNYA PRADHAN & ASSOCIATES

under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act’) (not applicable to the Company during the Audit
period):-

(a)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations,2015;

(c)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations,2018;

{d)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(e)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009;

(h)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of Securities) Regulations,
1998; and

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

vi) We have relied on the representations made by the Company and its officers for systems
and mechanism formed by the Company under the following heads;

1) Factories Act, 1948

2) Industrial Disputes Act, 1947

3) Labour Laws and other Allied Laws

4) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

5) Water {Prevention and Control) Act, 1974 and the rules made there under

6) Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and the rules made there under
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I} PRAGNYA PRADHAN & ASSOCIATES

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES

7)The Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;
8) Indian Contract Act, 1872;

9) Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;

10) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

We have not examined compliance with applicable financial laws like Direct and Indirect
Tax Laws, since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and tax

audit.
We have examined compliances of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India. During the period under review the Company has complied
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned
above.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above,

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. Adequate notice is given to all
directors to schedule the Board Meetings, and agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

All the decisions of the Board Meetings were carried through by majority and it was
informed that there were no dissenting views of the members and hence not captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that

On review of compliance mechanism established by the Company we are of the opinion
that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

As informed, the Company has responded appropriately to notices received from various
statutory/ regulatory authorities including initiating actions for corrective measures,
wherever found necessary. We further report that during the period under review:
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[’ PRAGNYA PRADHAN & ASSOCIATES

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES

* The Company has Increased the overall remuneration beyond limits mentioned in
Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 including adoption of New set of MOA and AOA by
passing Special Resolution at EGM held on 6t April, 2022.

Place: New Delhi For Pragnya Pradhan & Associates
Date : 09-06-2023 Company Secretaries

{Pragnya Parimita Pradhan)
ACS No. 32778 C P No.: 12030
UDIN: A032778E000473702
PR No: 1564/2021

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure:
A forms an integral part of this report.
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PRAGNYA PRADHAN & ASSOCIATES

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES

“Annexure A”

To

The Members,
M/S Dee Development Engineers Limited,
1255, Sector-14, Faridabad,
Haryana, India,

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

(1) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

(2) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correciness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure the correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

(3) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

(4) Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

(5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management. Qur examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

(6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither as assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
of the company.

Place: New Delhi For Pragnya Pradhan & Associates
Date : 09-06-2023 Company Secretaries
Py *
gl iy
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Chartered Accountants IGI Airpert Hospltality District, Aerocity
h New Delhi- 110 037, India

Tel :+91 11 4681 9500

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of DEE Development Engineers Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Stafements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of DEE Development Engineers
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and
Laoss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinien on the standalone
Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
inforimation included in the Annual report, but does not inciude the standalone Ind AS financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our apinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any for of assurance conclusion thereon,

In counection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financtal
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the asse_tig.f the Company

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP. a Limiled Liability Partrership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4294
Regd. Office : 23, Camac Street, Block ‘B, 3rd Floor, Kelkata-700 016



SR Bariipoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

1n preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s finaneial reporting pracess.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our apinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstaterment when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

»  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management,

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 17 a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

®

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

®

(b

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our epinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2013, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone Ind AS
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 3 [, 2023 has been paid / provided
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Act;

With respect to the other matters 1o be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 32(B) to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements;

ii,  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable [osses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, , no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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vi.

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, , no funds have
been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™} or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

Mo dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only w.e.f, April 1, 2023, reporting under this clanse is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accounfants
ICAI Fipm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

N\
per Amit Yaday h
Partner ) of
. 'Y !
Membership Number: 501753 2 ,‘5

UDIN; 23501752 RGX R4S 2010
Place of Signature: N.g 1y 01t <

Date: g_-)_,' oq! 2023
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and repulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: DEE Development Engineers Limited (“the Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of cur knowledge and
belief, we stafe that:

(i){a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(i)@)B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

()(b) All Property, Plant and Equipment were not physically verified by the management in the current year.
However, the Company has regular programme of verifying them once in three years which is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(D(c) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee, and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in note 3 to the standalone Ind
AS financial statements are held in the name of the Company. These immovable properties are pledged
with the banks and their title deeds are not available with the Company. The same has been
independently confirmed by the banks.

()(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023,

()e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii)(@  The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year except for inventories
lying with third parties. In our opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is reasonable
and the coverage and procedures for such verification is appropriate. Inventories lying with third parties
have been confirmed by them as at March 31, 2023 and no discrepancies were noticed. No discrepancies
of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were noted on physical verification of
inventories.

(i)  As disclosed in note 11(B) to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggrepate from banks during the year
on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the
normal course of audit of the financia! statements, the quarterly returns/ statements filed by the
Company with such banks are not in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company
and the details are as follows:

{Amount in lakhs)

Quarter ended Value per books of | Value per quarterly | Discrepancy

account (A) return/statement (B) | (A-B)
Inventories
- June 30, 2022 19.933.51 19,181.19 ) 752.32
- September 30, 2022 19,950.19 18,651.69 1,298.50
- December 31, 2022 23,930.35 23,036.50 89385
- March 31,2023 24.,259.70 24,458.29 (198.59)
Trade Receivables
- June 30, 2022 11,140.85 11,116.89 23.96
- September 30, 2022 13,237.07 12,785.67 45140
- December 31, 2022 12,643.32 12,694.35 (51.03)
- March 31, 2023 13,679.56 13,113.06 566.50

The Company do not have sanctioned working capital [imits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate
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(iii)(a)

(iii)(b)

(iii)(c)

(iti)(d)

(iif)(e)

(i) ()

(iv}

v)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

During the year the Company has provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee and
provided security to companies as follows:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Guarantees | Security Loans | Advances in
nature of loans

Aggregate amount granted/
provided during the year
- Subsidiaries 9,474.69 1,075.77 -

Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date in respect of above
Cases

- Subsidiaries 4,971.75 - 8.471.99 -

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guaraniee
and provided security to Limited Liability Partnerships, firms or any other parties.

During the year the investments made, puarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions
of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

The Company has granted loan(s) and / or advance in the nature of loans during the year to companies
where the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayment or receipts are regular. The Company has not granted loan{s) and / or advances in the nature
of loans to firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or peried of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

Loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of prefabricated pipings and fittings, and ave of the opinion that
prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however,
made a detailed examination of the same.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed
by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year
end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(vii)(b)

(viii)

(ix)}(a)

(ix)(b)

(X))
(ix)(d)

(ix)(e)

(ix)(E)

. (x)a)

(x)(b

(xi)(a)

The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have not
been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of Dues Amount Amount Period to | Forum  where
Statute involved paid under | which dispute
(Rs. in Lacs} | protest amount pending
(Rs. in lacs) | relates

The Central | Wrong availment 32.86 Nil 2002-03 Punjab and
Excise Act, | of exemption and Haryana  High
1944 notification of Court,

excise duty for Chandigarh

clearance of goods
The Finance | Service Tax 6.50 Nil 2014-15 CESTAT,
Act, 1994 liability on Chandigarh

reimbursement of

€xpenses
Income Tax | Tax including 185.10 Nil 2017-18 ITAT, Delhi
Act, 1961 interest on

disallowance  of

expenses and

transfer pricing

adjustments

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
ar any gevernment authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. The
Company does not have any associate or joint venture.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3{(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.
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(xi)(b)

i)c)
(xii)a)
(xii)(b)
xii)(c)
(xiii)
(xiv)(a)
(xiv)(b)

(xv)

(xvi)(a)

(evidib)

(xvi)c)

(xvi)(d)
{xvii)
(xviii)

(xix)

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
filed by cost auditer/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not epplicable to the Company.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order iz not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business,

The internal andit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under
audit have been considered by us,

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directers and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.,

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank
of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

The Cempany has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial
year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 41 1o the financial statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on cur examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that cur reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a pericd of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due. s
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(xx)(@) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act {the Act}, in compliance with
second provisc to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 25(b)
to the financial statements.

(xx)(b} There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a
special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act, This
matter has been disclosed in note 25(b) to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 30 1003E/E300005

per AU Yaaav
Partner

Membership Number: 501753
UDIN: 23S0 7Sa 24 ARMWS 2010

Place of Signature: Nouo TefL,
Date: },;_|gqlm5

'xo\ /]
DEL\"\
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ANNEXURE ‘2’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DEE DEYELOPMENT ENGINEERS
LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controis under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements of DEE
Development Engineers Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAL™). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor*'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing, as specified under section [43(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
finaneial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements was established and
maintained and if such cantrols operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of intermal contro]l based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial staternents to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone Ind AS financial stateéments may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or pracedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 3, 2023, based on the internal contrel over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Amit Yadav

Pariner

Membership Number: 501753

UDIN: 252017 S320K RS 207
Place of Signature: N .o Delh
Date: 3. }oqlmz_,




DEE Development Enginecrs Limired
Standalone Balince Sheet a5 at 31 March 2023

(Amount in INR lncs)

. As at As at
Particulors Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
Property, plant and equipment 3 23,640,70 20,959.83
Capital work=in-progress 3 258.81 426 .48
Intangible assets 4 259,40 183.08
Right of use assets 38 830,16 239.52
Financia) assets

(i} Investonents 5 6,820.12 6,220.12
(i} Lozns G[R) B3400.99 714077
(iii) Other financial assets 6{E) 2.100.08 1,732.68
Oiher non-current assets 7 0957.62 542.23
Total non-current assets 43,.287.88 38,039.71
Current assets
Inventories 8 24.899.47 21.081.35
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivablus &A) 13,679.56 12,766.90
{ii} Cash and cash equivalents ) 42,78 17.75
(iii} Bank balances other than (i) above [1¢)] 3.080.01 243432
{iv) Loans 6(B) 71.00 119.25
{¥) Othet financizl assets 6(E) 599.14 69,18
Other current assels 7 4,998.59 445090
Total current assets 47,470,585 40,959,635
Taotal assets g 43 79.029.3¢
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Exuity share capital 9 1,060.78 1,060.78
Other equity 10 46.364.73 44.571.75
Total equlty 47425.51 45,632,53
Liabilities
Non-carrent liabilities
Finzngial liabilities
{iY Borrawings 11(A) 2.240,13 1.643.55
(i) Lease liabilities 13 T3.82 21442
Deferred tax habilities {net) 17 CY |,822.83 1,540.24
Other non-current liabilities 15 209.09 95.92
Tatal nen-eurrent liahilities +.985.87 )599.13
Current liabilitics
Finangial liabilitiss
(i} Borowings 11{B} 24.568.12 1947571
{ii) Lease liabilities 13 192.84 59.73
{iii} Trade pavables

- total outstanding dues af micro enterprises and small emierprises 18 411.30 449,86

- total outstanding dues of creditors otherthan micro emterprises and I8 10,846.72 7.946.14

small enterprises

(iv) Orher financial Nabilities 2 755,83 321.45
Net employee defined benefit liabilities 14 228.66 186.76
Qiher currend liabilities 16 105081 1,054.64
Liabilities for current tax net) 15 201.77 341
Tetal current lisbilities 38,347.05 29,497.70
Total equity and liabilities 90,758.43 79,029.36
Summary of significant ageounting policies 2

The accompanying nates are an integral pari of the standalone financial statecnenis
As per our repost of even date

Far 8. R. Buttiboi & Co, LLP

Chartered Agcoumants

ICA[ Firm Rlesricvation Nuraber: 30 1003E/E200005
L

per Jadav
Panner

Membership No: 501753

Place : Mew Delhi
Date : September 22, 2023
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DEE Development Engincers Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Lass for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Amount in INR Iaes)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulsrs Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I Tnceme
Revenue from cantracts with customers 1 50,269.6] 37.032.68
Oier income 20 2,280.05 1,768.15
Total lncome (1) 52,549.66 38,800.83
Il Expenscs
Cost of raw materials consumed 21 21,503.46 17.902.69
Purchases of iraded poads 2BR.98 113.52
(Inerease) in inventories of finished goods, traded goods and work-in-progress pr] (3,231.18) {1,833.40)
Employee benefit expenses . 23 8 16599 5,755.34
Finance costs 26 2,433.87 1,899.72
Depreciation and amortization expense A 2432725 221521
Other expenses 23 18,401.53 11,216.55
Total expense (11} 49,994,9) 37,249.63
I Profit before tax (1-11) 2,554.76 1,5581.20
IV Tax expense:
(1}  Current tax 794,99 536.95
(2) Adjustment of 1ax related to earlier years (3.410) (29.84)
(3) Deferred tax (credit) (95.36) {186.84)
Total ax expense (1V) 696.22 320.27
¥ Profit for the year (ILI-1V) 1,858.54 1,230.93
V1 Other comprehensive incomef(loss) s 27
Re-measurement pain/loss) on defined benefit plans (87.61) 14.42
Income tax effect 22.05 {3.6%)
Other comprehensive income/(lass) for the year, net of tax (V1) {65.56) 10,79
¥1]  Total comprehensive income for the year, nel of ax (Y+V]) 1,792.98 1,241,72
Earnings per equity share |nominal value of shares INR 10 eaeh 28
{Previous year INR 10 cach)|:
- Basic earnings per share 350 229
- Diluted eamings per share 150 2.29
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our repart of even date
For 8. R, Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Acoountants DEE Development Enpineers Limited
JCAI Firm}Regisgration Number: 301003E/E300005
4
per At Yadav Krishan Lualit Bansal Ashima Bansal
Partrer Chairman and Managing Direcior  Director
Membership No: 501753 DIN Ne. 01125121 DIN Mo. 01928449
Ranjn™arangi ~Bnmeer Agarwal
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
FCS-8604 .
Place : New Delhi Place : Palwal

Date : September 22, 2023 Date : September 22, 2023




DEE Development Engineers Limited
Standalone Siatement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amaount in INR lacs)
For the year ended Fur the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A. Operating activilies

Profit before tax 2,554.76 1,551.20
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tix to net cash Mows:

Depreciation and amortisatian expense 242225 2,21521
(Profit)/ loss on sale/ discard of property, plant and equipment (net) (171.02) 5.02
Finance incame [771.719) {576.82)
Liatilities no Jonger required written back (362.06) -
Unrealized gain an foreign exchange (net) {780.97 (239.28)
Amonization of deferred revenue {16.55) -
Finance casts 243387 1.892.72
Sundry balances written of T 140.45 -
Operating profit before warking capital changes §5,448.94 4,856.05
Working capital adjustments:
{Inerease) decrease in trade receivables {550.60) 5,299.11
(Increase) in inventories (3,818.12) {1.467.48)
(Increase) in financial assets (1,288.24) -
{Increase) in atker assets {686.72) (1,359.91)
Increass in trade payables 2,862.02 1,839.82
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 4290 (35.00)
Increase in financial liabilities 431,74 .16
Increasef(decrease) in other liabilities 109.33 {92.66)
Cash pencrated from operations 1,553.25 6,079,09
Incame tax paid {nel of refund) (498.42) (51210}
Ner eash flows From operating activities 2,054,383 5,559.99
Investing activitics

Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment, capital work in progress and intangible assets {5,186.26) {(2,271.42)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 243,82 15.68
Loans given lo related party (1,037.09) (78.98)
Lcan repaymem from related party 369.25 200,00
Investment in wholly owned subsidiary company - {1,108.10)
Investments in bank deposits {2,634.78) {1,325.22)
Progeeds feom redemption/ maturity of bank deposits 2,240.25 86522
Interest received 77179 631.14
iNet eash flows psed in investing activities {5,227,02) (3,171.68)

. Financing activities

Praceeds from lang term borrowings 1,657.21 1,595.29
Repayment of long term borrowing (972.12) (1,003.47)
Proceeds from short term borrowings 4,999 89 3,658.40
Interest paid (2,321.22) (1.891.21)
Principle repayment of lease liabilities (100.35) {43.63)
Interest paid on lease liabilities {63.19) (24.32)
Buyback of equity shares - (5,034.04)
MNet eash flows From/(used in) financing activities 3,197.22 (2,743.68)
Net increasef (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) 25.03 {385.37)
Cash and eash cquivalents al the beginning of the year 17.75 373.12
Cash and cash equivalents st yenr end {refer note 6(C)) 42,78 17.75




DEE Development Enginecrs Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

Cash and cash equivalents comprise (refer note 6(C)) =

(Amount in INR lacs)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

Balance with banks

Total

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral pant of the standalone finanzial stalements
As per our report of even date

For 8. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regjstration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Amdit Vaday
Partner
Membership No: 501753

Place : New Delhi
Date : September 22, 2023

. 584 282
" 36.94 14.93
4273 17,95

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
DEE Development Engineers Limited

K.L. Bansa] .'t&shima Bansal
Chairman & Managing Director Director
DIN No. 01125121 DIN No. 01928449

b
RanjalShranpgi Safficer Agarwal
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
FCS-8604
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Date : September 22, 2023




DEE Drevelopment Engineers Limited
Standnlane Statement of changes In cquity for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount in INR Incs)
A.  Equity share capital:
Parliculars Equity Shares
Ne. in Iacg INR lacs
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Equity shares of INR 10 each kseed, subseribed and fully paid —
At 1 April 2022 106,08 1.060.78
Chanpes in equiry share capital due to prios period erors - -
Reatated bolance as ar | April 2022 165.08 1.060.78
lssue of cauity share capital . -
A3 March 2023 106.08 L,0G0.78
For the year encled 31 March 2022
Equity shares of INR 10 cach Jssucd, subscribed snd fully paid
At 1 April 2021 [56.93 1,549,27
Changes in equity share capilal due to prior perind eerors - -
Restated balance as at | April 2021 156.93 1,569.27
Buyback of equity share capital {refer note 10) [S0.E5Y (508.49)
At 3! Moreh 2022 106.08 I_ﬁ;ﬂ.?s
B. Other equity
Reserves and Sarplus
Purticulars ' Capiml . Tora?
Securities General reserve Redemption Relatuad
Premium camings
Reserve

Balance as ar | April 2022 16,7309 407122 0849 13,255.11 44,570.75
Changes im accouating pafieies or prior period emars - - - - -
Restated bulance as ar | April 2022 16.730.93 407722 508,49 13,285 11 44,571.74
Add/ Dess):
Profit for the yoar - - - 1,858.54 1,858 54
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - {65.58) {65.56)
Balapee as at 31 Magch 2023 16,730.03 407722 gDBAB 215,048.09 46,364,73
Balance as at [ April 2021 16,730,093 4,585.71 - 26,535.94 47,355.58
Chanpes in accounting policies or prior peviod errars - - - - -
Restared balanee a5 5t I Ansi) 2021 16,230.93 S AB8TH - 24,838,94 47,855,558
Add! fless):
Frofit for che year - - - 1.230.93 123093
Other compreliensive income for the year - - - 10.79 10,79
Adiustment on eccount of buyback of shares {refer note 10} - ($08.49) 50849 {4,525.55) (4.525.55)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 Ié?.!ll.ﬁ 4,077.22 508.4% 23,255,11 44&7].75
Suminary of significant aveeunting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral pant of' the srandalpne fimanciel Stalerrients
As per our repoit ol even date
Far 8. R, Batliboi & Co, LLP For and en behalt of the Board of Dircetors of
Chartered ccountams DEE Development Engineers Limiced
ICAT Firm Regigation Number: 301 003E/E300005
per At Yadoy Krishan Lalit Bonsal Ashima Bansal
Pariner Chairman and Manaping Director Directos
Membership No: 501753 DIN No. 0712512) DIM No. 01928449

Ranlan Sarungi ~Sameer Agarwal

Company Secretary Chief Finamcial Oficer

FC5-8604
Place : New Dethi Place : Palwal

Date : Seprember 22, 2023 Date ; Scptember 22, 2023




DEE Development Engineers Limited
Nbtes to the standalone financial

for the yeor ended 31 March 2023

1. Corporate Information

DEE Development Engineers Limited ("the Company™} is a Limited Company domiciled in India and incerporated under the provisions of the Companies Act. The Company is mainly
engaged in manufactucing of Pre-fabricated Engincering Products, Pipe Finings, Piping Systems and Biomass based Power Generation. It ha manufacturing facilities at Talarpur (Haryana),
Barmer (Rajasthan) and Power Generatien Plam at Abghar (Funjab).

The Fnancial stalzments were approved for issue in dance with a resolution of (he di on September 22, 2021,

L Significant Acconnting Palictes
2. Basis of preparation

The Finaneial siternens of the Company bave been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting stendards (Ind AS) nasified under Companies (Indian A ting standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from Bme to time) p i

i ts of Divisian 11 of Schedule I te the Companies Act, 2013, {Ind AS compliant Sﬂledl‘lle 1I1), and other proviston of the act

“The financial siatements of the company have been prepared on a historical cosi basis, exeept for the following nasets and liabilities:
(i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured 21 fair valug {nefer acsounting policy regarding financial i !

(ii} Defined benefit plan- plan assets measured at Fair value and

(i} Decivative financial instruments.

The financial starements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest [acs (INR 00,000), except when otherwise stated.

b. Use of Estimates

The prepasation of financial st in conformity with generally pled ing principles requines managemen to make estimaies and assumptions that affect the reported
smounts of incame and expenses of the period, reported balances of assets and liabilitics and disclosure of contingent Rabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of
operations duriny e reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon T *s best knowledge of curvent events and actions, actual resulis could differ from these
estimales. Dilference betwesn ncnual resull and estimmes are recognised in the period in which the resislis are known/materialise.

t. Current vs Non Current Clnasifiestion
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet besed on cunenl non-gurrent classification,

un assed is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or . d in normal aperating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpase of irading

= Expected to be realised within bwelve momhs afier the ceposting peviod, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a linbility for at least twelve months after the reparting period

All other assets are ¢lassified as non-cument.

A liakiliny is comem when:

= It is expected 10 be semled in normal apemting cycle

-1t is held primarily for the purpase of trading

- I is due 1o be setiled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the sertlemnent of the liability for at teast twelve months afier the reponing period,

All other linkilitics are elussified as nan-current.
Deferved tax assets and liabilities are classificd a5 non-cuirent assets and lishilities.

The eperating cycle is the fime berween the acquisition of asscts for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified fwelve momihs as its

operaring cycle.
d, Foreign currencics
The Company's finaneial ae p 1 in Endian Rupces (INR), which is alse the Company”s luncaional Y.
Transaction and balaneces
Transaciions in foreign currcncics are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional y spol rates al the daw the ransaction first qualifics for reognition.
H , for practical , the Company uses an average rate if the ¢ approximates the actual pme at the date of the transaction.
Muonetary assels and liabilities d imated in foreign ies are wwanslated a1 the functional curency spot rates of exchange at the reporting daie,
Exchange differences arising on scitlemenn or tanslation af y items ave recognised in statement of profit and Poss,

Non-mongtary items thar are measured in terns of historical cost in a foreign ¥ are lated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions, Non-mongtary items
measured at fair value in 2 foreign cumency are ranstated using the exchange rates a1 the date when the fair value is determined. The gain of Joss arising on translation of non-mometary
items measured al faic value is treated in ling with the recognition of the pain of loss on the chunge in fair value of the item (i.c., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
lass is recopnised in OC1 or prafit or loss are also recagnised in OCU er profit or loss. mapestively).




DEE Development Engineess Limited
Nates ta the dafane financial for the year ended 31 March 2023

L3

Revenue from contraed with customer

Revenue &5 recognised eo the exteny thal it is prabable 1hat the ecanomic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue ean be reliably measured, regardless of when the paymen! is
being made. Revenue is measured a1 the fair value of the consideration received or reeivable, taking info account contractually defined lerms of payment and exchuding axes or duties
collectsd on bebalf of the govermment. The Campany hius concluded that it is the principal in oll of @15 revenue amangements because il typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from contracrs with customers is recognised when contral of the goods ar services are ferred to the al an that refleets the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The Company ¢ollects Goods and service $ax (GST) on belhalf of the government and therefore, these are not i¢ benefits flowing 30 the Company. Hence, they are excladed fom
revenie. .

Sale of Gonds

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the polnt in fime when control of the goods is ferred Lo the z lly on delivery of the equipment, Revemue from the sale of
poods is measured at the Fair valus of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

I determining the transaction price for the sale of ¢quipment, the Company considers the efiects of variable sensideration, the existencs of significant financing ponents, 1

consideration, and consideration payable to the customer {if any).

{0 Varlabls considecation
IF the consideration in a includes a variabl the Conipany esti the of consideration to which it will be enritled in exchange for ransfemring the goods 1o the
cusioveer, The varable adermtiaa is esti d a1 i ton and consmrained wntil il is highly probable thay a significant revenue reversal in the of Lative

recognised will not oecur when the associated uncectainty with the variable consideration is quently resolved,

Rendering of Services
Revenue from ercetion And services and revenue from jobr wosk is recugnised as per the contraciual terms and as and when services are rendered. The Campany collests Goods and
service tax (GST) on behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an economic benehit flowing 10 the Company. Hence, il is excluded fram

Interest tncame

Far el delw insouments measured either at amontjszd cost or at Fair value through other comprehensive i inl inconme is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is
the raic ihat exacily discounts the estimated finure cash payments or receipls over the expecied life of the financial instrument or a shorter periad, whers appropriate, to the gross earrying
amount of the finangial asset or to (e amostised cosi of a financial liability. When calculating ihe effechive interest rale, the Company estimates the expected cash Hows by considering
all the contractual 1ezms of the Gnangial i {for ple, prepaymenl, extension, call and simitar oplions) bul doss nat consider the expected credit losses.,

Sale of Electricity
Revenue from sales of electricity is billed on the basis of recording of supply of ctectricity hrough installed meters. R from sales of electricity is accounted for on the basis of
billing to customers hased on bifling eycies followed by the Company.

Contract balances

Conbract assels
A contracl asset is the right ta consideration in exchange for poods or services ferred 1o the 1F1he Company performs by wansferring goeds or services te a customer befors
the customer pays consideration or before pay isdue, 2 asset is recopnised for (he earmed consideration that is conditional.

Trode receivables
A receivable represents the Company's right 10 an amount of considesation thal is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of tlie consideration is due).
Reler o ing policies of financial assets in section (p) Financial instumenrs - inivial recognition and subsequent measurement,

Contract liahilltfes

A controst liability is the olipation ta wansfer goods or services to a customer for which ihe Company has reseived {or an of ideration is due} from che
I a cust pays idevation before the Company transfers poods er services 1o the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the J is made or the paymens is

due fwhichever is eaclier). Contract liabilitics arc recoenised as revenue wirn the Company perfe under the

Government Grants

G grants gre gnised where there i reasonable assurance that the granl will be ceceived and all aunched conditions will be complied wilh, When the grank relates ta an
P ifem, it is recognised as i o & sy e bosis over lhe perfods that the related costs, far which il is intended (o compensate, are expensed, When the grant relaies 1o an
asset, it is recognised a5 an income in equal amounts aver the expecied usefid life of the reloted asset.

When the Company receives grant for non-monetary assets. the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and relessed to Profil or Loss over the expected wseful life ina
pattern of cansumpeion of the benefil of the underlying asset ic. by equal sanval instalments. When Ioans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with
an ntevest rate below the cument applicabile market rate, the effect of this £a e i is regarded as 4 government grant. The loan ar assistance I3 inivally recognised and
measured ol fir value and fhe government grant is measured as the differcnce between the initial carying value of the Joan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured
ag per the accounting policy applicable o financial liabililies.




DEE Development Engineets Limited
Notes io the standalane Anoncial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

h, Taxnfion

Current ingome tax
Curvent incame tax asseis and liabilities are d at the T d 10 be recoveyed lrom ac paid ro the raxmion authorides. The 1ax rotes and tax laws used ta compute the
amount are thoss thal are enacted or substantively enacted. al the reporiing date.

Curzent income 1ax refating 1o items rcognized outside profit or loss is recognised outside profil or toss (cither in other comprehensive income or in equity), Curenl 1ax items are
Tecognised tn comelation wo the vnderlying ransactéon ellher in OCI or direcaly in eqmry Mmgcnleﬂl perodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to simtions in
which applicable rax mgulatwms ane subject o i and eslablish

P P b 2k

Dreferrad tax
Deferred rax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences benween the tax bases of assets and Habilities and their camrying ts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax linbilitles are ised for all taxable teinporary diffe . encepl when the defemed (ax liability anses from the initial recognition of gocdwill or an asset or liabilicy in a
transaction that is not & business combination and, at the vime of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profi nor taxable profit or loss

Defermed tax assets are recognised for all deductible temperary difTerences, the camy looward of unused tax eredits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
catent that it is probable that 1axable profil will be available against which (he deductible lemporacy differences, and the camy forward of unused tax credits and unused rax losses can be
utilised, except when the defered tax asset relating 1o the deductible temporary difference arises From the initial revognition of an asset or liability in o transaction that is not a business
combination and, sl the time of the wansaetion, affects neither the pocounting profit nor 1axable profit or loss,

The canrying amount of deferred tax asscts is reviewed af cach sepasting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable hat sulficient taxable profit will be available to allow

all or pant of the deferred tax psset to be wiillsed. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed 21 cach reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probakle that
furure axabte profits will allow he deferred vax asset to be recovered.

Dreferred tax assets and llahlllhes are me:asmd at the tax rates that are expecied to apply in (e year when the asset is realised ar the linbility is senled, based on tax rares {and tax laws)
that have been deor 1 d at the reporting date.

¥

q )

Deferred fax relating lo ilems recogmd profil o¢ loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehiensive income or in equity). Deferned tax items are recognised
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCL or direcily in equity

Deferred tas includes Mini Al Tax (MAT) and recoynises MAT credit available as an asser gnly 1o the extent that there {s convinving evidence that the Company will pay
normal incomtc tax during the specificd periad ic. the period for which MAT credit is altowed to be carried forward. The Campany reviews the "MAT credit entiflement” asset af each
reparting date and writes down 1he asset to the extent the Company daes not have any convineing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

For epecarions caried ont under tax holiday period (801A benefit of Income Tax Act, 19613, deferred tax asszt or liabilities if any, have been established for the tax consequences of
those temporary dilfer b the camrying values of assets and labilivies and their respeetive tax bases that reverse after the tae holiday peried ends.

Property, Flan| and Equipment
Capital work in propress is stared at eost, net of seeumulated impainment loss, ifany. All the p

perty, plant and equip is stmed at cost, net of accwnulated depreciation and

Investrment property

Since there is no change in the funciional %, the Company has elected o eontinue wilh the earrying valoe of its investment property as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial
Etatemyents as dezined cost at the wransition date, viz., 1 April 20 I6

Invesiment propettics are measured initially ot cost, including tr ion Gosts. Subsequent to initial recognilion, investment progerties are siated at cost less accumulpted depreciation

and accumuolmed impalrment Toss, if gny.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing cests for long-tenn construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment propenty
ure required 0o be replaced at iniervals, the Company depreciates them separately hased on wheir specific wseful lives. All other repair and meintenance costs arc recopnised in proafil or
[oss as incurved,

The Company, based on technital assessment made by 1echnical expert and £ t estimate, d iates the building over eshi 4 useful lives which are different from the useful
Iife prescribed in Schedule I o the Companies Aet, 2013, The managemeni belipves thal ﬂmestmmed uschul lives are ren!lsllc and eeffect Eair appronimation of the period over which
the assets are likely w be used.




DEE Development Engineers Limited
Nates to the siaadalone Gnancist statemenis far the year ended 3T Morch 2023

—

Espenditure an nevw profects , substantial expansion and doering construction period

Expendilure directly relaling to constructian activity is capitalised. Indireet expenditure i d during ion period is j as pan of the indirect canstruction cosl to the
extent [o which the expenditure is indirecily refated o ion of is incidental thereto, Other indirect expenditure incumred during the construction peried, which is not relaled to the
consmuclion ackivity ner is incidental thereta is charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss. Inceme eamed during construction period is dedacted from the toral of the indirect expenditure.

All direct capital expendituee. on expansion is capitaliscd. As regards indineet expendinire on expansion, oaly that ponion is capitalised which reg the marginal increase in such
expenditure involved as a result of caphial expansion. Boah direet and indirect expenditure are capitalised onby if they increase tbe value of the asvet beyond is orginally asséssed
standacd of performance.

Expendiiure during period is ingluded under capital work~-in-progress and the same is allocated 1o respective Fixed Assets on the completion ef its eensmuction,
Intanpible Assels

Intangible assets acquired sep ly are d on inilial recopnition ar cos.
accimnulazed impairment losses, il any.

p Enitial recognition. intanyible assels are carried at cost less any accumulaied amortisation aod

Amrtisation of the finite intangible asses is allocated on systematic basis over the besi estimate of their useful life end accordingly sofiwares are g an straipht line basis aver the
pericd of six years or license period which ever is bower,
Gains or lasses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are d as the difference the net disposal p ds and the camying amount of the asset and pre

=1

recognised in the statement af profit or loss when the asset is d pnised. The Company has no intangible assets with an indefinite life.

Berrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly arribmable 1o the acquisition, construction or production of an asset hat necessarily 1akes & substantial period of fime to get ready for its intended use oc sale are
capitatised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in (he period in which they occur, Botrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connastien with the bomowing of funds. Bomawing cost also ingludes exchange differences ta the exiznt regarded as an adjostment to the bereowing costs.

Leases
The O Y at i i hether a contract is, oF conlains, a lease, That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset far a period of

P

rime in exchange for consideration.

Company a3 2 lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach For atl feases. cacept For short-temm leases and leases of Jow-value assets, The Company vecognises lzase liabilities
10 make lease paymenis and right-af-use asset1s representing the right 1o use the underdying assets.

{a) Right-of-use aset

The Company recogmises right-of-use assets af the commencement date of the lease (i.2.. the dats the underdying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured al cosy, less
any accumulated deprecintion and impainment 1osses, and adjusted for any remeasuremen) of lease liabilities. The eost of righi-of-use assels includes the amaumnt of lease linbilities
recogrised, nitial divect costs ingurred, and lease payments made a1 or belore the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are degszviated on & straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease teron and the esrimated useful lives ol the assers, as follows:

Particulars Useful life (years)
As per Management
Leaszhold Land 310
Comy and dain pr ing equif F]
Mani and machinery 5
I ownership of the leased assed transfess to tle Company al the cnd of the [sase term ar The cost reflects the ise of a purchase opiion, depreciation {s caleulated using the d
useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets ans alse subject 1o fmpairment. Refer 10 the accounting policies in section {2.0) Impai of non-financial assets.
(b) Lease Liabilities

At the cammengement date of the lease, the Company recognises bease labiliics measured af the present value of lease payments 1o be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed paymenis (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incenrives receivahle, varizbla lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to
be paid under restdual value guarantees. The leass payments also include the ewcisc price of a purchase option reasenably certain o be ised by the Company and payments of
penalties for lerminating the Jease, if the lease term refects the Camyp g the ppiion to temminate. Yarable lease payments that do not depend an an irdex ar 2 rate are
recognised as cxpenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventocies) in thc period i m which the event or condition that triggers the payment 6ccurs.

In calculating the present valus of lease pay the Campany uses its i | borrowing rate at the lease dare b the interest Tate implicit in the Yease is not
readily d inable. After the date, the of lense liakilirtes is increased (o reflect the ion of i and reduced for the lease paymens made. lo addition,
the carrying amoum of fease linbilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a chiange in the lease term, a change in the leasc paymenis or a chanpe in the assessment of an option ta
urehase the underlytop assel.

1) Shaori-term leascs and leases of low=value aszens

The Campany applies the short-1zrm lease recopnition exemplion to its shart=tesm beases of machinery and equipnient (i.e., thoss leases that have a fease term of 12 momths or tess from
the cammencement date and da not conlzin a purchase option). I also applies he lease of lowevalue peseis recognition exemption 1 leases of affice equit thai are idered to be
low value, Lease payments on shon-tenn leases and Teases of low-value assers are recopnised as expense on a smmight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a Jessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially nll the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating Jease is
recognised on a smaight-line basis aver the 12m of (he relevant fease. Initial direct costs Incurred in negodiating and avanging an operating lease are added to the camying amount of the

leased assed and recogmised over the Jease tenn on the same basis as rental § Conti rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed.

1

Leases are classificd as finance kases when substantially all of the risks and bs of hi fer from 1he Company to the lessee. Amounts due from Jessees under finance

leases are yecorded a3 receivables a1 the Company®s net investment in the leases. Finance lease o mmme is allecated ro uccoumlng'penods 50 as 1o reflect a constant peniodic vale of refum
on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.
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m: Inventorics

Inventories are valued as fellovs:-

Raw materials, Stores, Spares. Packing materials and Traded Lower ol cost and net realizabile value. However, materizls and other supplies held for use in the production of

Goods inveataries are not wrinen down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated, are
expectad 1o be sold at or above eost. Cost is detenmined on weighted averags cost basts.

Cost includss cost of purchase and cther costs ineurred in bringing the in {2 10 their g locarion and
condition.

Finighed goods Lower of cast and net realizable value, Cost includes cost of direct matzrial: and labour and & propertion of
manufacturing overheads based on ihe normal operating cepacity, bul excluding t ing costs. Cost is
deiermined on weighted avevape cost basis,

Work in Progress Work in Progress is valued at the lower of actual cost incumed or net realizable valwe. Cost includes du‘ect

materinls, Jabour and proportionate overheads. Cost is determined on weighted average cost basis,

Net realizable value is the estiwated selling price in the ordinary course of business, l¢ss ¢stimaled costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impalrment of non-dinancial assets
The Company assesses, at ¢ach reponting date, whether here is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annuel impaitem testing for an assel is

twired, the Comp i the asset’s recoverable amount. An asser’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cesh-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amound is detennined for an individual asses, unless the assel does not generale cash inflows That are largely independent of those from other
assets or Company's of assels. When The ¢anying amonnt of an asset or CGU ds its vrabl t, the asset is considered impaired and is written down Io its recoverable
amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated Future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-lax discowd rate that reflests current marked assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific fo the asset. In deteemiming fair value less costs af disposal, recent markel transaclions are taken inlo account. If o such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

Pravisicns

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obfipation as a result of past event and it is probable thal an outflow of resources will be required 10 senle the obligation, n
respect of which a reliable estimate can be moade, If the effect of time valne of maney is material, provisions are discounted nsing a pre-tax rate thai reflects when appropriste, the risks
specific 10 the liability.

Retirement nod other employee benefits
{i) Retirement benefil in the fonn of provident fund is a defined contvibution scl The G ¥ has no obligatiow, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The

Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employes rendsrs the related service. If the contribution payable wo the scheme for service
received befare the balance sheet dale exceeds the cantriburion already paid, the deficit payable 10 the sch is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution atresdy paid, IF
the conribution already paid exceeds the contribution due far services received betore 1lie Uadance shees date, 1lien excess is recognized as an asset to the extent thai the pre-payment will

lead to, for axample, a reduction in future peyment or & cash refund.

{ii) Gratuity is a defined benefil plan and provision is being made on the basis of actarial valuation carricd out by an independent actuary at the year end using projected unit eredit
methed, and is contriburcd to the Geatuity fund managed by the Life insurance Corporation of India.

Remeasurements. somprising of acivarial gains aud Josses, The effect of the assel ceiling, excluding included in net i on the net defined benefit liabiliny and the return on

plan assets (eacludi included in et i on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with » corresponding debit or credit to
retained eamings l]lrough QC] in the period in which they oecur. Remeasuremens are not reclnssified 10 profiy or loss jn subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recagnised in profit oc loss on the earlier of:

» The date of the plan amendnvent or curtailment, and

> The dase that 1he Company recognises relaizd restructuring cesis

Met fnterest is calewlated by applying the discoun rare ta the net defined benefin liability ar asser. The O
an expense in the stateraent ol profit and loss:

P Service cosls comprisiag cumvenl service cosls, past-service sosts, gains and bosses on curtailments and non—outing settbements; and
W Nei interest expense ar income

the fallowing chanpges in the nel defined benefit obligetion &s

HEY -1 b

Compensated Absences
Accumulated leave which is expected o be utilized within (he next 12 months, is weated as-short-term employee benefit, The Company measuces the expected cost of such absences as
the additional amouns that it expects to pay as a resull of the unused enlitlemnent thal has accumulated al the reporting dale.

The Company breats lated leave expacted to be carvicd forward beyond bwelve months, as loag-term emplovee benefit for measurement purposes. Such lang-term compensated
absences are provided for based on the actuarial valustion using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actunrial gainsflosses are immediately taken to statement of Profit and
Loss in the pericd in which they occur. The Company presents the entire leave a3 & current Liabilivy in the balance sheel, since it does not have an unconditional tight to defer its
setdement for 12 months after the reparnting date.
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0. Fimancial instruments
A financial iz any coniract thay gives rise 1o a financial asse1 af one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another enlity.

Financial asscta

Initial recognition and measurement

All Tinancial assets are recopnised Enitially at fait volue plus, in the case of financial assets ne! recorded at Fuir vale through profit or logs, imnsaction costs that are atteibutabie fo the
sequisition of the financial assel. Purchases or sales of financial assers that require delivery of assets within a fime frame established by regulatien or conventicn in the markel place
{regular way rades) are recognised on the wrade dalg, i.c., the dale that the Company commiis 1o purchase or sel] the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For pumnses of subsequent measusemen. financial assets are classified in four catepories:
P Debt instruments a1 gmonised cost

P Delbit instruments at fair value through erber comprehensive § {FVYTOCI)
- Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
¥ Equity instruments measured at fair value through ofher comprehensive i (FVTOC)

Debt ingtruments al amorfised cost

A “debi instrument” is measured ar vhe amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
4) The assel is held within a bustress nodel whose obiiechive i to hold assets for collesting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractusl terms of the asset give risc on specified dates (o cash flows that ane sakly payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal ding
After initial t, such financial assets are subscqueatly measured at amortised cost using the sffective i rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is caleulated by 1sking imo
account any discount or premium on acquisitien and fees or costs thal are an integral part of e EIR. The EIR amortisatian is included in fi i in the profit or lass. The losses

arising from impaisment are recognised in the profic ar boss.

Debt Instrgment at FYTOC!

A “debt instrument” is classified as st the FYTOCH if both of the following criteria ase met:

8) The objective of the business made] is achieved both by collecting cantractual cash flows and selling the inancial asseis, and

b The asset’s contructual cash fows sepresent SFPI

Debt instruments ineluded within the FYTOCI caiegory arc measured initially as well 23 av each reponing daie & fair value. Fair value movements are reepgnized in the ather
comprebiensive income [OCT).

Debt instrumgnt at FYTTL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments, Any debt instrument, which does noy meet the eriteria for categorization as a1 amortized cost or as FYTOCY, is classified as a1 FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt at, which ctherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOC] criteria, as at FYTPL, However, such election is allowed only il
doing 5o reduces or eliminales a measurement or recognition inconsistency (refemed to as *accounting mismatch”). The Company has not designaied any debr instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt insruments included within the FVTPL category are measuved at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of Frofil and Loss.

Equity Investments

All equity invesments in scope of Ind AS 109 are mensured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideratian recogmised by an acquirer in a

business combination o which Ind AS103 applics are clnssified as at FYTPL. For all other equity insttuments. the Compaiy may make an irmevocable election fo presem in other
hensive i b hanges in the fair value, The Company makes suchi election on an i by-instrument besis. The classification is made on initial recognition

and irs imevocakle.

If the Campany decides 1o elassify an equity instrument as at FYTOCI, then abl faic value changes on the i luding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no
recysling of the amounts fiom OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may fer the ative pain or loss within equity.
Equity instruments inch:ded within the FYTPL caregory ave measured a1 Fair value with all ¢h e gnized in the of Profic and Loss.
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Derecognltlon

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of & financial nsset or part of a Company of similar financial assess} is primarily derecopnised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance
shees) when:

» The riphts to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

¥ The Company has wansferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the seccived cash Oows in full without material delay to g thisd paﬂy
under a ‘pass-through” amangenent; and cither (a) the Company has transferved substantially all the risks and resvards of the asset, er {b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substanially atf she risks and newards of the assey, but has transferved contral of the assed.

When the Company has transferred iis rights o receive cash Tlows fmm an asset or has d imo 1 pass-thyough L it eval ifemd to what extent it has retained the risks
and rewards af ownership. When it has neither fereed mor bstaially 51l of the risks and rewards of the nsset nor transferred comro! of the asset, the Company continues
to recoanise the ransferred asset 1o ahe exient of the Company's ing inval In hat case. 1he Company also recognises an associated [iability. The transferred asset and the

associated liability are measured on a hasis thar reflects the riphts and ahlu,nm:ns thai the Company has retained.

Confinuing involvement that takes the form of & guarantes aver the ferred asset is d at the lower of the criginal carrying, amount of the asser and the maximum amount of
tderation that the Company ¢ould be required to repav,

Impairment of finoncial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies eapected credit loss (ECLY model for mensuremant and recopnition of impairment loss an the financial assets. The Company

follows *simplified approach’ for recogniticn of impaiment loss allowance on Trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach docs nat require e Company to mwack changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impafrment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting dass, right from its inftial recognition,

For recognition of impairment Toss on other financial assets and risk cxposure, the Company delcnnines shat whether there has been a sipnificant increase in the eredit risk since initial
vecognition. W credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-mooth ECL is used to provide for impai loss. H . if credit risk has fucreased significantly, fifefime ECL is used.
I, in a sabsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no langer 2 significant increase in credi risk singe fnifal recognition, then the entity reverts 1o
recopnising impairment Joss allowance based en {2-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expecied eredit losses resulting from all passible defhult events over the expected life of & financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which resulls from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL Is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due io the Company in dance with the and all the cash flows that the entity ¢xpects to recsive (i.c., all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR, When estimating the ¢ash flows, an enfity is required to consider:

ok PO 1)

P All conractual teoms of the fi

g prepayment, extension, call and similar oprions) over the expected life of the finangial instrunent. However, in rare cases

when the expected Jife of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is requited to use the remaining ! term oF the Nnancial instrument
¥ Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit ent that are inlegeal to the conwaciual 12mms
ECL impairment lass allowance (or I) recognized during the period is recognized as i { exnp imthe of peofit and loss (P&L). This armount is refleeted under the

bead *aiher expenses® in the statement of Profit and Lass.

Fiaaneial liabilities

Initial recogmition and measurement

Financial lisbiliries are elassified, ot initizl recognition, as financial [fabiitics at Fair value twough profit or loss, loans and bomowings, made and other pagables, Al financial liabilides
are meognised initially at fair volue a.ﬂd in the case of loans and hm'rmvmy and paynbles, net of directly attribunable ian costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include rade
and other payables, loans and L ps including cash credit and fi

Subsequent measurement
The nl of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below;

Finaneial liahilitles at fair valwe through proflt or loss

Financial Liabilities nt Fnir value through profit or loss include Bnancial liahiliries held for trading and financial tabilitics designated upon initial recognition as at fair value throuph probit
or loss. Fipancial Habilities are classified as beld for trading if they ore i 1 for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge velationships as defined by nd AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives ane also
classified as held for trading unless they are desipnated as effective hedging instruments.

CGains or losses on liahilities held for urading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial linhilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through prafit or lass are desigmated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the critecia in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL. fair value pains/ Josses anributable 1o changes in oww credit sk are recognized in OCL. These gains loss are not subsequently transfemed
ta P&L, Howevey, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain er loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
The Company has nof designated any financial liability as at fair value through Statement of profit and loss.

Derccognilion

A financial Nigbility is derecognised when the obligation under che Tiabiliry is discharged or lled or expires. When an exisiing financial LEability is replaced by ancther from the same
lender on substantially different tevms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantinlly nodified, such an exchange or medificatian is treated as the derecognition of the original
liahiliry and 1he recopnition of a new liability, The difference in the respesiive caying amounts is tecopnised in the statement of prafit or loss.
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. Degivative inancial instruments
The Company uses dedvaive financial insmaments, such a5 forward curmengy coniraets (0 hedpe s foreign cutrency risks respectively, Such derivative finangial instruments are infrially
recognised al fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measvred at fair value. Derivatives are camied as financial assels when the fair
value is positive and as financinl labilities when the Eair value is negative.
Any gains or Losses arising from changes in the Fair valus of derivatives nre taken direetly 10 peofil or loss,

5. Fair Value measurement
The C {i | insoruments, such as, derivatives at fair value 81 each balance sheet date.
Fair \mlwe is lhe price thal would be seceived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly Iransaction & market parti
mieasuremeni is based oo the presumption thai the transaciion to sell the asset or iransfer the lability takes place either:
» Inthz principal macket for the nsset or liability, or
¥ [o the absence of a peineipal market, in the most advaniageous market for the asset or liability

ipants at the date, The fair valur

The principal or B most advanbgeous market must be ibhe by the C

]

The fair value of an assel or a liability is measured wsing the assumprions thar marker panticipants would use when pricing the asset or liability, ing that market particig ael in
their economic best inferesl.

A, fair value of a von-fi ial asset rakes inro aceaunt 2 market participant’s ability to penerae econamic bensfits by using the axset in its highest and best use er by selling
it 1o onother market panicipant that would use dhe asset in its highest and besi use,

The Company uses valugtion technigues that ace appropriate in the circumsiances and for which suffietent dala are available 10 measuse fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inpuis and minimising the use of imobservable inputs.

All asseds and liabilities For which fair value is measured er disclosed in the Ginancial siatements are categorised within the fair value i by, described as follows, based on the lowest
Tevel inpul that is significant ta the ir value measurcroen as a whele:
» Level 1 — Quoied (unadjusizd) market prices in zctive markets for idemical assets or [Rabilinies

¥ Level 2 — Valoavion rechnbques for which the lowest level inpug tha is sipnifican o the fair vilue is directly or indirecaly cheervable
P Level 3 -— Valuation technigues fot which the Jowest level impat that is significant to the Tair value is unpbservable
For assets and liabilitiss that arc recognised in the financial stat on a recurring basis, the Company determings wheth fers have d between levels in the hicrarchy by

re-assessing categorisatian (based on the Lowest level input that is sipnificant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of cach neperting pedod.

The Company’s menagement delermines the policies and p d for ing fair value , such s derivative instruments and unqueted fnancial assers measured a1 fair
valuz,

Al eath reparting date, the managément analyses the movements in the values of agsets and ligbilities which are required 10 be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company™s
accaunting policies. The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liabilicy wirh relevant external sources to deteomine whether the change s hi

For the purpese of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 1 namre, characteristics and risks of the assct or lizbility and the
level of the fair valug hicrarchy a5 cuplained above,

. Confingent liability
A contingent liability is » possible obligation that arises from past events whose exisience will be confimmed by the o non of one or mare uncertain futuse events
beyond the ¢enicel of (he Company or a p bligation thal is nat gnised b it is not1 probable that an oulflew of rescurces will be required to seitle the cbligalion. A
contingene linbility also anses in extrtmely rare cases, where there is a linbility thay cannol be recogmsed because it cannot be 1 refiably. The Company does not recognise a
contingent liabiliny but discl its in the fi ial unless the prolability of ouiflow of i5 remote.

Provisions and contingen liabilities are reviewed at cach balance sheet date,

u, Scgmemt Reporting
Operating segmenis are reporied in 6 wanner consistent with the internal rqmrllnj, provided ID the Board of Directors identified as chlefopmllng decision-maker (CODW)L The CODM

is responsible for allocating resources and assessing prrformance of the of B are organised based on type of services delivered or provided, Segment revenue
ardsing from third parly customers is reporicd on the same basis as revenue in the ilanda]une Ind AS linaneial ite. Seg vesults represenl profils before unallocated corporale
expenses and taxes. “Unalloeared Corporare Exp " inclode exp vhat relate 10 costs anrbutable to the Company 85 a whale and are not atribwable 1o segments,

v. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalemt in the batance sheet comprise cash ar banks and on hand and short-term deposiis with an originol ity af three menths or less, which are subject 10 an
insigmificant risk of changes in value,
Far the purpose of the statement of cash Mows. cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short+tenm deposits, as defined above as they are considered an integral part of the
Company's cash

w. Dividend Distributions

The Company mognlses a liability to make cash to cquity holders of the parent when the distribusion is aulhnnsnd and the distribution is no Ionger at the diseretion of the Campany. As
per the corporate laws in Indin, o distributon is authorised when i1 is approved by the shareholders, A corresy 14 is ised directly in equity,

B
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% Earnings per share
Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net prafit or [oss (aficr rx) for Ihe year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Dilutcd camings per share when applicable are calsulated by dividing the net profil or loss {afler tax) for (he year altributable to equity shareholders by the weiphted avemge number ﬂl‘
cquity shares which would be issued en the conversion of all the dilutive poteatial equity shares inlo equity shares. Dilutive patential equity shares when applicable are d
o5 of the beginning of the period, unless they have been {ssued a1 4 tater dime.

P | New and amended Standard

The Ministry of Corpocate Alfairs has notified ©
effective from April 01, 2022

{i}Onevous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling » Coniract - Amendments te Ind AS 37

An onerons contract §s & contract wnder which the unaveidable of ing the obligations under the contrzet costs (i.c., the cosis thal the Comgpany canmot avoid because i has the

panics {Indian A ing Standard) Amendment Rules 2022 dated March 23, 2022, te amend the following Ind AS which arg

) exceed the ie: benefits expected to be received under i1,
The amendmenis specify tha when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making, an enlity needs 10 include costs that relate directly 1o a contracl to provide goods or services
including both incremental costs {e.g., the costs of direct Tabour and maserials) and an allocation of eosts direcaly related to activities (e.g., depreciarien of equipment used w

ful il the contact and costs of contract management and supervision). Gemeral and ndministrlive costs do not relale directly to a contract and are excloded unless they ere explicitly
chargeable ta the counterparty under the contract.

The amendments are applicable for annval reporting periads bepinning on or afier the | April 2032 This amendment had no impsct on the dalone financial s of the

Company,

[ilyReferenee 1o the Conceptual Framewark — Amendments o bod A5 [03

The amendmenis replaced (he reference o the ICAIs “Fr. rk For the Prepararion and P itn of Financial 8 under Indian Accounting Standards™ with the ref: ]

the “Cangeptual Framework s Firancéal Reponing under Indian Accounting Sizndard™ without sipgmificantly changing is requirements.

The amendmenis also added an pticn to the recognition principle of Ind AS 103 Business Cowbinalions to aveid the issue of potential ‘day 2° gains or losses ansing for liabilities

and eonungmt liabilities. dhat wwld be within the scape of Ind A% 37 Provisions, Conlingent Liabilities and Contingent Assers ar Appendix C, Levies, of ind AS 37, if incnred
y. The il ities 10 apply the eriterin in Ind AS 37 or Appendix C, Levies, of Ind AS 37, respectively, instead of the Conceptaal Framework, to detemmine

hether a pr!scnl ligati eulsts a1 the acquisiticn date.

The amendments alsa add a new paragraph 10 IFRS 3 to clarify that consingent assets do not qualify for recopmition at (he acquisition dale,

In accordance with the trangitienal provisions, the Company applics the d prospectively, i.e.. 10 buginess combinations occwrring after the brginning of the annual reporting

period in which it firsr applies the wendrnems {the date ol’mmal application).

These amendments had no impact on e standalone fi 1 of the Company as there were no contingen assers, labilities ar contingent Liabifitics within the scope of these

amendments that arese during the pertod.

{iii} Froperty. Plant and Equipment; Proceeds befure Inlended Use - A ments to [nd AS 16

The d modificd paragraph 17(¢) of Ind AS 16 to clarify that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall nat be recopnised in the profit
or loss bul deducizd from the direcily aftributable costs cansidered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipiment,

The amendments are ¢flective for annual reporting periods beginning on ar after | Al 2022. These amendments had no impact on the standatone financial statements of the Company
5 there werg no snfes of such itenys produced by propenty, plant and equipmen made available for use on or after the beginning of the carlics: period presented.

{i¥] Ind AS 101 First-Hime Adoption of Indinn Ace ing Standards — Subsidiary a3 n first-time ndopter

The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply the exemption in paragraph D16(a) of Ind AS 101 to measure cumulative translation differences for all foreign aperatinns in its
financial statements using the amounts reported by the parent, based on the parent’s date of tansition te Ind AS, if no adjustmenis were made For consolidation procedurcs and for the
effecis of the business combination in which the parent acquired the subsidiary, This dment iis also available 10 an assecdate or jeint venturs that uses exemplion in paragraph D 16(a)
of Ind A5 101,

The amendments are sifective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afier 1 April 2022 but do not apghy to the Company as it is nat a first-tima adopter.

{vilod AS 109 Financlal Instruments — Fecs in the "1D per cent’ teat for derecognition of Anancial liabibitTes

The amendment clarifies the fecs that an entity includes when ing whether the terms af a new or modificd Onancial liabitily are substantially differem from the teoms of the original
fnancial liability. These fees include only thase paid or reccived between the borwower and the lender, including (ess paid or received by either the bovrower or lender on the other’s
behall.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Company applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which he entity first applics the amendment {the date of initial applivation). These ! had no impact on the Standalone financil of the Company as there
were ne modifieations of the Companiss' financial instruments during the year.

{vi)ind AS 41 Agriculiure = Taxation in fair value measuremenls

The amendment the requi in paragraph 22 of Ind AS 41 thay enities exclude cash flows (or taxation when measuring the fair value of assets within the scope of Ind AS
4l
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning an o after | April 2022, The amendments ind no impac on the Sizndalene Gnancinl of the Company as

it did po1 have assets in scope of LAS 41 as a1 the reparting date.




DEE Development Engineers Limited
Notea to the standalone financial stafements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

22

Standards issued but not yet cllective

The Ministry of Corparate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian A ing Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 daied 31 March 2023 to amend the fallowing Ind A5 which are
effective from 01 April 2023,

(i) Definltion of Accounting EllTrlmm Amendments to Ind AS B

The d ¢larify the distinctien b hanpes in 2 el and changes in ing policies and the ion of ervars. It has also been ¢larified how entitics use
measurement techniques nd inputs 1o develop acc

The amendmenis are effective for annual reporting pcrluds beginning oo or alter 1 April 2023 and apply 10 changes in ing policies and changes in accounting estimates that ocour
o ot gfter the start of that pedad.

The dments are nol expected (o have a material impact on the Company's financial

(i) Distlosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS |

The amendments aim (a help entities provid) ing policy discl that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entitics to disclose their *significant’ accounting policies
with 3 requirement to disclose their "material® acoounting policies and adding goidance on how eniities apply the concepl of materiality in making decisions abow accounting policy
disclosures.

The amendments to Ind AS 1 are spplicable for annual periods beginning on or after | Apoi 2023. Consequenticl amendments have been made fn Ind AS 107,

The Company is currently revisiting their secounting palicy information disclosures (o ensuce istency with the Jed requirements,

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Asseds and Linbilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12 °
The amendmenis nesyow the scope of the initial necognition exception under fnd AS 12, so that it no lanper applies 1o ransactions that give rise to equal 1axable and deduetible emporary
differsnces,

The amendments shauld be applied 1o wansactions that occur on or after the beginning of the carliest comparative period p i. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest
ive perod p i, a deferred tax asset (pmvldi:d |hat suﬂ' cnent raxable pm't is avmla!ﬂe) and a deferred tax liability should also be ngcognised for all deductible and taxable
y diffe iated wilh leases and & g obligations. Consequential amendments have bee made {o Ind AS 101. The amendments to Ind AS 12 are applicable

Tor annual periods beginning on or afier 1 April 2023,
The Company is currently assassing the tmpaet of the amendments.




DEE Development Engincers Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Ampnnt in INH Lacs)
3 Property, plant and equipment
Particutars Freehald land Buildings  Furniturc & PMam & Electrical Offike Muotor vehicles Computers and Ropeway Roads Moulds & dies  Hydraolic Tatal Capital works
fitings hinery installationsand  equiy data processing  Structure warks and in- progress
equipment cquipment pipelines

Gross block )
Asat 01 April 2021 2,598,135 788588 578.88 1567536 851.21 134.12 674.98 654,24 37.39 125.28 0294 157.94 3007384 144,80
Additions - 142.05 117,10 124342 46.52 79 3464 10230 - - - - 2,003.72 745.93
Disposalimansfer . - - {18.75) (12.29) {0.50) {16.84) (16.72) - - - - (75.35) (464.25)
As at 31 March 2032 2.558.15 8,330.90 70598 16,590.58 BES.d44 140.51 59276 740,32 .9 125,18 702.94 157.94 32,008.21 426,48
Addirions 431.72 1,140.24 133.21 2.545.67 142.58 196,35 12,50 L8065 - 60,84 - - 4,965.76 1.219.87
Disposul/ransier - {37.79) {13.05) {1.26) - {18.71) {47.56) (68.54} - - - - {207.17) {1,387.5%)
As at M March 2023 303187 9.413.10 B26.14 19,434.99 1,028.02 22815 867.72 852,13 3133 166.12 702.94 157,94 36,766.80 25851
Accumalated depreciation
Asg at 01 April 2021 - [.513.5% 32311 542371 508.54 94,78 322,93 394.89 12.84 67.7% 21264 £6,61 9107.23 -
Charge for the year (zefer note 24) - 37814 60.95 1,258.58 97RO 1264 71.60 115,79 2.66 13.55 T0.65 1312 1,100.01 -
Disposal - - - (21.3%) (1130 {0.34) {7.50) 113.35} - - - - (53.85) -
As ot 31 March 2022 - 1.895.53 .16 6.660.92 59504 L0748 293.03 49733 15.50 81.34 34332 79.13 11,053.38 -
Charge for 1he year {refer note 24) - 348.37 75.07 1,394.82 79.13 13.01 B2.08 122,54 2,66 13.58 66,33 13.04 221155 -
Dispasal - (L)) (10.75) 0199 - {17.343 {39.01} 63.12) - - - - _[138.83) -
As a1 3 March 2023 - _2,237.86 447,50 B,054.65 674.17 10015 436.10 557.17 18.16 94,92 018,65 n.77 13,126.10 -
Net Black:
As at 31 March 2022 2,598.15 643437 Ina 10.229.66 290.40 3.0 29078 24299 21.89 11.94 359,62 4.2 20,954.43 426,48
As at 31 Morch 2023 3,031.87 1,175.53 37864 1133031 35385 125.00 431.62 20496 1923 91.20 293,29 6517 23.540.70 258.81
Noten:
i On mansiton to Ind AS (i.e. | April 2015), he Company has clected 10 continue willf the camying value of all prop plant and equig d as per previcus GAAP and use dhar camying value as the d d gost of property, plant and equip

1) Capiral work-in-progress
Capital workin progress is comprised of expendifure on buikdings under course of construction in respect of factory buildings and expenditure on plam ond machinery,

ili) Property plant and equipment pledped as seeurity

Refier note 11(A) and 11{B} for information on property, plant and equipment pledued 25 security for b ings by the Company.

iv) Assers lying widh thicd parties

Plant and machioery includes gross Block of INR Nil, net block of INR Nil { 31 March 2022: pross black of INR. 97,88 lacs, net block of INR 3428 lacs) tying with third paries.

v) Contractual abligations
Refer note 32(A) for discl of 1 i for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

viy Capitalised borrowing cost
Nol ing cost are capitalised during the cument year and previous year.

s

vii) Asse1s held in the name of the Company .
The tille deeds of all immovable propertics (i.e, land and building) are held in the name of the Campany a5 at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,




vil) Capital work in progress {CW1P) Ageing Schedule

As at M March 2023

Amount in CWIP for 2 period of

Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More thaa 3 years Tetal

TNR Jacs INR Jacs INR Jaes INR lacs INR lncs.
Frojects in progresséd 258.81 - - - 258.91
Projects temporacily suspended - - . - .
Toral 258.81 - - - - 358.81

As ar 31 Maxeh 2022

Amountin CWIP for 2 period of

Leas tham 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More 1than 3 yvears Total

IME. Lacs. MR lacs MR lacs INR lues INR loes
Prajects in progressd 358.39 23.10 44,99 - 426.48
Projects wmporarily suspended - - - - -
Toral 358,39 210 44.99 - 426,43

¥ There are no projects where activity has been suspended. Also there are na projects as on the reponing dat where completion is overdug or which has exceeded cost as compared 1o its original plan,




DEE Development Engineers Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amount In INR Lacs)

4 Intangible assets

Particulars Software Total
Gross block
As at T April 2021 634,52 634,52
Additions 2376 23.76
Dispasal {0.24) {0.24)
As at 3] March 2022 658.04 658.04
Additions 16926 169.26
Disposal {52.00) (52.00)
As at 3] March 2023 775.30 77530
Accumulaied Amortisation
As at [ April 2021 414.46 414.46
Charge for the year (refer note 24) 80.70 ' 60.70
Disposal {0.20} {0.20)
As at 31 March 2022 474.96 414,96
. Charpe for the year (refer note 24) 88.47 8847
Dispasal {47.53} {47.53)
As at 31 March 2023 515,90 515.90
Net Block:
As at 31 March 2022 183.08 183,08
As at 31 March 2023 259.40 259.40

Note to the Inlangiblc nssets:
On transition 10 Ind AS (i, | April 2015), the Company has elecied 1o continue with Lhe carTying value of all intangible assets measured as
per previous GAAFP and use that canrying value as the deemed cost of imangible assets.

——nemmmm——-—This page has been intentionaliy lefl blank:




DEE Development Engineers Limited

Nates (¢ the {alone Bnancinl 15 Fer the year ended 31 Morch 2023
{Amountin INR Lnes)
5 Ipvestments
i cu
Asnt Asat

Partlculars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Investmenis at cosls
Unquoted:

Inver ment {b equity shares of subsidiary companies

&. In Malwa Power Private Limited

« 122,089,680 {31 March 2022; 122,09,680) equity shares of INR 10/~ cach Fulby naid up

b. 1ni Dee Pabricam Tndia Private Limited
+60,00,000 (31 March 2022:90,00,000) equity shares of INR 10/- each fully paid up

¢ In Dee Piping Systems Thailand Co. Lid #
. 4.96.63.300 (31 March 2022+ 496 63,300 ) equity shares of THE 5/- each THR fully paid up

d. In Awil Knshan Bansn] Foundation®

- 10000 31 March 2022 10,000} equity shares of INE 104 cach fulky paid up

Tatul investments

Apgrepate amount of unguoted i

# The Ci

hat made

is i initial stage of i1s operation and therafore it is inourring losses, which are envieaged. Based on ihe fulure |

the subsidiary

t in u1s subsidiary "Dee Piping Systems Thailand Co., Ltd* o have wider morket spread and overall g
ingsy plans and A ji

d the

897 80 857.80
S00.00 900,00
5021.32 5021.32
1.0 1.00
6301 682012
6,820.12 652012

P

*The C

iy will be profitable in future years. The C
flow method and has cencluded that there is no img

&  Finnneisl assets

¥ has

ofits i

ity of iLs

Laker )

rowah of group. The subsidiary campany
as approved by the Board of Directors,
luding loans and interes thereon) considerning discounted cash

1in its wholly avwned subsidiary. which is a non profit making campany formed under the provisions of'section & of lhe Companies Act. 2013

{A) Trade receivables
Current
Asal As nt

Partisulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecored, considered good uniess siated otherwise

Trade receivables 13,180.4% 12,266.90
Trade receivables from relatzd pasies (refer note 311(C) £29.07 -
Trade receivables - -
Total receivahles 13,675.56 12,766.90

—— e —am

_No wade or piher reveivable sre due rem directars or other officers of the Company cither severaily of joimly with any other person. Mor any 1rada or other receivable are dug from firms or
private companies, respectively in which any dirscioe 13 a partner, a dicscior or a mesnber other than those disclosed in pote 31

-For 12rens and conditions relating to refated party receranbles, refer note 31

Ttade receivables are non-interest bearing and ase generally en temms of 30 10 180 days.

Trade receivables Ageing Schedu)
As at 31 Mnrch 2023
Owisinnding for lolowing periods fren due date of payment
Pariiculars Current but| less than & -3 years More than 3 Tota)
not due Manths years

Und[sputed
- Congidered good 11,306.84 1,547 00 305.10 3571 2064 126 13,639.56
- Significant increase in sredil sk - - - - - - .
- Credit impaired - . . - . - .
Disputed
- Considered pood . - - . - - 40.00 40.00
- Significant increase m credil risk - - - - - - -
= Credit impaired - - - . - - .

TOTAL ] 11306840 1,947.00 | 305,19 | 559 | 21,64 | 43.26 | 13,670.56
As at 31 March 2022

CQuist:nding Tor foflowing periods from duoe dale of payment
Parliculars Currentbhut | Lessthan & | 6 months -1 year 2-3years |Morethon 3 Total
not dae Mantha yenrs

Undisputed
« Considered good 9.735.80 2,03550 304 .87 2164 421.02 - 12,521.23
- Significant increase in eredin Fsk - - - - - - .
- Credit empaired - - - - - - .
Mspured
- Conmdered pocd . - - - - 24567 24567
- Significant sncrease sn credil nsk - - - - - - .
+ Credit impatred - - - - - - -

JOTAL [ o7asen] 20389010 30487 1 21.64 | 423,00 [ 24567 | 12,6600




DEE Development Engineers Limited
Motz 1o the standnlane finamein! stntements For the yeor ended 31 March 2023

{Amount in INR Lacs)

By Loaps

[im]

D

{Unsecured, considered good ualess staied oiherwise)

Current

A at
31 Mnarch 2022

Asmt

Partirulars Al March 2023

Asat
3l March 2022

Asal
31 March 2023

Financial asse1s carvied al amortised cost:

Inter eorporate Joan to a relaled paniies (refer note 31(CY) 5.400.59 7,140.17

71.00 119.25

Total loans

% e

71,00 11935

i) The Company has not granted Joans during the current year to reloted pantics, where the schedule of repayment of principal and paymasnt of intesest has not been stipuloted. During the

Y]

A

d and litube 100% of the

pravious year, the Company hay granted |oans Io its subsidinries amounting fo INR 8,150.50 lacs (including intesest) which were repmy
oulstending.

i) Loans are noa derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable inierest income for the C and are

an

atl
changes in the credit risk of the coumerparties

] cosL. The carcying value may be affecied by

Cash and cash equivalenis
Corrent
Asa Asal
Parficulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash on hand 544 282
Balances with banks
Qn current accoums 2131 14.07
On cash credit accounls 15.63 0.86
Tatal cash and cash equivalenis A2.58 1335
Ouhier bank balances aiber than eash and cash equivalents
Current
i Asal Asat
Particulars 31 March 2023 20 Mnech 2023
Bank deposits with

- Criginal maburity faf more than 3 month but remaining maturity of* less then 12 months®
- Original maurity fer more than 3 month and remaining malority of morg than 12 months*

~Lesa! amount diselosed under other financial assets {refer note §{E))

Tolal odher bank balances

3.08001 2484 32
55577 762.93
3635.78 324723
(35511 {762.91}
3,050.0] 24840

* Daposits given as margin money acamst ran fund based facililes (better of credit, buyer's credit, bank yaaramee) and collateral security

As 31 3 March 2023, the Company has INR 1,896.00 lacs {31 Masch 2022: INR 1,169 49 lacs) of undrawn borrowing fcilities from varteus banks

Cash g1 banks eams interest a1 Aloaing eanes based on daily bank deposit rales Shod-tevn deposis are made far varying peciods of between one day and three months, depending an the

af the €

cash req y, and earn interesi at the respecve shor-term deposit mics

Chnnges in linhilities arising (rom Nasncioe nctivities
This section sete gut an analysis ofehanges in linbilities ansma fram financing activities For cach of the penods presented:

Buybnck af Lense linbilities Non current Current Total
\ equity shnres by Bareowing Borrowing (e=a+btctd)
Particulars (a} including current [H)]
maturilies ()
Asal | April 2021 - 25348 1874 .07 (3.00298 17,127.53
Cash Npws 15034049 {67 95) 591.82 1,658.40 Ba1LTN
Addition 5034 0281 - - 5.006.85
Fareizn exchanue adjustments - - - [10.24) {10.24)
Ieneres! expenses - M2 100 63 113283 1,852.78
Interest paid - . (100.63) 1,791.28) (1.891.91)
Transaciion cost adjustmenl . - 68.69 68.69
As ol 31 March 2022 . 172,66 2,461,589 18.66) 3% 21,396,093
Lease linbilities (n) Non current Curvenl Toial
3 Borrawing Borrowing [d=a+btc)
Particulars inelnding curpent {c)
mntorities (h)

Asat | April 2021 17266 246239 18,66).28 2139693
Cash flowa (16%.56) 634.09 499589 5351842
Additiom T3z 8% - - 1287
Foreipn exchange adjuziments - 0.81) (08N
Intercsl expanscs 65.20 41197 1,936.70 2433 87
Ingrest paid - {411 93) (1,909.25) {23212
“Transaction cosl adjusiment - - {46.65) [46.65)
Ne1 debn is oL 31 Maech 202 %05.17 314508 23,661,36 17.713.41




DEE Development Engineers
Notes 1o the standalonz [

Limited

for the year cnded 21 hlarch 2023

{E1  Qther finaaciol assets
{Unsecured considered sood unless sialed otherwisce)

{Amougt in INR Lacs)

Non-cyipgal Curre
Asal Asal Asnil Asal
Partiealars 30 March 2023 31 Mlarch 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Financial assets edassified nt nmortised cost:
Bank deposits with ini ity beyand 12 months* 55577 76293 . .
Interest receivoble 145715 89048 11.97 058
Secunity depesits 87 16 9.1 3743 1048
R ble from . - - 64968 -
Finaucial asscts classified at falr value throuch proM or loss:
Foreian sachange Eorward eontraces (reler nols below) . - - 57.72
Total oiher financial pssels 2,10008 1.732.68 699.14 69,18
* Dipposits given £s margin money against nen fund based facilities (leuter oferediy, buyes's credit, bank guarantec] and collateral securily
** R ble from ds reiphn and ciher charges rambursement
Notez
Derivalive i ts at fais velue through profit or loss reflect the posifive change in fair vatue of those fareign exchanpe forward conlracts that ore not desi d in hedge relationshi
but are. nevertheless, intended ta redice the level of fareign cummency risk for expecied sales and purchases.
Breakup of finoacial assets carvied al amorilsed cost
Non-Current Cucrent
. Asal Asat As at Asal
Pariculars 31 Morgh 2023 I pdarch 2002 3] Morch 2023 3] Mnreh 2022
Trade receivables (rafer note 6{A]) . - 11.579.56 12,766.90
Loans (refer nolo G{B1) $.400.99 7.140.72 TFLOO 1na.2s
Cash and cash eqvivalents (refer note 6{CN - - 4278 17.75
Qrher bank batonces (refer note G{DI) - - 3.080.01 248432
Qeher financial assels [refer note SHEY) 2,100.08 1,7132.68 699,14 59.18
10.501,07 SHT3AT JT.872.49 1§ 487.40
7 Other assets
Hop-current Cupreat
Asm As ) Asat Asat
Particulars 31 Mparch 2023 3N March 2032 31 Muorch 2023 3 March 2022
Unsecured considered £ood unless otherwise sinted
Capital advances B45.48 428 68 - -
Prepaid captnses 112.14 113.55 33831 349.85
Income 1ax vecoverable 147 347
Advance 10 suppliers - - 503,30 6354)
Exporl entitlemcnt receivable - - 19,95 383.51
Advanze to emplayees . - 24.30 12.55
Balance with governmend authoritics - - 401024 303501
Taotal other assels 957,62 £43 23 4,998.59 4,150.90,
&  Inventpries
{¥nlued st lower of cost and nel realizn e valuce)
Current
Asnt Asal
Particnlars 31 Mlarch 2023 M Mlarch 3022
Raw materinls (1o transh of IR 191,83 lcs (31 March 2022 INR. 678 96 laes))y 11,108.58 13,068 .89
Finished gonds 1,297.66 1,46,01
Traded goods 3180 30,14
Wodk in progress 1928 4,250.09
Stores and spares 2,051 57 1,628.23
Packing matecials 479,65 35804
Taial invenlories 241399.42 11,081 35
Duriny the year ended 31 Masch 2023, [INR Nil (31 March 2022: [NR. Nil) was recogrised as an gxpense for inventones camied ai net realisable volue.
5  Eaguity share caphial
1Ay Amhorised share capitaki®
Equity shares i pul nvertible preference shares
Prriiculars No.in facs INR tncy No.inlpcs INR lacs
As at | Apnil 2021 187.50 1,.875.00 62.50 625.00
Ingreasef {decrease) during the year R - - .
Azl 31 March 2022 182.50 181500 62,50 62500
Ineresss! (decrease) during the year - . - .
Asnt 31 Mareh 2023 187,50 V7500 62,50 615,00

* Spbsequent o the year ended 31

Ndarch 2023, the authorized equity share capital was increased fram 187 5 Jskhs equity shares of Rs. 10 each amoumiing to Rs. 1,875 lakhs to 637.5 lakha

equity shares of INR 10 each amouating ta Bs. 6,835 lakhs which was duly approved by the Board of dircetors ot ther mesting held on July 27, 2023, and by the sharchalders of the

Company by means of an ordinasy resolutian dated July 27, 2023




DEE Develapment Engingers Limibed
Notes 1o the Intone 1al 51 for the year ended 31 March 2023

)

(=]

L

(E)

M

[Amount in INE Lacs)

i) TYermsf rights attached 1o equity shares:

The Company has only one class af equity shares having par valug of INR 10 per share. Each sharcholder is entitled 1o one vote per share. The dividend except interim dividend propesed by
\he Board of Direttors is subject 1a the approval of the sharebelders in the ensuing Annwal Genersl Meeting. Tn the event of liquidatic af the C: the equity shareholders wall be
entitled ta receive the remaining assets of the Company after distibution of all prefesential ts, in proportion 1o their shareholding

i} Terms/ rights allached Lo preference shares
Each canvertible preference share has a par valug of INR 10 per share and is convertible af the opticn of the shoreholdes ino Equity shares of the Company. The preference shares rank
shead of'the equity shates in (he event of a liquidation. The Company has not 1ssued the prefarence share capital.

1ssved aod paid up equity share capital #

Particulars No.in Inca INR Incs

Fauity shares of INR 10 each issued, subacribed and fulky poid

At al 01 April 2021 15693 1,569.27
Inentasef (decreate) durinn the vear {refes note 103 {S0.85) (50849
Asat J1 March 2022 106,08 1.060.73
Increasef {deorcase] durmny the vear - -
As a1 3 March 2023 104.08 1.050.78
# The Board of Di atils ing held on September 7. 2023, had approved the bonus 12sue of four new equity share far gvery one share held on record date which was approved by

the shareholders by means of 2 special resaluion dated September 7, 2023, Through a Board resolution doted September 7, 2023, the Company has allotted 42,431,312 couity shares of
Rs.10 eath as bonus shares (o the exisling squity sharsholders of the C

Details of shareliolders holding more than 534 shares in the Company

Anar 3l BMarch 2023 Asat 31 Marcl 2032
Particutars No. in Ines 2% ol holding No, in Ins % of holding
Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal 79.28 TA.24% 79.28 74 4%
DDE Piping Companent Pyt Lid 15.07 14.20% 15.07 14.20%
Mrs. Ashima Bamsal 240 8.30%% 880 8.30%%
As per records of the Company, including ils register of sharcholders? bers and other deslaralions received from sharchald gnrding heneficial interest, the above sharsholding

represents bath 1egal and beneficial awnership of shares.

Agpregate nunber of cquity shares issurd as bonus, shares issued for considerstion olher than cash and shases bouuht back during the perind of five years immedialely preceding the
reporting date. (Also refer note 28 )

= Dusing the previons year, the Company has Juded the buyback of 5,084 BS1 equity shares ol face value of INR 10¢ cach t a price of INR 99 perequity share ("Buyback™) far an
aggregate amaunt of INR 5,034.04 lacs, as approved earlier by the Boeard of Direciors on May 07, 2021 and approval of shareholders through special resolution passed in extre ordinary
eeneral Meering dated Mav 08, 2021

Promoter shareholding :

Details of shares held by Promoters/Promoter Group
As at 31 March 2023

Na. of shares al the . No. of shares al .
S No. Promoter Name beginning of (he Chﬂg;:::mg the the end of ihe %s‘;:::nl * cl:::g;::nng
- year year
Equity sharos of INR 10 cach fully pad ~ Promater
Ms. Koishan Lalil Bansal 7937837 - 19.21.837 4.14% -
Pramoer Group
DDE Pipinge Component pyi Lid 1506555 - 15,06.555 14.20% .
Mrs. Ashima Bansal §.79,990 (o 8.79.980 8.30% -
Mr. Alw! Krishan Bansal 291326 (2,93.226) - 0.00%  {100.00%6)
Mrs, Shikha Bansa) 100 293,326 25142 277 193336.00%
Mrs. Shruli Angarwal 1a - 10 0,0001% -
Tatal 1.06,07.818 (1 1,06,07,808 100.00%
As at 31 March 2022
No. of shores nt the . No. of shares s X
§. No. Promoter Nante beginning of 1he Chaage duriag the the end of the % of Total % change during
yenr Shares the year
year year
Eguity shares of MR 10 each fully poid ~ Promoter
Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal 1927.237 - 19,22,837 74.74% -
Promoter Group
TIDE Piping Camponent pv Lid 14,93 811 12,744 15.06.555 14.20% 085%
Mrs. Ashima Bansal 8,759,950 . 8.79.990 8% -
Mr Al Krishan Bansal 293.320 . 293,326 271% -
Mrs Shikha Bansal 100 - 10D 0.0000% -
Mre. Shruty Apuareal 10 11} D004 -

Total _1,0595.074 12744 1060788 100.50%




DEE Development Engincers Limited
INotes 10 the standalone fi ial far the yenr ended 31 March 2023

apt in INR Lars

10

£

{B)

(D,

LY

Qiber equity

Particalars Asat Asat

3] March 2023 A Margh 2022
Seenrities premiom
Opening balange 1673093 16,7091
Increasef (decrease) during vhe year - .
Closing balance 16,730,93 16,730.92
General reserve
Qpening balance 4077.22 4.585.71
Tncreasef [decrease) during the yeard - (508 .49}
Closing balaneeg 4.077.22 407722
Caphal Redemption Reserve
Opening balance £08.49 -
Increasef (decrense) during thie yeard - S)R.49
Clasing balonce - 50849 50849
Retained carninps ’
Qpening belance 23,255.11 26.538.94
Add: Profit for the year 1.B58.54 £.23093
Diher compeehensive ingomed {loss) for the pear® [65.96) 1079
Less 2 Buvback of equity shares# - {4,525 55)
Closing batance 2504802 2325501
Tainl reserves 46, 364.73 44.571L.35

* The disagarepation of changzss in OCT by each type of reserves in eguity is disclesed i otz 27,

HBuyback of Equity shares

During the previous year, the Company has luded the buyback of 5,084,891 equity sharcs of Face value of INR 10/~ each a1 2 price ol RVR 99 per equity share (*Buybaek™) for an
aggreyate amount of INR 5,034.04 lacs, 25 approved carlier by the Board of Dhrectoss on May 07, 2021 and approval of sharcholiers through special lution passed in extra ondinary
general Mecting dmted May 08, 2021 Buyback was dong a4 recaed daig of May 08, X124 and the equiny shares bouzht back were extinguished on May 17, 2021. Totl cutllow of INR
5034.04 lacs had been utilised from the share capaial, general reserves and retained camuigs, m line with the regs under the Companiss Act 2013. Additionally. Capital Redemption
Reserve of INR 508,49 lacs {equivalent 10 nominal value ol the equity shares bought back) had been ereaed owt of retained asnings, in line with the requirement under the Companies Act
2013. Conzequent to extinguishmenl of shares so bought bark, the paid-up equity share capital had been reduced by INR 508,49 baea.

Nature and purpose of reserves @

Securities premiom
Securities premium reserve is used 10 record the premium on issue of shares. The Teserve ¢an be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuane of banus shares in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Agt, 2013,

Genern reserve )

Undsr the ersrwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through on aanual transfer of net income at o specified p e in d wilh applicable regulations. The
purpose of these transfers was 10 ensure thal i a dividend distribution in a given year is mare than 10% of whe paid-up capital of the Company for that year, then the 1otal dividend
distribution is less than the total disteibutable results far thot year, Consequent to intsodustion of Companics Act 2013, the requirement te mandatonly tansfer  specificd percentage of the
nel profit to peneral reserve has been withdrwn, H . the I previously fesred 10 the general sesenve can be ulilised only in zccordance with the specific requirements of
Cempanies Act, 2013,

Capital redemption reaerve

“The Capital redemption reserve has been created in & with pravision of the Companies AcL 2013 with respect 1o buy back of equity shares from the market during the previous
year
Retainrd earnings
Retained earnings ara the profitsAloss) thet the Campany has eamed/incurred Lill date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other disiributions paid 10 shorehelders, Reizined
ings include re Yoss 4 (gan) on defined benzfit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified o Statement of Profit and Loss.
Borrowines

Mon-current borrowings

Neon-current poriign Clurrenl mopurities
. A3 Al Asal Asnt Aaat

Particutars 3 March2023 33 March 2022 31 Mlarch 2023 31 March 2022
Secured
‘Term Loan
. From Banks {refer note (2} and (b} below) 2057.22 1.559.7% B30.18 7782
b. Vehicle Loan from Banks (refer nate () below) 1829 23.76 56.67 kL)

224013 1,648.55 o0 85 B14.4

Less current maturities of lang lerm borrowings disclosed
under current bosrowings - refer nobe [1{B) : b (906.85) (8la4)
Total non-curcent barrowines 3.240.13 1,648,588 - -




DEE Develrpmeat Engineers Limited
Nales tothe datane fi inl for the year ended 31 Muarch 2013

iAmoupl in INE Lacy)

(B3

Repavmeat Schedule of lone term barrewing : pon-correat porilon

Agat 31 Maggh 2023 Az at 3t Mprch 2022
Tenure Amount Remalning Amount Remaining
Parliculars repaynient repayment
Insinlments, Instalments
() 1 YR MCLR of 7.28% + Husiness Strategy Sprend June 2024 4500 | equal quarterly 12500 5 equal quernterly
["BSS') of 0.30% +Credit Risk premium ["CRPY) of inslalmenis instalments
DADY presently effeciively 7.95% p.o. (31 March 2022
.1 YR MCLR of 7.25% + BSS of 0.20% +CRP of 1 20% .
effectively 8.63% p.a. (refes note a)
i) 3 Monib T + 2.46% presently elfeetively 3.53% pon July, 2027 104953 14 equal quartedy - -
frefer note by ansealments
{in) | Year MCLR + 1%, proseatly 8.25% clfectively with October, 96239 31 equal maonthly 1.334.79 43 equal monihly
manthly resi (31 March 2022: 1 Year MCLR + 1%, = 2026 insmalkmaents instalments
8 285 effentively with mamhly rest ] [refer note a}
[iv) 8.35% to 10.15%, {31 March 2022 8.35% 10 10.13%.) June, 2027 12291 19-48 equal B3.76 1-20 equal
[Refer Nelz ¢) monthly inatnlmenis mombly
. — instalments
!Il-ﬂ].IJ 1.648.55

1} Secarily clanzes

2) Term loen al R 2,907.40 lacs (31 March 2022: INR 2.237.911acs) is seeured by way of
i) first pariepassw charge on the fixed assets and cusrent assets of the Piping Unit of the Company §i) exclusive charges on the current assets of the 8 MW pewer plant, of the Company
it} first pari-passu charges on the Land & Building sivated a1 plam Mo-) and 2, Talarpur Road, Disirict. Palwal iv} first pari-passu charge on the property situated at Jataln Road,
Tatarpur Industrial Area Meidapur, Tehsil & Distt. Palwal measuring 1,770.00s0. Yards, v} firet pari-passu charge on the fixed deposit of Rs. 350 Taes,
vi} second pasi-passu charge on the basis of equitah! page over yesidenbial house si | 31 1255, secter 14 Faridebad, ownership in the name of Mr. Krishan Lalic Bansal
[{Chairman and Managing Dicector) (area 500 Sq. yards)}, vit) firsl pori-paasu charges basis on et block of the 3 MW pawer unit a1 Gaddadhob, Tehsil - Abokar, Distt - Firozpur,
Punijab viii) first pari-passu ehange on the propenty situated ar Unit 11 and Unit 12, First Floor, Block Nor 11 SIDCO Elestronic Complex, Thin VI Ka Indwstrial Estate, Guedy, Chennai,
measuring 2,057 8q f. in the name of the Company

b

—

Further, term |oan are secured by [rrevocable erd unconditional, joint and several p ) g of the p and corporate guamnies of DEE Piping Components Private
Limited. ‘
¥ehicle laan

Term loan of INR 239 58 tacs (31 March 2022: INR 524 95 lacs) s secured by way of charges on vehncle owned by the Company againat which such lnan i obhuained.

[

it Loan Cavenanis:
“Term loan contain ceriain debl covenants selaling 10 security cover, debi-cquity ralio and cursent ratio, DebVERITDA catio, Total Outside LiabiliyTotal Net worth ond Adjusted
Tangible Net Warth e10., the Company hos satisficd all debi preseribed in the rerms of leem loan.

{iil The Company has not defaulied on any loans payable.
ivh All lerm loans availed by the Company have been utilised for the purpose for whith diey have been obained.

Current barrawinas

. At al Asal
Particulars M Magch 2033 31 March 2022
Secured
) Loans repavable on demands from banks (refer note a, b and ¢ below)
). Cash eredit 6,000.13 4.356.04
(iid Expon packing eredin - 699,35
{ii} Working capital demand loan 14,240.00 [1,775.11
b} Current matorities el leng-term debis (refernete 11(A}) 904,85 81434
Unsecured
Loans repavable on demands from banks (vefer nete a and b)

Buyer's credit from banks 342114 153087
Torat s XA
Notes:

i} Security clauses
a) The rate of interest hanks From & $0 % p.a. 1o 10.45% p.a. (March 31, 2022 - 595% pa.10 1280%pa)

) Cash credit facilities, Working Capital Demand Laan, Buyer credit and Expost Packing Credit of INR 20,240 13 lacs (31 March 2022; INR. 16,830.50 lacs) is secured by way of

#) first pari-passy charge on the lixed assels and current assets of the Piping Lin of the Company i) exclusive charges on the cumient assets of the 8 MW power plant, of the Company
Wi} first pari-passu eharges on the Land & Building siwated at plant Ne-! and 2, Tatzrpuer Road. Dustricl. Palwal ) fist pari-passu charge on the propeny situated a1 Jatola Rgad,
Tatarpur Indusirial Area Maidapur, Tehsil & Disit Falwal measuring | 730.005q. Yards. ) first pan-passu chasge on the fxed deposi of INR 350 lags,

i} second pari-passu chaspe an the basis of equilabl gage aver reaid | house si d al 1255, seqior 14 Faridabad, ownerstip in the name of Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal
[(Charman and Managing Director] fares S00 Sq yasds)], wii) first pari-passu charges basis on ne1 Black of the § MW power unil a1 Gaddadhob, Tehsil - Abohar, Disn - Firozpur,
Pumyab wiii) first pari-passu chacge on the propesty situated al Unit 1t and Lnit 2. Fiest Floor, Black No: 1L SIDCO Electronic Complex, Thiru V1 Ka [ndusireal Estate, Gundy, Chennal,
measuring 2,053 sq. . in the namie ofthe Company

%

-

Furiher, Cash credit and WCDL are sseured by Imevocable and unconditional, jomt and several \ of the p and
Camponents Private Limited.

P i1 of DEE Piping




DEE Develapment Enpineers Limited

Notes ta lhe fab

for the year ended 31 March 2023

[Amoant Lacs'

i) Detad of guarierly statement! retaras of cavvent sseis filed by the Company with banks and recancilialion with (he hooks of nccounts

‘31 Maech 2073
Quarter ended Naroe of the Bank Amgoot ns Amount a1 Ampun| of Reason (or materinl
per hooks (A) reported in the | difference (A= discrepancizs
quaticrly H)
relrnfsinfement
I ;| —
lnventory Bank of Indin
Tune-2022 19,933.51 19,181.19 75232 | Variance is on account of iming
September2022 19,950.19 18,651.69 1,208.50 |  difference in reporting ta the
Decentber-2022 21,9%0.35 23,036 50 893.55 | banks and routine ook closure
March-20234 2225970 24,458.29 (158,59  process afthe Company
Trade receivable
June-2022 1114085 1111589 3.95
September-2022 11,237.02 12,785.61 450.40
Decembes-2022 12,643.32 12,6%4.35 {51.03)
harch-2023" 13,679.56 13,113.06 566.50
* The Stalement submitted For quarter ended March 2023 15 based on ameunt as on March 29, 2023 n J with timeling for sut wath Bank. Hawever, amnunt sn column
B is based on starement at on March 29, 2023 adjusiad up to March 31, 2023
31 Mngcl 2072
Quarter ended Name of the Bank Amount as Amounl ns A L of R for material
per books (A} reported in the dilference discrzpancics
quarterly (A-B)
retara/sintement
Fi:il
Inveatary Bank of ladia
June-2021 17.009.00 16,895.00 114,00 | Variance s on account of iming
September-2021 18.910.00 19,083.00 (173.00)| differeace in reporting to the
December-2021 18,924.00 18,727.00 13700 | banksand reuline baok closure
Masch-2022* 21,081.00 20,852.00 125.00 process of the Company
Trade receivable
Tune-2021 15,509.00 16.465.00 {956.00
Seplamber-2021 11,965.00 11,889.00 6,00
Decembers2021 11,232.00 11,145.00 93.00
March-2022% 12,767.00 12,761.00 -
* The Statement submined for quaner ended Morch 2022 is based on moun as on March 25, 2022 in A with iimeline for spbmission with Bank, However, amount in eofumn
B is based on statement as on March 29, 2022 adjusted up 10 March 31,2022
Rreaknp of Finnucinl linbifities carried a1 smoriised cost
Nob-ctrrent Curgenl
Agal Asal Asal Asal
2 31 March 2023 3 March 2032
Non-current b ings ingluding current (Refer note 1I(AY) 124013 1.648 55 50635 81434
Lease liabilities {refer note 13) 713,82 21442 19284 5973
Current borrowings (vefer nole 1 14B)) - - 23,661.27 18,551.37
Tende payable (refer note 18) - - 11,258.02 B8,396.00
Qther Mpangial Habilities (refer note 12) - - 58542 12145
Total 2953

L.562.97 26,604,400 28,252.89




DEE Development Engineers Limiicd
Nates to lhe talame financial for the year ended 31 March 2013

(Ampugy ig INR Lace]

12 Other finaneial lobilities

Cucrent
Asal Asol
Particulars 3 March 2023 31 March 1012
Finarcial llabilities nt¢ fair valne throvah nrofi or boss:
Foripn enchanpe forward comracts 1741 -
Finaneinl liabililles corried st amortised costs
Creditors for eapital poods 39731 199.43
Interest acerued and rat due on borrowings 69.64 2220
Others payable®* 113.47 99.82
Total other financial Gabilitics T55.83 71485
Foreign exchange forward comiracls
While the Comparny entered into other fareijgn exchange forwoard ts with the intention of redusing the foreign ge risk of expected safes and purch these oiher contracts are
nat designated in bedge relationships and are 1 at fair value through profit or loss.
** [iability for customer claim
13 Lease Linbilities
MNon-gurrend Current
. Azt Asm Asal Asnt
Parficulars 31 Mareh 022
Lease Liabilitres {refezr none I8) 713,82 21442 19234 59.73
Tatal lease linbifitics 713.582 214.43 192.84 2573

14 et emolovee defined Lenefit abilities

Current

Parficulars . Asal - . Asat

Prowsions for gratuity 5817 437

Provisions For d at 17149 219

Talal employee defined benelin liabilities 220.66 18675
15 _Linhilitles for eurrept pax {nel) Current

Farticulars s I'A: 8|lm‘..'J As ot

Provision far cusrent tax (Net of advanes tax and TDS receivable) 291.77 4]

Tota! llnbfities For currenl tax 2177 3.41




DEE Development Engineers Limited

Notes to the intone Moaned for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023
{Amount in INK Lacth,
16 Other liabilities
Non-cnrrent Corrent
. - - As al Agal
. Purtieniars 31 March 2023 A1 dlarch 2022
Statntory duss - . 14443 119.87
Deferred revenue 0009 9292 - -
Contract liabilities~ Advance received from customers (refes note 19) - - 905.38 934,77
Toral other liabilities 209.09 9592 1,050.81 1,054.64
17 In¢ome ax
(A1 The major sompanents af intome tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 Mareh 2022 are: *
Statement af prafie and los:
. Year ended Year ended
Particulnrs 31 Morch 2023 31 March 2622
a b Incame tax expense reporied in fe siarement of profit ar tass
Current income inx:
£ = Current income 12x charge 79499 53695
- Adjustmen of tax velated 1o easliar vears {141} {29.84)
Deferred tax:
- Relating ko arigination and L of temparary differences (93.36) {186.30)
Income ax expense reporied in (he siatement of profid or Loss section: 695,22 32027
b) Other comprehensive Income section
Deferred tax refaled lo ibems reg 1 im other hensi section
Resmeasarement gain/{loss) on defined benefit plans 22.05 {3.63}
Income tax eharapd ta other eomprehensive insame 22.08 3,63
B R iliation of tax and the profil mullinlied by India"s domestic tax vate for 31 Margh 2023 and 31 March 2022
Particulaes At i Aswm
31 March 2013 31 March 2022
Accounling profit befare tan 2,554.76 1,551.20
Al lndia’s siatwlory meome tax rale of 25, 168% (34 March 2022: 25 168%) §42.99 39001
Tax effect of amounts which are nat deduetible {laxable) in ealeulnti ble incame:
Adiustment afinx related wo earlier years {341 {29.84)
Tax impaet of expenses not deductible under Income-tax Act, 1961 1863 20,62
Qthers 33.01 {60,923y
Income tax expense £96.22 320.27
Income lax d in the of profit and loss £06.32 320.27_
() Deferred tax
The balance comprises temparnry differences attribulable to:
M, in defemed 1ax bal
As at March 31, 2023
Asat Recogoised  Recogoired ABDl
31 March 2022 in statement in OCIL M March 2023
of prafit and
\nse
Pravisian for gmpl beneii 47.00 {11.25) 2205 $1.60
Delerred tax assels (A} 4700 {11,25) 22,05 57.80
Prapery. plam and equipment and other ible acses - d mpriement aad amonisauon [{R7a¥ 1)) 50.09 - (1.921.32)
Orthers {13.63) 56.52 - 42.89
Dalerred 1as linbilities {1B) {1.987.24) 106,61 - [1,380,63)
Net deferred 1ax ilinbilities) dA - B £1,940.24) 8536 205 (1,822 B3)
As at March 31, 2072 A Recognised  Recopnized Arat
0 March 121 {n stalement moct 31 March K2
ol profit and
lnss
Provision for employee benefits 56.83 (6.20) {3.63) 42.00
Deflerred tax assers fA) 56.83 {6.20) {2.63) 437.00
Praperty, plan and equipment and other i ible asscts « d impai and {2.168.76) 195.14 - [1L97381)
Cithers {11.52) {2.11) - (13.62)
Ceferred tax liabiities (B) {2,180.28) 193.03 - (1,987.24)
Net deferred rax (linbilities) (A - BY 12,123.45) 18494 {3.63] {1,940.24)

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities i and only il it has a legally enfareeable right to sef off curreni tax assets and cuent tax !abililics and ke doferred tax asscbs and defoaed tax

liahilities relate to income tnxes levied by the same tx authority.




DEE Develapment Engincers Linsited

MNotes to the stpndnalone fi il for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Amgunt in TNR Lacs)
18  Trade Pavables
Current
Asal As al
Particulars 3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade poyables
-total qutstanding dues of micro cnlerprses and smatl emerprises # 411.30 449 .86
-lotal gutstanding dues of creditars other thar micre enlerpnses and small enterprises * 10,846,712 T.046.14
Total irade payables 11.258.02 839600
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule QOuistanding far fallowing periods from due daie of payment
Asat 31 March 2023 Mot due  Less than [ ypear 1.2 years 2-3years Mo::;:;m 3 Tatal
Tatal ounanding dues of miero enterprises and amal) enterprises 0130 - - - 411.30
Tatal oymtanding durs of creditors other than miero enterprises and small 472.90 10,368.40 542 . .
enterpeises 1064672
Disputed dues of micr emerprises and tmall enterprises - - - - -
Disputed dues of ereditors other than miceo enterprises and small enterprises B B B .
TOTAL 472.90 10,775.70 £.42 - = 11,248.02
Qutstnnding for following periods from due date of payment
Asat 31 Maceh 2022 Matdue  Less thaa | year 1-2 yeacs 2-dyears  Morethan 3 Total
YA
Total eutstanding dues of micror enterprises and small enterprises 44936 - - - 44986
Tuatal outstanding duss of credilors sher than miw e enberprises and small 1503 7,161,038 34,80 . . 7,846.14
ENtEmIiRes
Disputed dues of micro emerprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Duspuled dues of ercditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises . _ . _ .
TOTAL 35031 T.610.89 34.50 - - 8.394.00
Terms and canditions of the above financial Wabitieles:
- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally setiled on 0to 73 days 1erms
- For 1erms and conditions relanny to related party payables, referto noie 3HE ).
- For explanations on the Company®s eredit risk management processes, refer 10 note 36
Particubars Asat Asat
31 Muorch 2023 31 March 2022
* Indudes lollowing :
- Agpeptances 3,436.46 1,059.44
- For payable 10 ratated pandes, refer to note 11{C } 5519 4573
H Detnils of dues to micro and small enlerprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
Asal Asal
Partienlars 13
The principal amount and the interest due therean remaining unpaid ta any supplier as at the end of each accounting 411.30 44984
yéar
Principal amount doe 1o micra and small enterprises 40130 44286
Enmerest due on above - -
The amoum of interest paid by the buyer in tarms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2004 along with the amounts of - -
the y mack to the beyond the appointed day during each aceounting year
The amount of interesl due and payable for (he period of delay in making payment {(whith have been pard but - -
beyond the appoimed day during che year) bt without adding the wicrest specified under the MSMED Act 2006,
The amouni of interest sccrued and remaming unpaid w the end uleach accounune vear - -
The ameount ol further imerest ing due and payable even in the ding years, unhil such date when the - D

.mieeest dues a5 above are actually paid 1o the small enterprise for the purpose of dissllowanee as a deductible

expenditure wnder seciion 23 of the MSMED Act 2006




DEE Dsvelopment Engineers Limited
Nates to Lhe daltone i lal sial ts for the yenr ended 31 March 2023

(Amount in INR Lacs)

18

Revenue from contracts with enstowers

Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023

Yenr ended
31 March 2022

Sale of praducts:

Sale of finished goods 1855133 WA

Salg of rreded yoods 444,79 166.06
Sale of electricity 3.976,32 4,032.30
Sale of service:

Job wark 15.330.52 5,635.15

Ercction and Design services 193,90 138,57
Other Operating Inpame:

Sale of Sceap 713.08 61563

Export Incentive 39.70 4726
Total revenue from contracts with customers 50,269.61 3‘?!03§iﬁs
Within India 27,462.57 22,511.29
Outside India 22,807.04 14,515.39
Total revenve from contracts with cusiomers £0,269.61 31&1.68
Timing of revenue recognition
Revenue récopnition aver a pediod of time 193.90 158,57
Revenue recognilion al & point of lime 50,075.71 3687416
Teotal revenue fram contracts with customers 50,269.61 37,031.68
Conicact Balances
Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Trade receivables fram contracts under Ind A5 115 (vefer note 6{A]) 13.679.56 12,766.90
Contract Assets - -
Contract liabilities
Advance from customers {refer note 16) 906.18 034.77

Contract lfabilities include amount reesived from cusiomers ns per the terms of sales arder to deliver poods. Once the oods are completed and control is hansferved

a - 1

to 5 the same is adjusted acc gly.

Significnnt chonges in the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances durlng the year arc as follows

Particul Al ol Asat
articufars 31 March 2033 A1 March 2022

Movement of caniract liability
Amounis included in conteact liabilities at the beginning of the year 23477 1,053.62
Performance obligations satisbed duning the year (934,77) {1,053.62)
Amount received! adjusted against contracy lability during the year 90638 3417
Amoants inctuded in contract liabilittes nt the end of the year 906.38 934,77
Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the siatement of profit and loss with the conlracted price
Particulars As ot As at

31 March 2023 31 Morch 2022
Revenue as per contracted price 50,268.61 37.032.68
Adjustments
Sales reum - -
Discount - -
Revenue from contract with customers 50!269.61 37&32.@

Performance obligution

Infarmation abeut the Campany's performance oblipations for materlal contracts are summarised below:

The performance obligation of the Company in case of sale of products is satisfied onee the ponds are iransporied as per tenins of order and coairol is mansferred to

the customers,

The makes the pay for

d price as per terms stipulated under 3 purchase order,

tnlormatien about ihe Company's performance obligations for electricily supply contract are summarised below:

The perfo hligation of the Company in case of sale of electricity is hased on supply of electricity through installed meters. Revenue from sales of electricity

is accoumted far an the lasis of billing to customer based on Billing cycles fallowed by the Company.

The custemer makes the payment for electricity supplied during the billing cycle at contracted price ag per teoms stipulated under agreement.

There is ne remaining performance oblipation as on yearended 31 March 2023 and 3| March 2022,




DEE Developmeni Engineers Limited

MNotes Lo the 1nlone finuncial st for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Ampunt In INR Lacs)
10 Other income
- Year ended Year ended
Pa l
reutars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Intercst income
- from Bank 14953 132,59
= from boan ke r2lated padlies {sefer note 31) 622,06 444.23
Gain on fortipn exchanpe (netd 676.44 613,93
Profil on sale of preperry, plant and equipment {nat) 171.02 -
Rental income 10.00 12.00
Amortization of deferred revenue 215.03 490,12
Liabilities o Jonger required writien back* 162,06 -
Miscellancous income FE % 75.28
Total other income 2,180.05 1,768.1%
* During the year, the Company has wrilten back excess liabilities pertaining o one of its custamer pursuant lo setilement ag i wilh Lhe
21 Cost of raw manerials consumed
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Tnvenlocy al the beginning of the year 13,068.89 11,191.44
Add: Purchase during the year 21,543.45 19,780, 14
3461234 3097158
Less: laventory at the end of the year 13,108.88 13,063.89
Cast of raw materials consumed 21,503.46 17,902.6%
12 Changes in inventaries of finished goods, traded goods and work in progress
Year ended Year endgdd
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Opening stock
- Wordk-in-progress 4,250,04 3.404.55
= Finished goods 1, T46.0] 683,39
- Traded poods 30.14 24.85
Lesst Closing stoek
- Wark-in-progress 7928 1 4,250.04
= Finished poods 1.297.66 1.746.01
« Traded goods 31.60 30.14
Total change in inventories of finished moods, iraded poods and
work In progress 3.33L18) (1,833.40)
23 Employee benefit expenses
. Year ended Year ended
Farticnlars 31 March 2003 31 Mareh 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 7.674.94 5371926
Contribution ro provident and other funds 188.40 169.20
Granity expense {refer note 30) 9027 75.18
Stafl welfare expenses 212.33 131,72
Total employee beneflt expenses 8,165.9% 5,755.34
24 Depreciation and amortization expense
. Year ended Year ended
P, I
articulars 31 March 2023 3t Mareh 2022
Depreciation on 1angible assets (vefer note 3) 221155 2,100.01
Amomisarion of intangible assers (refer note 4) BRAT 6070
Deprecistion on right of use assets (refer note 38) 22,23 54.50
Tutal depreciaticn and nmordzation expense 242225 221521
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(Amount i INR Lacs)

15 Other expenses
Particulors Year ended Year ended
articulars 31 March 2023 3L March 2022
Canzusmption of stores and spare pants 3,728.05 1,822.55
Packing malerial consumed £.568.90 140544
Fabrication and job charges 4.431.70 241584
Repair and maintenance:
~ Buildings 62.2% 65.66
- Plam and machinery 389.58 354.38
« Other 76,80 64.02
Qffice and Factary maintenance 69.76 68.58
Rent 192.13 B1.33
Equipment hire ¢harges 450 88 143.02
Rates and taxes 171.29 82.65
[ngurance 171.99 i3
Power, fued and water charges 1,249.0% 943.66
Radiagraphy and inspection 39747 400,64
Auditor's remunesation (refer nate 25 (a) below) 2784 2741
Selling commission and other selling expenses 57367 219.50
Freight and forwarding {net of meovery) 1,122.20 59287
Claims and deductions 247.06 65.70
Legal end professional 948.66 642,67
Travelling & Conveyance T37.85 25444
Bank charpes 434.77 25739
Sundry balances written off 140.45 -
Lass on salef discard of property, plamt 2nd equipment (net) - 6.02
Donation 0.93 366
Secwrity and servicing charpes 26258 18¢.21
Corparate sacial responsibility expenses (refer note 25 (b) below) 50.69 TL.83
Directors silting fecs 5.00 1.50
Miscellaneous 689.94 407 86
Total ofher expenses 1841153 11,216.55
P Year ended Year ended
5(a}  Payment to auditors ; 31 March 3023 31 March 2022
As apdilor:
= Statutory andit feg 25.00 25.00
In ather eapaciiy:
= Diher services (cedtification fees) 100 1.00
« Reimbursement of expenses 1.84 141
Tatal 27.84 27.41
25(b)  Details of Corporate social respansihility expenditure:
" Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 a1 March 2022
() Gross amount required to be'spent by the Company duning the year 50,66 71.63
(b} Amount approved by the Board to be spent duning the year 066 TLG3
Tn Cash  Yet to be paid in cash Tumal
() Amount spent during the year ended March 31, 2023
(i} Congtruction! acquisition of any asset - - -
(3} On purpose othee than (i) above 50.69 - 50.69
{d) Amouat spent during the year ended March 31, 2022
(i Construcrion/ acquisilion of any asset - - -
(iiy On purpose other than {i) above 71.83 - 71,83
Year ended Year ended
Partlculars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{e) Details refated to spent/ unspent obligations:
(i} Conwibution o charitable trust # 42,20 64,02
{0 Deetalls of ongoing project and other than ongoing preject
En case of 8. 135(8) (Other than ongning project)
Opening balance - -
Amounl deposited in Specified Fund af Sch. ¥11 wiititn 6 momhs - -
Amouni required 10 be spent dusing the year 50.66 7163
Amotm spent during the yoar {50.69) (71.83)
Clasing Batance {0.03) (0.20)

#The Company heg conteibuted its obligation towards CSR activities amounting to INR 53.20 lacs (31 March 2022; INR 64.03 lacs) to Atul Krishan Bansal
foundarien (AKB Foundation} in relaion to CSR expenditure, Against ¢he total contribanion made by the Company to the charilable trust as al year end, TNR. 46,48
lags (31 March 2022: Rs 73.36 lacs) remains unspent and will be wrilised by the rust for casrying our CSR acrivities in subsequent years,
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2§  Finance costs
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Interest Expense
- an term foans 222.57 100.63
- o others 1.956.69 1,583.56
Interest on kease Jinbikifes (refer note 38) 65.20 2432
Other bomowing cost 107.23 149.28
Exchange differsuce regarded as an adjustment Lla bomawing cost 3218 1.9
Twa] (inance coats 2 433.87 1,899.72
27 Compunents of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Particulars ¥ear ended Year eaded
Antfewar 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Relained Earnings
Re-measurement ynin/ (losses) an defined benefit plans (87.61) 14.42
Less: Tax impact of above items 2205 (3.63)
Tuial {65.56) 10.79
28 Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attril holders of the C of Equity shares

outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS gmounts is caleulaied by dividing the profiv anrit

3 of the C

y by the

ber of Enuity shares

outstanding during the year plus the weighted pverape number of Equity shares 1hat woold be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potenu.al Equity shares inta

Exuiry shares.

Subsequent to yeas end, on September 7, 2023, C

v has isswed 42,431,312 equity shares of Rs. 10 cach as bonus shares in ratio of 4:1 10 the existing equity

sharchulders, This has been approved by Board and Sharcholders on September 7, 2023. lvpact of the same has been c lation of Basic and
Dilnted EPS for the vear ended 31 March 2023 and Basic and Diluted EPS for 31 March 2022 have been rerrospectively adjusted.
Calculation of EPS alilcr giving €ffect of bonus issue:
Parviculars For the year ended For (ke yenr eouled

31 March 2023 A1 March 2022
Profit auributable 10 equity lialders of the parent company (A) 1,858 54 1,23093
Weighied averazy aumber of Equity shases far basie and diluied EPS® {B) 5.30.39,140 5,16,72,975
Enmaings per share {AMD)
- Basic earmings per share 350 2.29
» Mhluted eamings per shore 350 .29
- Face Value per share 10.00 1000
EFS prior t¢ issue of bonus shares:

Year ended Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Eamings per share (A/B)
- Basic earings pes share 17.52 1104
~ Diluted ¢arnings per sharg [7.52 1.4
~ Face Value Per Share 10.00 10.00
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19 Sfznifieant a¢ ing judg ks, wsti and Pk

The prepasation of the Company™s Enancial QUi 2 10 make judg ¥ and prians fhat affect the reponed of €5, X , assels and

, liabilities, and the pecompanying disclosures. and the discl of conti linbilities. Ui inty 2bout these assumptions and estimates could result in guteomes. that require = materal
adjustment 1o the catrying amount of assets or fiabililies affected in future periods.
Jodgements
In the peacesa af applying the company’s ing polici has made the following judgements, which have the most signifieant effect on the ! ised in the financial
statements:

Claasifieation of teases —

The Company enters into leasing amangements for various asers. The classification of the leasing armangement as a finance Prase ot aperating lease is basad on an assessment of several factors,
including, but net limited to, transfer of owmership of leased asset al end of lease erm. Tessee’s option to purehase and esti | inty of ise of such optien, proportion af lease term to
the assel's cconamiu life, propertion al present value of minimum lease payments 1o (air value of leascd assel and exient of specinlized nature of the leased asset.

Detcrmining the lease 1erm of contracts with renewal and [ermiinalion oplions (C as lesscel-

The Company delemmines the lease term as the non-cancellable [enm of the [ease, toxether with any petiods covered by an option to extend the lzase iFil is reasonably gersin 1o be exercised, or
any periods covered by an option to terminate the bease, if it is reasonatly cortaio nol to be exercised, The Campzny has several lease that includ inn and weeminatien optins. The
Company applics judy, in evaluating whethes it i bly certan whether or not 1o ise the option (0 /enew or leaminate the lease, That is, it considers all relevani factors that ereale
an ecomnit incentive for it to either b re 1 ar wermication. ARer lhe commencement date, the Company remssesses the lease term if thers is a significant event or change n
circumatances that & wathin fis contsol and  alfects s abilty 10 exercise o n® o exercise  the  oplion 1t emew or to 1emminale
¢.5. constructian of significant leasehold improvements oF significan. susicsmisation Lo the lensed asset).

Estimnles and atsumptions

The key assumptions concenmng the fure and ather key sources of i inty 3t the reporting date, thal have a sigmife risk of causing 4 fal adj w rthe camying
amounts of assets and liabilifies within the next financial year, are deseribed below. The Company based its ptinny and esti onp ilable when the finangial were
prepared. Existing ci and ptions about future developments, b may change due o markel changes or circumslances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Sugh changes are seRected in the pticns when they occur.

Yaluation of Investment in subsidinrics

Invesiments in subsidiaries are cammied al cost. At each balence sheet date, the 2 the ind: of impairmen? of such i This requi of several |
and i 1 factor including capitalation rate, key ption used in di d cash Flow models {such as revenue growth, unit prica and discount rates) or sales comparison method which
may allesl the camying value of inwestments in subsidiarizs.

- lmpai of L jal assets

Impainment exists when the canying value of an asset or cash g ing unit ds its ble ameunt, which is the higher of its Fair value less costs of dispasal and its value in uze. The
fair value Jess costs of dispasal ealevlation is based on available data from binding sales juns, condueted a1 arm®s Yength, for similar assets or abservable markel prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The sash fows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do nol include restrugturing aglivities
thas the Campany is nat yet committed ta or significant future | that will enh the aaser’s performancs el the COU being tested, The recoverable is sensitive 10 the di

rafe used for the DCF mode] aswell as the expected fiture cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. .

= Taxes
Deferved fax assets are recognised 1o the extent that it i probable that taxable profit will be available aainst which the losses can be wrilised. Significant manegement judgement is required to
determine the amoutit of defermed tax assets that gan by recognised, bated upon the likely teming and the fevel of finure 1asable prefils together with fture fax plenning strategies.

- Befined benelil plons (zrataily)

“The cast of the defined benefit prtuiry plan and the present value of the grawity obligation ane determined using actuarial valuations An ial valuation involves making various essumplions
that may differ from actus! developments in the faure These include the d ion of |he di rate, fulure salary inereases and montality mies. Dus to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-1erm nature, a defined bencfit abligaion 1s highly sersitive 10 changes in these L All plians are d &l each ref g date

The parameter most sulyzel 10 change 15 the di rate. In d itung: 1he approprinte di rate. the managemenl cormiders the inlzrest rares of povernment bonds wath team that

correspond with the expested term of the defined benei obligation.

The manality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those monality tebles tend to change enly at inierval N resg tey demographi ges, Futuge salory inereases and gratuity
ingreases arg bused an expected fiture inflation cates,

Further details aboul gratuity 2re given in Nole 30

- Pair value measurentent of Ainancial inslruments

When the fair values of financial assets and fnancial liabilities recorded in the batance sheel cannol be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measwed uging
luati hinigues including the DCF model. The inputs 1o these maodels pre taken from observable markets where possibie, bul where this is not feasible, a degree of judg ia required in

eslablishing foir values. Jud: intlude iderations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credil risk and volatility. Changss in assumprions abau these factars could affect the reported Fair value

af finaneial instruments. Refer note 34 for further disclosures.

- Usefutl Lives of Property Plant and Equipment

Ths Company, based on tech made by tethnical expert and i depreciates plant and machinerics of piping division over esti A useful lives of 101025
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30 Gratulty and other posi-employment hencfit plans

A.  Defined benefil plans - general description

The C

service. The chlipation towards grarity s being measured using prejected credit line smethod, The Campany has fonded its pranicy lisbiling.

{Amoont in INR Lacs)

pany has a defined yratuity benefitplan, Every employee who compleles service of five pears or more gets 8 pratuity of 15 days salary {last drawn salary} for each completed year of

The following tables ies the comp ol net benehil exp znised in the § of Profit and Loss and the funded stans and d in the bal sheet for the
plan (based on actparial valuation) :
Amount recogpised in statement of profit and Joss
Net empl benefil exy vecogrized in the employes cosi:
. Yesr ended Year ended
Particulars
teu A1 March 2023 31 Blarch 2023
Service cosl 81.50 63,29
Net interest cost 6.77 9.57
Expenses recognised In the statement of peofit and loss 90.17 35.16
Amound recogoized in other comprehensive income
Year ended Year ended
Parilculars 31 March 2023 31 Nareh 2002
Net acruarial (pain) 1nss recopnised in the year 87.61 (14.42)
Exp flincome) recognised in the ather comprehensive ingome B7.61 [14.42)
Balance sheet
Benefil assed liability
. Year ended Year ended
Farticulars 30March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Prasent value of defined obligation a1 vhe epd of the year 7515 620.25
Less : Fair value of the plan assets ot the end of the year 716.98 52588
Net present value of defined benefit obligation Y b 94,37
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligatTon are 23 lollows:
- Year ended Year ended
Parficu
rlicutars 3 March2023 31 March 2022
Opening defingd benefit oblipali 620.25 556.80
Service cost B3.50 6529
Inkevest cosi 44.53 3786
Benefits paid {43.03) {25.53)
Actuarial (gain} loss on obligation 69.90 {1417
Closing defined Lenefit obligation 77515 620.28
Changes in the fair value of plam assels are as followss
Year ended Year cnded
Partlcul
articulars 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Opening fair valoe of plan ossets 525.88 41158
Expeered retum on plan assels 3776 270
Actuarial painf{loss) {17.71) 0.24
Contribution by the employ 214.08 111.60
Benefits paid {43.03) (25.53)
Closing fair value of plan 335ty 716.98 525.88
The major eategories of plan assets as  percentage of the fair value of total plan psscts are as follows:
. Year ended Year endeil
Particula
artieviars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
The scheme is funded through & mss amd funds are ed by Life I of India 100% 1004
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{Amaunt in INR Lacs)

B. The printipal astuzria) nssumptions used in determining pratuity nre as follows:

(a} Ecanomic assumplions

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 3 Maorch 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Discount rate 7.36% 7.18%
Average salary escalalion rate 7.00% 6.00%
Attrition at ages Withdrawal rate % Withdrawal rate %
Upta 30 years 3.00 3.00
From 31 1o 44 years 2.00 2.00
Above 49 years 1.00 1.00
The estimates of future salary increases, cansidered in actuarial valuation, take of inflati fori jion and other t factors, such &5 supply and demand in the emplayment

market. The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices pm-.nlmg on lhal date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be sertled,

C. Demagrophic assumptiony

Particutars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Retirement age 58 yzars 5B years
Monality mble 100% of l.:‘l)M {22 - l?;?l;r-Ialﬁ.:iM
D, A quimtitotive szasitlvity analysis for significant assumption as st 31 March 2023 Is as shown helow:
Tmpact on defined

Assumptiong

Sensitivity Level

benelit ohlipation

Discount rate:
31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Fature salary:
31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Incresse of 0.50%
Decrease of 0.50%

Increase of 0.530%
Decrease of 0503

Increase pf 0.50%;
Dieerease of 0.50%

Increase of 0.50%
Decrease of 0.50%

(43.34)
47,44

(34.13)
3736

47.20
(43.67)
3761
(34.65)

The sensitivity analyses abowve have been determined bosed on a methad thar exwrapolates the impact on defined benefil obligation as a resull of reasonable ch 2es im key

the end of the reponing period. Sensitivitics duc 10 mortality & wilhdrawals are nol material & hesce impaet of changs due ta these not disclosed.

oecurting gt

E. The following payments are expected contributions (o the defined benefit plan in future yenrs:
Partlenlars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 9368 54.49
Berween 2 and 5 years 82.17 95.20
Beyond 5 years $99.30 470,55
Taral expeciad paymenis 115158 620028

The duration of the defined benefit plan obligation a1 the end of the reporting period is 18.15 years (31 March 2022: 17.63 years)

=5
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{Amount in INR Lacs)

31 Related parly transactions

{A) Mames of related parties and related party refationship

Marure of relationship
(i) Subsidiary Companics;

(i} Key management personnel;

[iv) Relative of key management personmel

{¥] Endependent Director

[B) The following table provides the total amount of iransactions thal have been entered into with retated parties for the relevant financial year:

Name of related parties

Malwa Power Private Limiled

Dee Piping Sysiems (Thailand) Ce. Ltd.
Dee Fabricom India Privaiz Limited
And Krishan Bansal Foundation

Mr. Krisltan Lalit Bansal (Chainman and Managing Director)

Mrs. Ashima Bansal (Director)
Mrs. Shikha Bansal {(Whole-titne Direcior)

Mr. Gaurav Marang (Chief Financial Officer upto 03-03-2023)
Mr. Sameer Agarwal (Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. 04-03-2023)

Mr, Ranjan Sarang! (Company secrelary)

Mrs. Shruti Aggarwal (daughter of Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal)
Mrs. Charu Agarwal [spouse of Mr. Sameer Aparwal)

Mr, Ajay Kumar Marchanda
Mr. Sarish Kumar

Name of related party

Year ended
31 March 2023

Yearended
31 March 2022

{i) with subsldiary company

{a) Malwa Power Pet. LI,
Sales of produc

Sales of propenty, plant and equipment

Interest incowme

Inferest expenses

Loan given

Repayment of Joan given
Leoan 1aken

Repayment of boan taken
Corporate puarantee

(b) Dee Piping Systems [Thailand) Ca, Litd,

Investutent in Equity Shares
Sales of product

Sales of property, plant and equipment

Interest income
Purchase of product
Loan piven

Corporate yuarantee/SBLC ecepled

{c) Dee Fabricom India Pyvi. Lid.
Sales of peoduct

Sales of propenty, plant and equipment
Purchase of peoperty, plant and equipment

Purchase of traded goods
Job charges

Rent paid

Interest income

Loan given

Corporate guarntce

{d) Atul Krishan Bansal Foundation

Contribution 1owards CSR Expendituye

254
564
1245
321,00
369.25
1,150.00
1,150.00
1,253.00

1,3319.32
0.13
500,23
1,019.36
619.06
8,221.69

218

22.58
198.37
12.00
116,29
97.04
2,442,80

4220

29
1.568
14.10

78.98
200.00

850.00
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(Amount In INR Lacs)

(i} With Key management persoonel and their relatives:

. Year ended Year ended
Name Nature of transaction 31 Blarch 2023 31 March 2022
Short-term employee benefits
Mrs. Aslnma Bansal Remuneration 82.09 BLOD
Mrs. Shikhg Bansat Remuneralion 106.44 98.13
Mrs. Bhnwi Apgarwal Remnuneratian 66.45 42,00
Mr. Gaurav Marang Remuneration 41.91 £0.00
Mr. Ranjan Sarangi Remuneration 16,24 13.99
Mr, Sameer Agarwal Remuneration 315 -
Mrs. Charu Agacrwal Remuncration 222 -
Mr, Krighan Lalit Bansal Remuneration 186,60 256.20
Loans
Mr, Krishan Lalit Bang Lean Received 129,65 -
Mr, Krishan Lalit Bansal Logan Repayment (1,24%.65) -
Mrs, Ashitna Bansal Loan Received 30.00 -
Mrs, Ashima Bansal Loan Repaymen (30.00) -
Others
Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal Rent Payment 050 0.60
Mr. Ajay Kumar Marchanda Sitting fees 250 75
Mr. Satish Kumar Silting fees 2.50 375
{C) Following are the balances outstanding as at year end:
Year ended Year ended
Name of related party 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(%) With wholly owned subsidinry companics
{a) Malwa Power Pvi. Lid.
Loans given TL.00 119.25
Comporale guaranies 771107 73206
{b) Dee Piping Systems (Thailund) Co. Lud,
Loans given 7.140.99 507781
Interest receivable 1,352.48 783,81
Carporate goarantee 4.200.608 22374
Trade reeeivable 52907 -
Advance given . 402,46
{c) Dee Fabricom India Pvt. Ltd.
Loans piven 1,260.00 1,162.96
Interest receivable 164 67 104,67
Corparale guarantee 1,949.35 2,161.4%
Advance given 85.51 26.10
(i) YYith Key monagement personnel and their refatives:
Account payable:
Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal 227 2594
Mrs. Ashima Bansal 441 13
Mrs. Shikha Bansa) 10,42 .83
Mrs. Shruli Aggarwal in 409
Mr. Gaurav Marang 3.06 27
Mr. Ranjan Sarangi 1.33 0.75
Mr. Sameer Agarwat 6.35 -
Mrs, Charu Agarwal 3.83 .

Apart from above, Mr, Krishan Lalit Bansal, Mcs. Ashima Bansal and Mrs. Shikha Bansal have given personal guarantees a3 a callateral for securing borrowings from the banks,

In the opinion of the Board of directors, the curent assets, invesiments, loan and advances have the valu

caurse of business and provisions For afl knosn lisbilies have been adequately made in the ncoounts,

e at which they are stated in the balance sheet, if realised in Lhe ordinary

(D} Compensation of key management per I of the Ci \
. Year ended Year ended
Name of related party 3t Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Shori-term employee benefils 505.10 531.2
Post-employment gratuity and medical benelits 522 6.88
Tetal compensation paid 10 key management personnel 51032 538.20

The amonnits disclosed in the table are the amounis recopnised as an expense during; the reporting period related to key management persannel.

(E} Terms and condifions of (ransactions with related parties

The sales lo and purchases from relaicd panties are made oa terms equivalent to these thal

and interesy free ather than unsecuced loan .

peevail in anm’s lenuth transactions. Ouistanding balances at the year-end are unseeured

For the year caded 31 March 2023, the Company has not recorded any impainvent of receivables refating 1o amounts owed by related parties (31 March 2022 Nil). This
assessmenl is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the celated party operates,
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{Amount in INR Lacs)

{F) Disclosure requived undec See 156(4) of the Companies Act 2013
[ncluded in loan and advance ars certain inter corporale deposits (he particulars of which are disclosed below as required by Sec 186 (4) of Companies Acd 201%:

Namie of the party Rate of Interest Due Date Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Malwa Power Prt, Lid.

- Unseeured loan 10% per annum September 30,2023 7100 119.25
- Investenent made Not Applicable Not Applicable 897.80 897.80

Dee Fabricom India Pvi Lid.

- Investmen! mads Mot Applicable Not Applicable 900.00 ©9p0.00
- Unsecured laan 10% per anaum June 20,2024 1,260.00 1,162.96
Dee Piping Systems {Thailand} Cou Ltd
= Investmenl made Mot Applicable Mot Apphcable 5021.32 502132
- Unsecured [oan 7.00% per annum {31 March June 25,2024 7.140.99 5,977 81

2022: 5.25% per annum)

Atul Krishan Bansal Foundation
= Investment made Mot Applicable Mat Applicehle 100 1.00

--------- ~-==-Thig page as been imentionally left blank———-—--—---—--
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{Amount in INR Laes)
32 Commitments and Continpencies
A, Commitments
Capital Commitmnents
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Estimated amownt of conracts remaining to be execited on capital account and not pravided for (hel of advances paid INR 845.48 1,263.47 490,96

lacs) (31 March 2022: [NR 428.68 lacs)

For lease commitments, refer nate 38
B. Contingent liabilities

Contingent Liabilities not provided (or in respect ol

As at As al

Patticulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

a} Claims agains! the company not acknowledged as debt

- Demand by Income Tax Department * 199.91 187.61
« Demand by Exgise Authorities ** 3935 3935
b} Custom duty liability which may arise if obligations for exports are not fulfilled*** 17.95 999.63
¢) Export obligation on account of duty fiee impart 206,43 11,495.73

“The Incame Tax Authorities have raised demands on account of varions disallowances pertaining 1o different assessment years. The Company is contesting these demands,
which are pending at various appeliate levels. Based an the advice from independent tax experts and the development on ihe appeals, he management is confident that additional
tax so demanded with reference 1o these cases will not be sustained on completion of the appellale proceedings and accordingly, pending the decision by the appellate anthorities,
no provision has been made in these standalone Ginancial statemenis.

3

**The Excise Authorities have raised demands on account of various matters. The Company is contesting these demands, which are pending at various appellate levels, Based on
lhe advice from independent experts and the development on the appeals, the inanagement is confident that the demands raised by Excise Authorifies is not tenable and
accardingly no provision is required in respect of these cases,

d} The Company i3 currently jnvolved in a legal dispute with Hyundai Merchant Marine [ndia Private Limited (HMMIPL) relating to the impast of raw materials In earlier years.
The Company has raised claims of INR 127.89 lakhs against HMMIPL and in response, HMMIPL has lodged counterclaims amouniing to [NR 17849 lakhs. Currently in
ongeing Litigation, the Company is eonfident in its legal posilion based on evaluations and advice, and believes Lhat 1hare will be no outflow of the Company economic resources
and accordingly no provision has been cansidered in the (inancial staterrents.

e) The company had received a show-cause nofice from the Divectarale of Revenue Intelligence {DRI), demanding payment of customs duty of INR B15.69 lacs. This demand
was made due 1o alleged nom-eompliance with pre-import and pliysical export conditians related to raw materials imperted in previaus years. The group disputed the validity and
merits of this notice, and the matter was put on hold, pending resalution with the aniherities, Recently, the Supreme Court issued a Jjudmmnent in the case of Cosmos Films,
affirming the validity of the pre-import conditions. As 2 result, the matter coneerning has baen take out from the call book of the autharities.

The management has evaluated the basis of demand and believes that the Company bas fulflled the pre import conditions and based on the expen advise is confident that the
demand rzised by DRI is not tenable and sccordingly no provision has been considered in e Ginancial statements,

1) On May 19, 2023, the Enforcement Directorate issued a mofice in decordance willl FEMA regulations, requesting specific information related to the Company's operations and
financial e ions. The Company duly fumished the required information 1o the refevant autherity on Septzmber 9, 2023, ensuring compliance with FEMA regulations.

C. Guarantecs

The Company has given corporate guarantee for loans taken by subsidiary companies, ta the extent loan amount owstanding as on balance sheel date. The camying ameunts of the
relaed financial guaranice contracts were INR 6,921, 10 lacs at 31 March 2021 and [NR $,168.49 lacs 31 March 2022 respectively.
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33 Segment information
On the basis af nature of businesses, the company has iwo reportabla sepments, as follaws:
- The piping segmenl which is mainly engaged in manufacturing of pre-fabricated engineering products, pipe fitfings, piping systems.
- The power sggment, which is engaged in bi based power gencration
No operating seyments have bzen apgregated to farm the above reposlable operating sey
The E ive Menag C i iters the opecating results of s busi units separately for the purpose of making Jevisions aboul Itacation end perf
Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured cansistently with profit or loss in the standalone fi ial
Transter prices between operating segmens are on an arm"s length basis in a manner similar o yransaclions with third partiss.
A. Segment Disclosures
Yeor end h 2023
Pactlcolars Plping division Fower division L Adjustmeats and Net
Revenue
Extemal customers 46,278 42 199119 50,260.6] - 50,269 61
Seamint Revenue 46,278,421 39919 5026961 - 50,269.51
Ineomed|Expenses)
Cost of yaw malorials conswred 16.296. 14 1976 14 18,272.28 - 18,272.28
Purchases of traded goods 288.58 - 2B8.98 - 28898
Ermployee benefil expenses 1.366,55 02 T,140.57 42542 8,165.99
Finance soats 1,341.36 92,31 2433187 - 243387
Depreriation and izati I 222649 19576 242225 - 241225
Other expenses 17,391 .66 B53.03 12,244.69 166.84 1B.411.53
Ciher Income {1,657.85 - {1.657.89) 1632.16) {2,280.03)
Total 44,250,4% J,491.26 47,744,275 (29,90) 47,714.85
Net Segment profit belore tax 202403 459,93 2,524.86 {29,594 155476
Segment asscts 68.931.45 5,046.24 7397070 16,760,73 90,758.44
Sezment habilittes 39,105.19 0413 40,147.03 118590 43,332,92
Chther disglosures
Capital Expenditure 5,500.50 35841 5867.91 - 5,867.51
Year ended 31 March 2022
f e . Tata Adjottments and
Particul
'articulars Pinlng divition Power division Segments climinations Net
Revenoe
Extzanal 31971 21 DGl .47 31,032.68 - 35.03268
Sepment Revenue 2297121 406047  37.032.68 - 3700263
tncome Expenses)
Cast of raw materials consumed 14,412.49 163680  16,040.29 . 16,049.29
Purchases of traded goods 11352 . 113,52 . 11352
Employee benefit expenses 4,553.54 32225 4.375.79 879.55 5,735.34
Finance costs 181476 64.9% 1,899.72 - 189972
Depreciation and morization expense 2,069,710 145,51 221821 . 2,215.21
Cther ¢xpestses ’ 10,149.87 BR44T 11,0243 18221 11,216.55
Other Income {1,322.44) (1.48)  (1,32392) (444.23) (176815}
Total 3181144 305251 34,8695 617.83 35,481,484
Net Segrient profil before 131 1.159.77 100896 216873 (617.53) 1,551,20
Sepment agsels 55,508.85 HA1B.4F ¢4,027.27 15.002.02 79,029.36
Segment Babilities 30,034,389 1,343.89 31,3787 2,018,085 3332683
Other disclosmes
Capital Expendinure 2,086.90 1060 2,097.30 - 2,097

memew————Thiz page has been i innally lefl blank




DEE Development Engineers Limited

Notes to the dalone fi inl stal for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount in INR Lacs)
B. Reconciliations lo amaunts reflected in the financinl siatements
a, Reconciliation of profil
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 1022

Segment profil 2,524 86 2,168.73
Imerest income From loan Lo relared paniss 622.16 444.23
Salaries, wages and banus {425.42) (879.55)
Linallocable other sxpenses (166,84} (182.21)
Profit belore (nx _ES‘I.TG 1,551.20

b. Reconcilintinn of nssets

Particulurs

As nt 31 Mavch 2023

An at 31 Morch 2022

Segment operabng asseis
Invesiments

Income 18% recavernble
Laans (ineluding lnterest receivable)

Totnl assets

c Reconcilistion of liahilities

2397271 £4,027.27
6.820.12 €810.12
3147 .47
£,929.14 2,150.50

90,758.44 7902936

Particulars

As ot 31 March 2023

Al nt 3L March 2022

Segment opesating liabilitics 41,147.02 1137878
Defermed tax liabilities (nel) 1,822.83 1,940.24
Frovision for income tax (net) 29177 3.41
Teade payable 71,30 14.40
Tota! liabilities 4333252 33.396.83
Geographic mlormation
a} Revenue from exigmal cusiomers
Particulars For the year ended For the year endgd
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from contract vath custpmers 27.462.57 22517229
OQutside India 22 807.04 14,51%.39
Tolak revenue a5 per siandnlone statement of profit and bosa ﬂ!:‘;ﬁ.ﬁl 37032.68

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the custamers.

b) Trade Receivable

Particulars Asat 3 March 2023 Asat 31 March 2022
With in India 9,142.29 8,451.29
Outside India 4.532.27 431561
Total 13,670.56 12,756.90
All operating assets other than Trade Receivables and non operating assets are located in India.
List of major enstomer whose revenne more than 10% of lo1al sulily revenue
< For the year egded For the year ended
I
Porticulars 31 March 2023 3t Mareh 2023
JGC Fluor BT Lag Joinl Yeniure 8.221.65 1,657 46
% of Revenus 16.36% 4.48%
Lersen & Tucho Limited 6,180 80 4,600.10
% of Revenue 12.30% 12.42%
Genesal Electric 4,735.10 477004
% of Revenae 9.42% 12.590%
Punjab Statz Electrigity Board 1,976.32 4,03230
% of Revenoe T.91% 10.89%
Bharai Perroleum Carparation Limued B59.61 4363.49
% of Revenue 1L.7T1% 11.73%
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34 Fairvalues

Sel ot below, is & comparison by class of the carrying amaunts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments with carrying smounts that are reasonable
approximations of fair values:

Carrying value Fair value
Particulars As at As at As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{A) Financial assets
Non-current
Invesiments £,820.12 6820.12 6,820.12 6,820.12
Security deposits 87.16 79.27 87.16 79.27
Inter corporate [oan 1o a related party 8,400.99 7.140.77 £,400.59 7,140.77
Interest receivables 1,457.15 890.48 1,457.15 890.48
Bank deposits with ofiginal maturity beyond 12 months 555.97 762,93 555.37 762.93
Current
Trade recéivablgs* 13.679.56 12,766.90 13,679.56 12,766.90
Cash and cash equivalents™ 42,78 17.75 42.78 12.75
Other bank balances® 3,080.01 248432 3,080.01 2484.32
Security deposits* 3748 10.48 3748 10,48
[nter corporate loan to a related party* 71.00 119.25 71.00 119.25
Recoverable from customers? 649 69 - 649,69 -
[nterest receivable® 1197 0,98 1197 0.98
Foreign exchange forward contracts* - 57.72 - 51.72
Tatal financial assets 34,893.68 31,150.97 34.893.68 31,150.97
(B} Financial liabilities
Non-carrent
Barmowings 2,240,132 1,648.55 2,240.13 1.648,55
Lease liabilities 713.82 214,42 713.82 214.42
Current
Borrowings* 24.568.12 . 1947571 24.568.12 19475.71
Trade payables* 11,258.02 8,396.00 11,258.02 8.,356.00
Lease liabilitics 192.84 $9.73 192.84 59.73
Other financial liabilities® 58542 32145 58542 32145
Faoreign exchange torward contracts* 170.4] . 170.41 -
Total flnancial liabilities 39,728.76 30,115,586 39,728.76 30,115.86
Note:-

* The management assessed that fair value of rade receivables, cash and cash equivalents. security deposits, inter corporate loan to related party, other short-term
financial assels. shorl-term borrowings, trade payables and other short-term financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely duwe to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.

The Fair vahee of the financial assets and Jisbilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following metheds and assumptions wers used to estimate the fair values:
8. Security deposits- The fair value of security deposits and inter-corporate loans are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that reflects the market rate of
8, Term deposits- The fair value of term deposits is equal to carrying value since they are carrying market interest rates as per the banks,

b. Foreign exchanga forward contracts- Foreign exchange forward contracts are valued using valuation techniques, which employs the use of market observable inputs..
The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing.

¢. Non-current borrowings - The fair value of non-gurrent borrowings is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The carrying value and fair value of the borrowings has been considered the same since the existing interest rate
d. Others- For other financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values,
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35 Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:

(a) recagpised and measwred at fair value and

(b) measured at amartised cost ang for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

Te provide an indication abaut the reliability of the inputs used iw determining fair value, the Company has classified {15 financial fnstruments into the three levels
preseribed under the accountine standard. An explanation of each Jevel follows underneath the table.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statemengs are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level | — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or lipbilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement is directly or indirecily observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input thal is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

The following tabla provides the fair value measurement higrarchy of the Company’s assels and [iabilities.

. Quantitative disclosures fair value mensurement hierarchy for assets and linbilities as a1 31 March 2073:

Fair value measurement using

There have been no transfers between Level | and Level 2 during the vear.

Quoted prices in Significant observahble Significant
Particulars Total active markets Inpuis unobsetrvable inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Security deposits 87.16 - - 87.16
Inter carporate loan w0 o related pamy £.400.99 - - 8,400,99
Interest receivables 1.457.15 - - 1.457.15
Bank deposits with eriginal maturity beyond |2 months 5585.77 - - 555.77
Financial liabilitics measured al amortised cost
Non-current borrowings 2.240.13 - - 2.240.13
MNom current lease liabilities 713.82 - - 713.82
Finztacial liabilities measured at fair value through profi or loss:
Foreipn exchanpe forward contracts 170.41 - 170,41 -
There have been no transfers between Level | and Level 2 during the vear,
B. Duantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarehy for nssels and Habilitles as at 31 March 2022:
Falr value measurement using
Quatedd prices in Significant observable Signilicant
Particul Total actlve markets inputs unohservable inputs
riewtars o (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets measured at amortiscd cost
Security deposits 79.27 - - 79.27
Inter corporate Joan Lo a related party 7.140.77 - - 7.140.77
Interest receivables 85048 - - 890.48
Bank denosits with oripinal maturity beyond 12 months 762.93 - - 762.93
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss:
Foreian gxchange forward contracts 5112 - 5772 -
Financial liabilitics measured at amortised cost
Non-current borrowings 1.648.55 - - 1.648.55
Non current lease liabilities 21442 - - 214.42
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36 Fimaneinl risk management objectives and policies

The Company*s principal financial lisbilities comprise berrowings, irade and ather payables. The main purpose of these financial Hiabilities is to finance the Campany"s operations,
The Company's principal financial assels inchud ity deposits given, I5an 1o refated pasty, employee advances, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalenis and nther
assels. '

‘The Company is enposed fo merket risk, eredit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior manageinent overszes the management of these risks, All derivative activities for rigk
management purposes ar¢ carmied oul by speialist tezms that have the appropriate skills, expericnce and supervision. It is the Company*s policy that no fmding in dedvatives for
speculative purposes may be wndertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and aprees policies for managing cach of these risks, which are summarised belaw,

Market visk

Mathes risk is the risk that the fair valus of fture cash fows of a finarcial i it will 1 of ehanpes in marke! prices. Market risk prises i rale fisk
and currency risk. Finaneial instruments affected by market risk include barrowings and fareign exct ge forward

The sengitivity analysis in the Eollowing seetions relag to the position as af 31 March 2073 and 31 Merch 2022,

The sensitivity anatysis has been prepared on the basis thay the amount of net debe, the ratic of floating to fixed interest rates of the debt and the propartion of financial instruments
in foreipn cusrencies are a1l constant in place at 31 March 2023.

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables o: the comying values of gratvity and olher postereti t abligations and

Eal P

The following assumptions have been made in caloulating the sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity of the retevant profit or koss item is the sffect of the d changes in respective market risks. This is based on the linanciad assets and financial Yiabilities held at
31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

bnierest rate rlsh

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair valuc or future cash flows of a Gnancial i will §1 b of changes in market i rates. The Company™s exy ]
the risk of changes in marke: interest rates relmes primarily 1o the Company's obligations with floating inreress rtes.

The Company is exposed to i rate risk b Company t funds m floating interest rates. These exg are veviewed by appropriate levels of 3 The
Company regularly monitors the market catc of intersst bo mitigate he sk exp . The foltowing table d Lhe sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest
raies on shat penian of borrawinps affected. With all other variables held constani, the Company*s profin befare tax is affetted 1hrovgh the impact on floating rate bamowings, as
follows:

Tncreasef (deerense)  Effectan profit
Particulars

in interest rate{%}) before tax
31 Morch 2021
INR. Ipans +.50% 0259
-0.50% (92.3%)
31 March 2022
INR. loans +).50% {78.32)
£.50% 7832
The d in i rates for the intevest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currenily observably morket environment, showing & sipnificantly higher volatility
tham in prior years.
Foreign currency sk
Fareipn cumency tisk is the risk that the fair value or fubwre cash flows of an expostire will Moctuate b of changes in foreign exchange ries. The Company’s expasure 1o the
risk of changes in foreign exchange rmes relaies primarily to the Company’s operating actividies (when revenue or p isd I im a foreip ¥).
The Cempany pes irs foveign curmency risk by purchasing foreig ¥ forward for purchase wansactions that are expected to occur within a maximam 1 3-momth
fosecasted perind. The following rables dem the unhzdped foreipr y exposure and sensitivity (o a bly possible change in forcipn exchange rates, with all
other variables lield consmnl. The inrpact on the Company’s profit befire vax is die to changes in the fair value ol monerery assets and liabilities are as follows:
31 March 2023 Impact an profit before tx
Particulars Currency Fareign Indian 5o [
Currency. Bunees ~  Jecrease Decrense
Trade payables usp 0.87 71.14 (3.56) 3.56
EURD 0,04 392 (6.20) 020
CHF 0.08 678 .34 0.34
Loan to Subsidiary uspD B6.86 714099 3157.05 (357.0%)
Buyers Credit from banks EURO 1.59 142,11 {711 .
usp 35.23 2,896.73 (144.84) 144.84
Trade seceivables 1SN 354% 2916 65 145 R3 {145 Ry
Imerest Receivable uso 16.45 1,352.48 67.62 (67.62}
Balance with Banke uso 0.000287 0.02 - .
Cash on hand THBE 0.054 0.13 0.0l {0,01)
usD 0.004 0.35 0.02 {0.02)
YEN 0.190 o012 0ol 0oy

GBP 0.002 0.20 6.0l {0.01)
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31 March 2022 Impact on prefit before tax
Particulars Currency Foreign Indian 5% 5%
Currency Rupees Increnss Decreass
Trade pavables osD 0.60 4521 (2.26) 236
EGP 0.72 3.00 (0.15) 015
CHF 0.0l 925 (4] 0.46
Loan to Sobsidéiary usp 78.86 597781 293,39 (298.89)
Buyers Credil from banks USD 2041 1,547,239 (77.36) 7736
Teade receivables EURO 0.27 2243 112 [t.12)
Interest Receivable . usp 10.37 78581 019 {39.29)
Cash on hand usp 0.01 0,76 0.04 [C.04}
Credil risk
Credit risk is the risk thar coumerparty will nal meet ils oblizations wnder n financial i ar leading, to a financial loss. The Campany is exposed to credit
rigk from its opesaling activities incleding rade receivables, depasits with barks and linangial instillions. foreign exchang ions and other N ial insiniments.

Trade receivnbles

Trade receivables do not have any significant potential credit tisk for the Company 2s the business of the Company is majorly cash based. An impairme analysis is performed by
the management at each reparting date on an individual basis for major clients.

Financial instruments and cazh deposits
Credit rigk from balances with banks is managed by the Company's measury deparnment in | with the Company’s policy. Ir of surplus funda are mada only

with approved counterpartics and within credit liwits assigned to each connterparty. Counterpariy credit Timits are reviewed by the key management porsonnel on an annual basis
and may be updated throughout the year. “The limits are se1 10 minimise the concentration of risks and thersfare nitigate financial loss through countecpaty®s potential filure fo
make payments.

The Company’s maximum exposure ta wredil visk for the componems of (e balance sheet 3t 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is the carying amounis s illusirated in note 6{A).

Excessive rish concentration

Concentrations arise when a nunber of counterpanies are enpaged in similar business activilics. o have economic features that would canse their ability 10 meer cantractual
obligations to be similady affected by changes in economic or mher conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the company's performance w developments
affecting a particular industry, In ocder to avoid excessive concentrafions of risk, the Company™s policies and procedures includ specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of
a diversified pocticlio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are led and d di

1=} =y

Liguidity risk

The Company’s objective is 1o maintzin a bal between inuity of funding and fexibility through the use of cash credits and bank laans, Approximately 28% of the

Company's long-teom borrowings will maturs in less tian ane year at 31 March 2023 (21 March 2022: 33%) based on the <anrying value of bacrowings reflacted in the Financial
The Company d the ion of risk wilh respect (o refinmmeing its debt and concluded it to be low, The Coropamy has access o a sufficiem variety of

sources of funding and debi maturing within 12 montis can be rolled over with oxisting lenders.

The table below sumimarises the maturiry prodite of the Companys financial liabilities based on contractual undisconnted payments.

«[1 months 1 to 5 yeary = 5 years Total
MR lacs IMR lacs INR Incs MR lacs

A5 at 31 March 2023
Non-current borowings - 1.716.88 - 2.716.88
Current bomowings 24 R34.96 - 24,884.96
Trade payables 11.258.02 - - 11,258.02
Lease fiabilitics 235,06 655,12 347.38 1.227.56
Other financiol lighilines 58542 - - 58542
Foreten exchanpe forward contracts L7041 - - 17041

37,123.87 3,3732.00 347,38 40.843.25,
As at 31 March 2022
Moo-current bamowings - 2.104.54 - 2,104.54
Current bomowings 19.698.28 - - 1960828
Traie payables 8.395.00 - - 8.396.00
Lease liabilivies 7200 229.88 79.02 380.50
Other Bnancial liabilities 321.43 - - 32145

28.48773 2,334.42 79,02 30.201,17
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37 Capital management

Far the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capilal includes isswed equity share capital and all ailier equity reserves attributable 1o the shareholders of the Company.
The primary objective of the Campany’s capital management is fo maximise the shareholder value,

The Company manages itz ¢apital structure and makes adjustmenis in light of chanyes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or
adjust the capilal structure, the Company may adjust (he dividend payment to shorelintders, retum capital lo sharchalders or issue new shares. The Company monilors capital
using a gearing ralia, which is nel debt divided by tota! capital plus net debt. The Company includes wilhin net debt, interest bearing toans and borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents,

The Company's gearing ralio is as follows:

As at ) As at

Particalars 31 March 2023 31 March 2622
Borrowings including current maturities and inmerest agcrued 26,877.89 21,146.46
Less: cash and cash equivalems (42.78) (17.75)
Net debi* {A) 26,835.11 21,128.71
Total equity 47,425 51 45632.51
Tutal eapital (B) 4742551 45,632.83
Total eapital and net deht (Ch=(A) + (B) 74,260.62 56,761.24
Gearing ratio (AWIC) (%) 36.14% 31.63%

* Excluding lease liabdlitics

In erder to achieve his overall objective, the Campany's capital management, amongst other Lhinps, aims (o ensure that it meets Financial covenants atlached 1o the imerest-
bearing foang and borrowings that define capila) strueiwre requirements. Breaches in ing 1he financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
bartowings. There have been no breachies in the finaneial covenams of any interesl-earing Inans and borrowings in the current period.

No changes were made in the objsctives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
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38 Company as a lesspe

i) The Company’s leased assels primarily consists of lease for factory lands, computers, data processing equipment and plant and machinery having lease term

of 5-10 years.

The Company recarded the lease liability al the present value of the remaining lease péyments discounted at the incremental borrawing rate as on the date of
transition and has measared right of use asset at an amoum equal to lease lirbility adjusted for previously recopmised prepaid or accrued lease payments.
Further, lease evrangements where the Company is lessor, lease rentals are recognized on streight line basis over the non-cancellable period,

The Company’s obligations under its eases are seoured by the lessor's tille 10 the leased assets. Generally, the Company is reatricted from assigning and

subleasing the leased assets .

The Company also has ccrain [¢ases of machinery wilh [zase terms of 12 mnonths or less and Feases of office equipment with Jow value. The Company applies
the “short-tenm lease™ and ‘lease of low-value assets” recognition exemptions for these leases.

i} Set-out below-are the carying amounts of right-of-use assels recogni

Asat | April 2021

Addilions

Deletion

Depreciation expense (refer note 24)
As at 31 March 2022

Additions

Deletion

Depreciation expense (refer note 24)
As at 3T March 2023

d and the

iil) Set-onl below are the carrying amounts of lzase liabilities (included under financial liabilities) and the movements during the period:

Asat [ April 2021

Additions

Accretion of interest (vefer note 26)
Payments

Disposal

As at March 31, 2022

Current

Non- current

Additions

Accergtian of imeres) {refer nale 24)
Payments

Disposal

As at March 31, 2023

Current

MNon- current

iv) The maturity analysis of contractusl undiscounted eash fow-: -
As at Merch 31,2023

Factary Land
Cemputer and data processing equipmemt
Plant & Machinery

As at March 31, 2022
Factory Land

Computer and data processing equipment
Plam & Machinery

v} The fallowing are thy amounts vecognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets (refer note 24)
Interest expense on lease Jiabilities (refer note 26)

Expense selaling, to sherl-term lesses (included in other expenses) {refer note 25)

To#al amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

ts during (he year:
Factory Land Camputerand data  Plant & Tatal
processing equipment  Machinery
165.50 64.22 - 22972
38.96 - 25.34 64.30
34.45 19.76 0.29 54.50
170,01 44,46 25.05 239.52
436.65 - 296.22 73287
7845 19.76 24.01 122.23
528.20 24.70 29724 850.16
Factory Land Computer and data  Plant & Total
processing equipment  Machinery
186.85 66.63 - 25348
¥ide - 2535 62.81
18.40 in 0.21 .32
42.23 2186 Q.37 66,46
2HL48 48,48 2519 274.15
.81 19,12 610 59.73
165,97 29.36 19.09 214,42
43665 - 206.22 732.87
45,60 37 11.89 65.20
9047 23.86 51.23 165.56
596,26 2813 282.07 906,66
103,20 16.78 72.86 192.84
493.06 11.55 209.21 713.82
Less than | year | 10 5 years More than 5 year
13836 440.60 347.38
2386 596 -
62.84 208.56 -
225.06 65512 347.28
Less than 1 year 1to S years Move than S year
41.71 156,83 79.02
13.86 47.72 -
6.43 25.33 -
72,00 229.5R 79.02
March 31, 2023 Marech 31, 2022
122.23 54,50
65.20 24.32
19213 8].33
379.56 160,15




DEE Development Engincers Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Amoont in INR Lacs)
vi) lmpacl on staiement of cash flows (increase/(decrease)):
March 31, 2023 Macch 31, 2022

Qperating |ease payments* 165.56 66.46
et cash fows used in operaling activities 165.56 &6.46
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities 100.36 4214
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities 65.20 24.32
Met cash flows used in finanging activities 165,56 66.46

* Composed of different line items in the indirce! recengiliation of operating cash flows.

3 The Code on Social Sccurily, 2020 (*Code") relating 1o emplayee benefits during employment and post-cmployment benefits received Presidential assent in
September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has nol been notified and
the final rules/ interpretation have not ye1 been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related
impact in the period the Code becomes effactive,

40 Other stafutory information:
(i) The Company do non have any Benami Property, where any proceeding has been initiated ar pending against the company for holding any Berami Preperty.

(i1} The Company do nov have any mausactions with campanies seruck off,

(i) The Company do not have any cliarges or satisfaction which is ye1 to be registered with ROC beyond 1he statulory period.

{iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypte curvency or Virtual Comency during the financial year. .

(v) The Company have nol advanced or loanced or invested funds to any olher person(s) ar entity {ies), including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the
understanding that the intermediary shall:
(2) Directly or indirecily lend or invest in cthier person or entities identificd in any manner whatsoever by or an behall' of the company (Uttimate Beneficiaries)
or
(b) Frovide any guarantee, security, or the like to or on behalfof (he Ultimate Beneficiarics,

{vi) The Campany have nof received any fand from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign cntitics {Funding Party) with the understanding {whether
recorded in writing or olherwisa) that the group shall:
(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in olher persons or enlities identified in any manner whaisoever by or on behalf of the funding party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
{b) Provide any guaranies, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics.

{vif) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the baoks of accounts that has been surrendered o disclosed as income during the
year in the 1ax assessment under 1he income tax Act, 1961 (Such as, search or survey or any ather refevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

{viii' The Company has nol béen declared as wil ful defaulter
(ix} The Company has complied with the number of layers preseribed under ¢lause (873 of sectian 2 of the Act read with Companies (Resiriction on number of

Layers) Rulss, 2017




DEE Developmeni Engincers Limlted

Notea ta the siandatane finaocial statemeris far the yenr ended 31 March 2023

41 ACCOLUNTING RATIOS
|Particulars Numeratar Denominatoer March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022 % Change  [Reasen for variance more
thag 25%
Curcent Ralios (in times) Corment assels Current fishilities 124 1.39 {10.9%5) INot applicable
Deht- Fauity Ratio [in times) | Total debi Shareholder equity .57 0.46 22.1% INat applicahle
Debt Service Coveragaratio  (Eaming for Debt Service =Mel  |Debt service = Interest 218 195 11.3%| Mot applicabla
(in times} Profit before taxes + Mon-cash & Lease Rayments +
operaling expenses like Principal Repayments
depreciation and other
BINOITIZAYions +
Inierest + other adjusomen(s like
loss on sale of Fixed assets
Retum on Equity rauo (%) et profit afier 1ax Aveeage Sharcheldar’s 399% 2.59% 54.2%|Ingrease on account of higher
Equuly Frofit after tax in cument year|
a4 compared to previgys year.
Inventory Tumover ratin Cost of gonds sold Average mveniory 081 056 [5.994) | Mo applicable
{Im times)
Trade Receivable Tumover  [Revenue from operations Average trada 3.30 2.40 5B.3%|Increass in revenue in cument
Ratio {in times) receivablo year a3 compared 1o pravious
year.
Ratio (Mer Purct Average Iradn payables g2 192 (3.5%)[Not appticable
Nei Capital Tumnover Ratio | Revenus from aperations Average working 483 2.58% 28 2% |Increase in revenue in gurent
(i times) capital year as compared to previous
ear,
Net Profil ratio (%) Net Profil afler Tax Revenue from 37004 332% 11.2%| Not appliesble
operations
Remrn on Capital Employed  |Eaming before interest ond Capital Employed £.91% 4.97% 39.0% |Increase Earning before interest
%) taxes (EBIT) and 1axes in curent year as
compared to praviows year,
[Return on Investment (%) #  |Interest (Finance Income Lnvestment NA MA -

4 The Company do not have wvestment except wholly owned subsidianies which ara stated a3 cost as per Ind AS 27 ‘Sopamate Financial Statements’ .

42 Following regroupings! reclassifications have been made in the somparative financial infarmation of standa)

with the accounting policies and classification as per the
Acl, 2013, requirements of bnd AS | - 'R

Jnl

T

of i |

] 1 ik

s

required, in order to bring them in line

Jor the year ended March 31, 2023 preparcd in accocdance with Schedule 0 of Companies
' and other applicable Ind AS prmeiples.

Farticulars

Note

March 3¢ 2022

[reported) {restated)

Maoreh 31 2022

Change

Nature

|Standalone balanee sheet

Bank wlth Ortglnal maturity for more than 3 month hut
remaining matority of lesa than 12 mooths

Orher Fnandizl assets

SE}

2.484.32

2484 32 Reclassification

Bank balances ather than {ii) above

6(0)_

2.484.32

12,434 32)

Buy back ol equity shares

Standntane cash flow statement

Financing activities

(5.034.04)

303404

Unvesting activities

{5,034.04)

Reclassification

{5,034.04)

The abave reclassification in the previous year's issued numhbers have been made for batter presentation in the standalone financial staiements end o conficm wo the

cutrent year's

classificationfdisclosure. This does not have any impact on the equity, ratie and profit and hence, no change in the basic and diluted carning per share of previous year.
43 Event oceurred afier the Balance Sheet Date

Subsequent to year end, on September 7, 2023, the Ct;ﬂmany has allotted 42,431,312 equity shares of Rs.10 each a5 bonus shares in ratio of 4:

This has been approved by the Board of directors and Shareholdecs in ther mesting held on September 7, 2023, (alsa refer note 9).

As per our report of even dale

For 8, R. Batllboi & Co. LLP

Charrered Ageountanls

ICAI Finn Rivisudfion Mambsr 301 003E/E300005

pe T Yoday
Part

Membership No: 501753

Mace : New [glhi
Date : September 22, 2023

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
DEE Developoient Enpingers Limited

Krishan Lalit Bansul
Chairman and Managing Dirsctor

QIN No. 01125121

HanjanSarangi
Company Secresary
FCS-2604

Flace - Palwal

Date : Seplember 22, 2023

| 1o the existing equity shareholders.

Ashima Bansal
Directot
DIN No 01928449

Sanfter Aparwal
Chief Financial Officer
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JINDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of DEE Development Engineers Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
QOpinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of DEE Development Engingers
Limited (hereinafier referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31
2023, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including the conselidated statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the consolidated Cesh Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information
of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner $o required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group as at March 31, 2023, their consolidated profit, including other comprehensive income, their consolidated
cash flows and their changes in equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing {SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the * Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements® section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics® issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not in¢lude the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion con the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that facl. We have nothing to report in this regard.

SR. Balfitol & Co. LLF. aLimited Liability Partnesship with LLP Ideniity No. AAB-4294
Requ. Office : 22. Camac Street, Black ‘87, 3rd Floor, Kelkata-700 016
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consclidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS3) specified under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of their respective companies
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
enstring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective companies to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so,

Thase respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of their respective companies.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an andit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We alse;

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Qbtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in cur auditor’s report to the rejated disclosures
in the consclidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
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Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group lo cease to continue as a going concem.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

+  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We cemmunicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 3 subsidiaries, whose
financial statements include total assets of Rs. 22,975.66 lakhs as at March 31, 2023, and total revenues of Rs.
11,851.38 lakhs and net cash inflows of Rs. 122,97 lakhs for the year ended on that date. These financial statement
and other financial information have been audited by other auditors, whose financial statements, other financial
information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. Qur opinion on the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the report(s) of such other auditors,

Our opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work dene
and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information certified by the
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 {“the Order”™), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
report of the other auditcrs on separate financial statements and the other financial information of the sutbsidiary
companies, incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter® paragraph we give in the “Annexure 1" 2
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xi) of the Order.

2. As required by Section [43(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other
auditers on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, as noted in the
‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) Woefthe other auditers whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;
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®

(©)

(d)

(e)

(0

(2

®)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and reports of the other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consalidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Consolidated
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

[n our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March
31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory
anditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors
of the Group’s companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2* to this report;

In our epinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the subsidiaries
incorperated in India, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid /
provided by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India to their directors in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors
on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiaries, as noted in the
‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i.  The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group in its consolidated Ind AS financial statements — Refer
Note 32(B) to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

ii.  The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including derivative
contracts during the year ended March 31, 2023;

iii. There were no amounts which were required 1o be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India during the year
ended March 31, 2023.

iv.  a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented
to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced cr loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premiwm or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries
to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries (*Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;
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b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented
to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
nothing has come 1o our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
companies incorporated in India.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable only w.e.f. April 1,
2023 for the Holding Company and its subsidiaries companies incorporated in India, hence
reporting under this clause is not applicable,

For 8.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Fign Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Amit Yadav

Partner

Membership Number: 501753
UDIN: 223017S2R4KRRrRWTET12
Place of Signature: M.ewo DA«
Date: 2.2,,0.1 ’”;5
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ANNEXURE 1’ REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH | UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER
LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

Re: DEE Development Engineers Limited (*the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, and based
on the consideration of report of the respective auditors of the subsidiary companies incerporated in India, we
state that:

Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report) Order (CARO)
reports of the companies included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements are:

8. No. | Name CIN Holding Co. | Clause No of'the
/Subsidiary CARO report which is
qualified or is adverse

1 DEE Development | U74140HR1983PLC030225 | Holding Clause 3 ii(b)
Engineers Limited

2 Malwa Power Private | U40107HR2002PTCQ67195 | Subsidiary Clause 3 vii(a)
Limited

For S.R, Batliboi & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Figm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Amit Yadav

Partner

Membership Number: 501753
UDIN: 23501753 R4 % RWTETTR,
Place of Signature: pyocs el

Date: 4. [fyi [202
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ANNEXURE *2° TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DEE DEVELOPMENT ENGINEERS
LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of DEE Development Engineers
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™} as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries {the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™),
which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financizl Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, which are companies incorporated in
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal conirol
over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of
internal contro] stated in the Guidance Note en Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These respounsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequaté internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Respansibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both, issued by 1CAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to conselidated ind AS financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or errcr.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial contro! with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements includes those




S.R. Bariisoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

pelicies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the eompany; {2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generaily
accepted accounting prineiples, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Coniroels With Reference to Consclidated Ind AS Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consclidated Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group, which are companies incorporated in !ndia, have, maintained in all material respects,
adequate intemnal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements and such internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31,2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of infernal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the 1CAL

Other Matters

Qur report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internai financial
contrels with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company, in so far as it relates
to these two subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India, is based en the correspending reports of the
auditors of such subsidiaries incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Fizm Registration Number; 30 1003E/E300005

per-Amit Yaday

Partner

Membership Number: 501753 ViR
UDIN: 23501753 R4 % RWWTET /3N,
Place of Signature: Ng o the .1
Date: 22_{9;713‘0%




DEE Development Engincers Limited
Consalldated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

{Amount in INR Lacs)

Particulars Notes Asat As at
31 March 2023 3] March 2022
ABSETS
Non-current ossets
Property, plant and equipment 3 36475.55 34.539.18
Capital work-in-progress 3 349,14 426.48
Goodwill 3(a) 27118 27118
Onher intangible assets 3{a) 265.05 185.58
Right of use assets 30 1,040.85 434.09
Financial assets
{i) Investments q 1.00 1.00
{i1) Other Minancial assers D) 738.48 927,28
Deferred tax assets (ner) 15(C) 319.73 248.03
COther non-current assets 6 9635.61 543.01
Total non-current asscls 40,426,59 757583
Current assets
Inventories 7 28,218.17 24,2033
Financial asseis
(i) Trade recaivables 5{A) 17,2725 15,343.44
(i) Cash and cash equivalems 5(B) 1%1.84 33,85
{iii) Bank balanees other than (ji) above 5tC) 3,097.57 249331
{iv} Other financial assels 5{D) 809.52 69.65
Other curvent assets [ 591395 4,820.49
Total current nssets 56,199.30 46.963.97
Total assets 9662589 84,539,80
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equily
Equity share capital ] 1,060,758 1,050.78
Other equity 9 41,303.50 40.117.37
Total equity 42,564.28 41,198.15
Linbilitics
Non-current liabilities r
Financial liabilities
{i) Bomowings 10{A) 6,181.91 468215
(i) Lease lahilities 1A 881.68 404.17
Delerred tax liabtlities (net) * 15(C) 1,.970.56 2029.73
Wet employce defined benef liabilities 12 14.82 13.66
Other non current liabilitics 14 209.09 95.92
Total mon-currend lizbilities 9,258.06 7,325.63
Current liabilitics
Financial liabitities
[i) Borrowings 10(B) 2008026 231.853.76
(if) Lease Nabilities 1A 231,97 95,00
{iii} Trade pavables
~ (@) Tatal ovtstanding dues of micto enterprises and small entecprises 16 434.12 449.86
«{b) Total outstanding dues af creditors ather than micro emeeprises and 16 12,773.45 2,913.12
small enterprises
(iv) Dther financial linbilities 1 2laz24 412.50
Met employee defined benefhit liabilities 12 24830 194.21
(hher current liabilities 14 I,123.15 1,152.87
Liabilities for current tax (net) |3 296.05 40.70
Total current linbilities 45,003,585 36,116,02
Total equity and Babilities 9%2 84,539.80
Summary of significant accounting pelicies 2

‘The accompanying notes are an intepral part of these consolidated financial staements

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batlibei & Co. LLP
Chartered Accourtants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301 003E/E300005

per AMNL Yaday
Partner
Membership No: 301753

Place : New Delhi
Date : September 22, 2023

Fer and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

DEE Development Englineers Limited

Krishan Lalit Bansal
Chaitman and Managing Director
DIN No. 01125121

RanjaM®Saranni
Compiny secretary
FCS-B604

Place - Palwal
Diate - Sepember 22, 2013

Ashima Bansal
Director
D[N MNo. 01928449

Sameer Agarwval
Chief Financial Officer



DEE Development Engineers Limited
Consolidated Statement ef Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31 March 2023

_(Amount in INR Lacs)
Particulars Notes  For the year endedd For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2023
I Income
Revenue from contracts wilh customers 17 59,549.52 46,091.58
Other income 18 1,882.45 992.34
Total Income {I) 51,431.97 47,083.92
11 Expecnses
Cost of raw materials consumed 19 22,600.99 19.489.73
Purchases of traded goods 28358 113.52
{Inereasal in tnveniaries of finished poods, traded goods and work-in-progress 20 (3,876.74) {2,420.99)
Emplovee benelil expenses 21 11,094.58 7920 82
Finance costs 24 2489022 2,533.62
Depreciation and amortization expense 22 377272 3.589.93
Other expenses 23 22,514.92 14,518.88
Total expenses {11} 59.394,77 45,754.51
I Profit before tax (1-11) 2.037.20 1,329.41
IV Tax expense: 15
{1 Cutrent 1ax 852.51 677.53
{2) Adjustment of tax related to earlier years 341 (29.84)
(3} Deferred tax (credit) (109.12) £137.96)
Total tax expense (IV) 739.98 S509.73
Y Profit for the year {I11-IV} 1.207.22 819.68
¥I  Other comprehensive incomef{loss) 25
Items that will mot he recinssified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement pain/ {loss) on defined benefit plans [86.28) £3.10
Inzome rax effect 2175 {3.24)
Itews that will be reclassified fo statement of profit or loss:
Exchanpe differences an translation of foreizn aperations HE) {66,567 (29.14)
Other comprehensive incomef{lass) for the year, net of tax (V) {131,0% +{19,28)
VII Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax [V4+ V1) 1,166.13 800.40
Earnings per equity share [nominal value of shares INR 10 ench (Previous year INR 10 26
eaeh)|
- Basic earpings per share 245 1.53
- Diluted earnings per share 245 1.53

Summary of significan accounting policies

The accompanying, notes are an integral pari of these consolidated financial statements
As per sur repon of even date

For §. R. Battiboi & Co, LLI

Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration Mumber: 301003E/E300005

Pr AT YA0ay
Partner
Membership No: 501753

Place . New Delbi
Date : Seprember 22, 2023

(%]

For and on bekal{ of the Board of Directors of

DEE Development Engineers Limited

Krishan Lalit Bansal
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN Mo. G1125121

RanjTn Sarangi
Company secretary
FCS-8604

Pluce : Palwal
Date : Seplember 22, 2023

Ashima Bansal
Director
DIN No. 01928449

Sameer Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer




DEE Devetopment Engineers Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Amount in INR Lacs)

Particulars For the year ended For the Year ended
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
A. Opcrating activitics
Profit before tax 2,037.20 1,329,418
Adjostments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash Haws:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 377202 3,589.93
Profit/ loss on sale /discard of property, plant and equipment {net) (19797 6.02
Finance income (153.12) (134.81)
Linbilities no longer required written back (362.06) -
Unrealized (gain) on foreign exchange (net) (642.09) (268.41)
Amartization of deferred revenue (16.55) -
Finance costs 2.990.22 253362
Sundry balances written off 140.45 {1.32)
Operating profil before working capital changes 7.568.80 7.054.44
Working caplfal adjustments:
{Increase) decrease in trade receivables {2,128.84) 4,5438.20
(Increase) in inventaries (4,714.92) (5,764.66)
{Increase) in financial assels (1,409.52) (15.81)
{Increase} in other assets (380.61) (1,196.97)
Increase in trade payables 3,346.23 241480
Increasef{decrease) in provisions 44,04 {30.66)
Inerease in financial liabilities 417.36 416,33
(Decrease) in other liabilities (258.14) (74.66)
Cash penerated from operations 1,984.40 T.351.01
Income tax paid (net of refund) {590.51) {636.28)
Net cash Nlows from operating activitics 1,353.89 6,714.73
Investing activities
Purchase of property. plant and equipment, capital work in progress and intangible assets (5.864.52) (2,631.68)
Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment 282.30 249.76
[nvestments in bank deposits (2,643.34) {1.331,66)
Proceeds from redemption/ maturity of bank deposits 2,246.25 365.22
Interest received 782.08 633.70
Net cash flows uscd tn investing activitics (5,197.23) (2,214.66)
Financing activities
Proceeds from long term borvowings 0,260.84 2.584.37
Repayment of long term bomrowings (7.103.19) (3,378.36)
Procesds from short 1erm borrowings (net) 5,512.24 3,843.20
Interest paid (3,50791) (2,870.42)
Principle repayment of lease liabilities {125.40) (67.61)
Interest paid on lease liabilitics {85.25) (48.69)
Buyback of equity shares - {(5.034.04)
Net eash flows from/ (used in) financing activitics 3,951.33 {4,971.55)
Net increase/ (decrenase) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 147.99 {471.48)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginaing of the year 331.85 505,33
Cash and cash eqnivalents at year end (refer nole 5(B)) 181,84 33.85




DEE Development Enpineers Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount In INR Lacs}

Components of cash and cash equivalenis

(Amount in INR Lacs)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 5 (B)):
Cash on hand
Balance with banks

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial stalements
As per our report of even date

For 8, R, Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAL Fism Registration Number: 301003E/E3000035

per Amit Yadav
Partner
Membership No: 501753

Place : New Delhi
Date : September 22,2023

830 3.30
173.54 2855 .
181.34 33.85

—

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

DEE Development Engingers Limited

Krishan Lalit Bansal
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN No. 01125121

RanjM Sarangi
Company sccretary
FCS-8604

Place : Palwal
Date : September 22, 2023

Ashima Bansal
Direclor
DIN No. 01928449

“Sameer Aparwal
Chief Financtal Qfficer




DEE Development Enpinvers Limbted
C

1 St of el

in equily for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Amouai in INR Lacy)

A,

Equity share eapitalt

Particulars Equity Shares
No. in lacs INR lacs
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Equity shares of INR 10 eac issued, subscribed and fully paid
At ] April 2022 106.08 1.060,77
Chanes in equity share capital due 1o prior period erors - -
Restated balance as nt 1 April 2022 106.08 1,060,77
lssue of equity share capital . -
At 3l March 2023 106,08 1050,77
For the yenr ended 31 March 2022
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subseritred and fully paid
At1 Aprll 202 156,93 1.569.27
Chemges in equity share capital dus 1o prior peficd ervors - -
Restated balance as at I Apri) 2022 156,93 1,569.27
Burvback of equity share eapital {refer note 9} (50.85) {508 42)
A1 3] Mareh 2022 166.08 100,78
Oller equity .
rves and Surplus Other Comprehensive
Rede Tncome
Particnlars , . Total
Secarities General Caplla} Retained Foreign Curvency
. Redemplion . ‘Translation
Premium reserve sarnings
Reserve Reserve
Balaoce us at 01 April 2022 16,730.93 407722 8,49 1826798 552,73 40,13737
Changes in accouming policies or prior period ermora . - - - . -
Restated balanee a5 al O April 2022 16,730,93 407722 508,49 1826798 582,75 40,1377
Add/ {lessh:
Profit for the year - - - 1.297.22 - 1,297.22
Other comprehensive income/ {loss) for the year - . - (64.53) - (64.53)
Exch; diff: an of fareign operati - - - - {66.56) {66.56)
Halance ns at the 31 March 2023 16!730.93 4&?.2] 508.49 I9.500567 486,19 4 IJI]J.@
Batance a5 a0 01 April 2021 16,730.93 4,585.71 - 21.963,99 53189 43,862.52
Changes in accounting policies or priet perfod emors - - - - - -
Restated balance as at 01 April 2021 16,730.93 458571 - 21,963,99 581.8% 43,862.52
Add/ flescy:
Prafit for the vear - - - 819,68 - B19.68
Other comprehensive income/ (oss) for the vear - - - 9.56 - 2.56
Adjustment on sccount of buyback of shares (refer nole k1] (508.49) 50849 {4,525.55) (4,525.55)
Exchange difference on translation of fareign operations - . - - (25,143 {2914}
Balance as at the 31 March 2022 16,730.03 407122 S05.4% 18,267,98 552.7% -QIJT.J'?
Summary of sivnificant accoununu policies
The accompanying notes are an intesral parl of these lidatcd F |
A5 per our report of even date
For 5. R, Tailibai & Co. LLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chantered Accotntants DEE Develaprtent Engincers Limibed
ICAL Firm Regisiration Number 301003E/EI00005
Krighna Lalic " Ashima Bansal
Bansal
Chafrman and Managing Director Director

per Amil Yaday
Partner
Membership No: 501753

Place ; Wew Dethi
Dare : September 22, 2023

DIN No. 01125121 DIN No. (57R44%

Ranjne*$nrangi -Sxineer Agarwal
Campany secretary Chief Financial Officer
FCS-8604

Place * Pglwal

Date : September 22, 2001




DEE Development Eagineers Limited

Notes to the ¢ Iidated [ for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023
fAmopnt in INR Lacs)
3 P plant and
Elecrmieal Computer:
- bt N Farplwre &  Pant &  lostallations Office Motor and data Ropeway Muoclds & Iydraatie Caphj"
Particulary F tand i . . Roads worhs and Total  work in
fMnings machinery and equipment vehicles processing  siructore dies inelines Pro
cquinment leam e Bress
Grass Block
As 2101 April 2021 A0 30 18,407.16 652,20 2430510 1,038.1% 27541 1,079,058 B335 T3 12528 701,94 15794 48,539.21 0.18
Additions - 69547 136 60 L215.21 60,71 1053 AB.08 12741 - - - - 223401 74593
Foreiyn exchange impact {41,009 (197.4%) {1.103) (136,74} {1.54) 4.46) {12.02} (547} - - - - (199.83; -
Disposal - - - {73.88) (1219 [0.50) {(aLIn (16.73) - - - - {140.47) {819.63)
As a1 31 March 2022 3990.30 15,0488 270 25.104.69 LO74.97 181.08 1,083.34 936,46 3139 12528 T02.94 157.94 £0,292.97 41648
Addittons 41372 L141.56 141.03 2,696,653 142.58 11921 22338 196,02 - 60,84 - - 5,145.97 131020
Fareign exchange impatt 66.75 321.58 208 112059 26T T 19.23 94 - - - - 651.90 -
Dirpasal LI (52.75) (13.05) (9347 - (3.71) (54.06) (63 84) - - - - (30%5.83)  (1,387.54)}
As at 31 March 2023 4439177 17,310.27 921,76 25.030,49 [,220.12 379.97 1.271.89 1,073.25 3739 186,12 702.94 157.94 £5,785.01 340.14
Accumulated depreciation
At al 0 April 2021 . 2,790.14 35120 731393 55017 170,98 402,21 512024 1284 67.78 27284 G661 1253184 -
Charge for the year {refer note 22) - 84027 7106 1.986.19 [s.7 39.39 116,94 138.15 266 13.55 70.69 13.13 343174 -
Foreign exchange impact - {3947 [0.77) {9225} (0.99) (2.86) (247} (4.5M - - - - (E43.38) -
Dispasal - - - {21.05) 1] {028} [20.48) 13.30) - - - - {66 41) -
As an A March 2022 - 2,590.94 421.49 9,196.82 658.69 20723 496,20 662,52 15,50 3133 34332 .74 15,783.79 -
Charge (or the year {refer note 22} - 823.57 8695 ZL15.7] 1GL.95 g0 12094 141,79 1656 13.58 6633 13.04 352435 -
Foreign exchange impacs - 82.75 &l 100.57 237 6.62 6,70 290 - - - - 21672 -
Dispasal - {7.54) (10.73) {46.18) - {17.28) {40.59) 163.08) - - - - {185.40) -
As an 21 March 2023 - 4A496.52 49%.52 11.366.92 TE3.01 23360 58325 750,13 £3.156 2491 409.66 91.78 19.309.98 -
Net Block:
As at 31 Maorch 2022 399130 1231394 3TLI 16,007,857 416.28 73.85 587,14 2734 2159 4395 359,61 78.20 34,519.18 426.48
Agat 3] Mapch 2013 449177 13,313,75 413,23 16.663.57 4521 14537 638.64 B 19.23 9.2 293.28 6516 3647555 349.14
Notes:
i) On pransition 1o [nd A% (e | April 2005}, the Group has elecied o cominue with the camying value of all property, plent and exuiy A 24 per p GAAP and use thar canying value 23 the deemed cost of property, plant and
equipment.
#] Capital work-in-progress .
Capital work-in prog prised of expenditure on buildings under course of conminiction in respert of factory buildings and expendfiure on plam and machinery.

ifi) Propgrty plant and tquipment pledged an security
Refer note 10(A)2nd |{B) For informalion on property, plant end cquipment pledged as sacurity for boreawings by the Graup.

¥l Assels lying with 1hird parties
Plam and machinery includes gross block of INR Nil, net block of INR Wil (31 March 2022 pross blaek of TNR, 97,88 [oes, net block of INR 34.28 lacs) lying with third panies,

v} Contraciunl phiieations
Refer nove 32(A) for discl of 1 for the acquisition of propeny, plae and equdpmen.
vi) Capitalised borrowing cost

No borrowing cost are capitalised during the curven year and previous year




DEE Development Engineers Limited
Notes to the i d Fancial

for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023

(Ampuny in [NR Lacs)
wil} Assees held in the name af the Group
Theitle deeds of all immovable propenics §.¢.land and buikiing) are Betd in the name af the Group as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 and are pledged with the banks against toan taken by the group,
viil] Capital work In progress (CWIP) Ageing Schedule
Az at 31 March 2023
Amount in CWIP for s periad of ;
Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 vears Mure than 3 years Total
INR lacs INR Jacs TNR lacs [NR [acs MR facs
Projecis in progrms 349 14 - . - 349.14
Projects i1y suspended _ B . _ C
Towl 349,14 - - - 339.14
Ay at31 March 2022
Arount in CWIF for a period of
Legs than 1 year 1-2 years 23 years More thao 3 yenrs Total
INR lacs MR lacs INR, lags INR Incy INR lacs
Projests in progress# 35839 3.0 44.9% B 426.48
Projects ily fed B - . . -
Total 338.39 2310 44.99 - 426,48

# There are n6 profects where activity has been suspended

- Alsn there ane no profects as on the reporiing date where completion is overdue or which has excesded cost as compared to its original plan,




DEE Development Engineers Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Amount in INR Lacs)

3{a) Intzngible assets

Other intangible

Particulars Goodwill* assets- Software Total

Gross Block

Asat [ April 2021 271.18 7637 987.55
Additions - 25.00 25.00
Foreign exchange impact - 2.70) {2.70)
Disposal - (0.25) (0.25)
As at 31 March 2022 271.18 738.42 1,009.60
Additions - [73.90 173.90
Foreign exchange impact - 4.51 4,51
Disposal - (52.00) (52.00)
As at 31 March 2023 271.18 864.83 1,136.01
Accumulated Amoriisation

As at 1 April 2021 - 490.04 490.04
Charge for the year (refer note 22) - 65.61 65.61
Foreign exchange impact - (2.61) {2.61)
Disposal - {0.20} {0.20)
As at 31 March 2022 - 552,84 552.84
Charge for the year (refer note 22) - - 90.09 90.09
Foreign exchange impact - 4.38 4.38
Dispasal - {47.33) {47.53)
As at 31 March 2023 - 599.78 599.78
Net Block:

As at 31 March 2022 271.18 185.58 456,76
As at 31 March 2023 271.18 265.05 536.23

Nate to the intangible assets:
On transition to Ind AS (i.e. ! April 2015}, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all intangible assets measured as per -
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets.

* Goodwill arising out of consolidation
Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with the Company’s procedure for determining the recoverable value of
such assets. The recoverable value was determined using value-in-use (VILN. The V1U is determined as the discounted value of future cash
flows by using cash flow projections approved by the senior meanagement for the next five years and is based on intemnal forecasts,
considering the current economic conditions, growth rates and anticipated future economic conditions.

Appropriate terminal growth tates of 2% (31 March 2022 - 2% ) znd discount rate of 14.13% (31 March 2022 - 13.68%) are used o
forecasted cash Rows where the rates are consistent with forecasts inchrded in industry reports and reflects the specific risks relating to the
segment in which Company operate. Based on the above, no impairment was identified as of 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 as the
recoverable value of the cash generating unit exceeded the carrying values.

The management believes that any possible changes in the key assumptions would not cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable
amount of cash generating unit,

Key assumptions used for value in use calculations:
The calculation of value in use is most sensitive to the following assumptions: -

Gross margins — Gross margins are based on average values achieved in the three years preceding the beginning of 1he budget period. These
are increased over the budget period for anticipated efficiency improvemenis.

Discount rates - Discount rates represent the curent market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, taking into consideration the
time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount
rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the Company and is derived from its cost of equity. The cost of equity is derived
from the expected retum on investment by the Company’s investors. Company-specific risk is incorporated by applying individual beta
factors. The bete factors arc evaluated annually based on publicly available market data, Adjustments to the discot ade to factor
in the specific amount and risk premium,




DEE Development En gineers Limlml

Nates o ¢

Lid for the year ended March 31, 2013

1. Corporate Informarion

DEE Development Engincers Limited (“the DEE" or Holding Company™ or he "Paremt Company®) is a public limited company domiciled in tndia and has its
registered office ar 1255, Sector 14, Faridabad, 121007, Haryana. Indfa,

The Holding Company, its subsidiaries and jofaily lled entity (collectively referred as the "Group) are principally engaged in manufaciuring of Pre-fabricated
Enginesring Products, Pipe Fittings, Piping Systems and Biomass based [‘ower Generatign, The Group has manufacturing Fxcilities at Tatarpur (Haryana), Barmer
(Rajasthan}, , Gandhidhan (Gujrat), Thailand m}d Power Generation plamt at Abohar (Punjab), Mukiasar (Punjab).

The

tidoted ¥ stai was appraved for issug in accovdance with @ resolution of the Board on September 22, 2023,

2 Rignifieant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The lidated financial of the Group have been peepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {lnd AS) a5 rotified by ministry of
comporate affairs under seetion 133 of Companies Act 2003 [Act) rmed with under the Companies {Indian A ing Standards) Rades, 2015 (25 amended from
Gme to fime) and presentation requirements of Division I of Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, {Ind AS compYiant Schedule 1), as applicable ta the
Comsolidared Financial statement,

The financial statements of the group have been prepared on a historical cosi basis. except for the following assets and Rabilities:
(i) Certain financial assets and Tiabilities measured at Fair value,

(it Defined benefit plan- plan assets measured at fair value,

(iit) Derivative linancial instrymenis

The finangial ae p din INR and all values ars rounded to the nearest lacs (INR 00,000), cxcept when othenwise stated,
Basis of consolidation
The lidated Fnancial compnse he financial of the holding Co., its subsidiaries and jointly conirolled entity as a1 31 March 2022, Control is

achieved when the Group is exposed, or bas rights, to varizble retorns ftom its invalvement with the investes and bes the nbility to affect those rerurns through its powes
over the investes. Spegifically, the Group controls an investee ifand only if the Group has:

¥ Power over the investes (i.2, exdsting rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevan activities of the investee)

P Exposure, o rights, to variable retums from 712 invelvement with the investee, and

W The ability to use i1s power over the investes to affect its retums

Geuerally, there is a presumption that a majerity of voring sighus result in control. Te suppert this prtsmphon and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting,
or gimilar rights of an investee, (he Group considers all relevant facts and ei in g whether it haz power over an investee, including;

W The contractudd arrangement with the other vote holders of the investes

I Riphts arising from other cenraciual amangements

¥ The Croup’s voting rights and petential voting siphts

P The size af the group®s holding of voring rights relative fo the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights bolders

The Group ether or not it Is an investee i€ faots and circuimstances indicate thar there acs changes to ene or more of the three elements of control,
Congslidation of a subsidiary begins wheu thes Group obiains control over the subs:dmry and ceases when the Group loses comire] of the subsidiary. Assets, Habilites,
income and expenses of 3 subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the lidated £ 1] from (he dare the Croup gains control

umtil the dare the Group ceases (o contrel the subsidiary.

Consolidaied Enancial are prepared using uniform accounting policics for Tike transactions and other eveals in similar circumstances. 1Ma member of the group
uses accounting palicies other than those adopred in the lidated Rnancial for like tramsactions and evenls in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustmenis are made 1o that group ber’s financial in preparing the consolidated financlal statements to ensure conformity with the group®s accounting
palicies.

The firancial statements af all entities used for the purpose of consolidation sre drawn up 10 same reporting date as that of the parent proup, i.e., year ended on 31 Masch.




DEE Development Engincers Limited
Notes 10 cansclldated finaneind statements Far the yenr ended March 31, 2023

Censolidation procedures are:
(1) Substdlaries

(@) Combine like items of assets, liabilivies, equiry, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with thosg of its subsidiaries. For this purpase, i and
expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounis of the assetz and liabilines ised in the fidated financial 5t us a1 the acquisition date.
fb) Offsel (climinate) the camrying amount of the parent's in in each subsidiary and the parem's portion of equity of =ach subsidiary. Busiwess

combinzions policy explaing how 1o account for any relaled poodwill.

{c) Eliminate in full intragroup asseis and liabilities, equity, income, expensss and cash Bows relating to transactions between entilies of the proup {nrofits or losses
resulling fram intragroup ions that are recognised in assets, such as invenmory and fixed assets, are climinated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an
impaiment thaf requires recoguition in the consolidmed financial statements. fnd AS 12 Income Taxes applies o temparary differences that arse from the
elimination aof prafits and Josses resulting from intragroup mransactions.

Profit or loss and cach component of ether comprehensive incorne (OCT) are atributed to the equity bolders of the parent of the Group and 1o the non-contralling
interests, even if this resalts in the non-cantrolling interests having n delficil balance, When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial siatements of
subsidiaries to bring Wheir 2ccaunting policies inta line with the Group’s necounting policics. All intra-group asssts and lisbilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash Nows relating to transaciions between members of the Group are elininated in full on eonsofidatian,

A change in the ownesship inlerest of a subsidiary, without a boss of conirol, is sccounted for as an equity transserion, 1€ the Group loses contral aver & subsidiary,
it:

! pnises the assais (including goodwill) and linkilivies of the subsidiary

» Derccognises the camying amount of any non-conrolling, inereses

» Derecognises the cumulative twanslation differences recorded in equiry

» Recogniscs the fair value of the considevation reeeived

¥ Recognises the Fair value of any investment retained

¥ Recognivss any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

¥ Raclassifies the parem®s share of cainponents previously recopnised in OC 1o prafil or lags or reloined eamings, as appropiate, a3 would be required if the
Group had directlv disnosed of the related nssews or liabilities

fijlovestmenl in Jointly controlled entify

A joimly eanmolled entity is a type of joint arrangement wherehy the pastics Uil have joint control of the arangement have righs to the net nsse1s of the: Jomﬂymnho[[ed
entily. Joint conarol is the conmacmally agreed sharing of contpol of an arrangement, which cxists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimaus consent
of ke pasties shanmg L. The iderations made in derermining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine contral over
the subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its jomlly controlled endity are accounted for usm1, the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in a jointly controlled entily is
initially recogniséd at cost. The camying of the i is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of ner assets of the jointly contratied entity since the
sequisidon date. Goodwill relating to the jeintly led entity is included in the camying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually,

The stalement of profit and Tass reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the jeintly controlled entity. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as
parl af the Group™ s OCI In addition, when there has been a change recopnised directly in the equity of the joindy controlled entity, the Group recognises its share of any

ges, when ble, in the stat t of changes in equity, Unrealised gains and tosses resulting from transactions between the Group and the joinly controlled entity
are eliminated to Ihe extent afthe interest in the jointly contrelled entity,

18 Group's share of losses of a joinily comtrolled entity equats or exceeds ts interest in the jointly controlled entity (which includes any lung, tes interest thal, in substance,
form

part of the Group's net investment ia the joinlly oomrolled muty]. the Group discontinues tecognising its share of Further Tusses. Additional Josses are recognised omly lu the
extent tha) the Group has i d lenal or ive or made pay on behalf of the jointly controlled envity. [f the jointly controlled entity sul
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share oflhose profits only after its share of the probits equals Lhe share of lnssas not reconised.

4 &

The aggregae of the Group®s share of profit or loss of an associate and a jointly controlled entity is shown on the face of the Restited Consolidated Stmtement of Profit and
Liss.

The Summary Staiements of the jointly fled eatity are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group, When necessary, adjustments are made 10 bring the
aecounting policies in line with those of the Group. Afier application of the equity method. the Group detenmines wheiher it is necessary 1o recognize an impairment loss on
its investment in ita jointly conwolled entity, At cach reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the joimly conwolled
entity is impaired. [f there is such evidence, the Group caleulares the amount of impainment as the difference & the bl of the joindy comrolled ety
and its camying valus, and then recognises the loss as “Share of profitofa jointly controlled eatity in the statemeal of profit or Joss.

Upon loss of significant influsnos over the joint control over the joimly controlled entity, the Group and ises any retained investmend at its fair valus. Ay
difference berween the carrying amoun of the jointly controlled entity upon loss of signifieant inltuence or joiot contro! and the foi nir value of the retained investment less cost
to sell is recopnised in profit or loss.

The Group discontinoe Ibe use of equity method from the date the investment is classificd as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 - Non-cogrent Asserz Held for Sale
and Discontinued Of and the i in inte and jointy lled eniity held for sals at the lower of'its camying amount and fiir value less cost 1o
sell,




DEE Pevelopment Engineers Limited
Notes to conaolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2013

c.  Goodwill
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the apgregate of the considerati ferved and the gnised for rolling i
and any previaus inerest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired snd liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the ner assers acquired is in excess of the
aggregate consideration mansfierred, the Group hether it has comrecily identified all of the pssels ecquired and all af the linbilities assumed and reviews
U procedures used o the amaunts (@ be tecognised at the ncquisition date. I the reassssament still results in an excess of the fhir valne of net assers
nequired over the agpregate consideration transfested, then the pain is recognised in OCT and lated in equity as capital rescrve, However, if there is no clear
evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recopnises the gain ditectly in equity as capital reserve, withoul routing the same theough OC1.

After initia] cecopnition, paodwill is measured o cost less any accumulated impainnent losses. For the purpose of impai testing, goodwill acquired in o

business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated 1o each of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to henedit Frorn the cembination,
irmsspestive of whether other assets or liabilifies of the acquire are assigned to those units.

A eash g:n:mungumt 10 which goodwill has been allocaled is tested for impairment annually, or more frequenily when there is 2n indication that the unit may be
impaired. If the ble amount of the cash generafing unit is less than its camying amount, she impairment loss is allocared fivst to reduce the camying amount
of any pondwill alloested to the unil and then 1o the other assets of the unil pro rata based on the carmying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in profit or loss, An impai loss resognised For goodwill is not reversed in subsequent pericds.

Where soodmll has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation witlin that urul is disposed of, the g,ondmll assacinled with the disposed
operation is included in the carrying amount of the operamion when detennining the gain orloss on disposal, Goodwill di 1 in these cincumstances is measuned
based on the retative values of tha di d aperation and the ponion of the cash.g Wil retained,

L]

I the initia! secounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination ageurs, the Group reparts provisicnal
amonnts for the fems for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are sdjnsted through goodwill during the measurement period, or
edditional assets er liahilities are recognised, 10 reflect new information obtained about facts and circumsiances that existed ag the sequisition date that, if kpown,
would bave affected (he amounts recognized ar thar date. These adjustmeits are calted as measurcient pesiod edjustments. The measurement petiod docs nat
exceed ang year (rum the acquisition date.

d. Use of Estimates
The preparation of eonsolidated financial stat ts in confosrity wilh generalh d ing, princeipl i gement to make cstimans and

assumptians thar affect the reported of i and exp ol‘ the penod rq:uned balances of assets and tistilities and disclosuge of contmgent
liabilities ot the date of the financia] sternents and the results of’ operatians during the reporting petiod. Examples of such estimates nclude provisions for
doubtful debis and advances, future obligaions under employee retirement benefil plans, useful lives of fixed assets, contingencies, ete. Although these esiimares
arg based upon management's best knowledge of curment events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates, Differance between zomal result and

estimates are recognised in the period in which the resulls are known/malcrialise.

e.  Current vs Non Current Classifigasion
The Group presents assets and liobilities in Ihe balanes sheet based on quent! non-current classifieation.

An asset is treated as current when if is
= Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or din 1 operating, cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of treding
- Expecied to be realised within twelve months after the reporting peried, or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o scitle a lisbility for 2t least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classilied ag non-coment.

A linbility i3 current when:

= It is expected 16 be settled in normal opecating cyele

= It i3 hiedd primarily for the purpose of rading

- It is due 10 be senled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no uncanditional right wo defer the sealement of the liability for at least twelve nwonihs after the reporting periad.

The Group classifies all other habilities as non-current.
Deferred vax xssetg and liabilities are classified a5 non-curment assets end liabilities.

The opecating cycte is the time benween the cequisilion of assets for processing and their vealisation in cash and cash equivalents, The Group has identified twelve
meaths as its operating eyele.

I Foreign currencies

The Group financial statements are presented in IR, which is also tha Group's functienal ¢ v, Items included in the financial sta of each of the
Group's ¢ntities are I wsing the y of the primary economic envirgnment in which the entity opcratcs ("the functional cucrency”).For cach entity the
Group detenmines the fanctional cumrency and atems included in the Bnancial siotements nl‘ench endty are d nging that functional y. For the purp

of consolidation fmo the financiol statement of wltimate parent Group, these financk are d in IMR, being the l‘unctiom! and presentation
cqurrency of altimata parent Group . The Group uses the direct method of’ lidation and on disposal ol a foreign operatien the pain or loss that is reclassified 10
profit or boss feflects the amount that erises from using this methed.

Om consolidation, the asscts and labilities of foreign operations ore mastated imo INR m the rate nfm:hangc prevailing at the reporting date and 1heir stalements
of profit or loss arc translated at exchangs rates pu'ovalllng at the dates of the i Farg | the group uses an g& rabs to transl

and expense items, if’ the ge rats the eachange rales at the dates of the ioms. The exchange dilfe arising on fation for
consolidation are recognised in OCIL, On clu-posal of a fercign operalion, the component of OC) velating to that particular foreipn operation is resogrised in profil
or [oss,




DEE Develonment Engineers Liwited
Notes to consolldated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Traunsaction and balances

Transactions in foreiga currencies aro initially recosded by the Group’s entities al their respective functional currency spot rates a1 the date the transaction first
qualifies for recopnition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses an average mte if the averape approximates the aciual rate ot the date of the

transnetion. The exchange differcnces arising on transtation for lidation ar¢ recoguised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign aperation, the p of OCI
refaling to that particular foreign operatdon is ised in profit or Ioss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in loreipn enrrencies are lated at the functional y spot raies of exchange at the reporting date.
Noa-nongtary items that xre measored in terms of historical cost in a foreign y are translated using the exchange rates a1 the dates of the initia) transastions,,
Non-moneiacy items measured at fair value in a forsign currengy are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Exehonge differences arsing on sentement ar translation of 'y items are recognised in profil ot bass in the pericd m which they arise with the exception of
exchange differences on pain or loss arising on latian af non y items d ot fair value which is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or

Toss on the change in faiv value of the item (i.c.. tnsdation differences on ilems whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also
recogmized in OC] or profit ar loss, nespectively).

g Revenue from contract or services with castomer

Revenue is cecognised to the extent tiat it is probable that the economie benefits will fow 1o the Group and the revenue can be relisbly measured, repardtess of
when the payment is being made. Revenua is measured at the fair valug of the consideration reesived or receivable, taking inte account contractually defined 1ems
of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected an behall'of the government. The Greup has concluded the it is the principal in all of its revenus arangements
because it typically controls the poods or services before mansferring them fo the customer,

Revenue from comiracts with customers is recognissd when control of the goods or services are ferved 1o the at an amcund thar reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects 1o be eatitled in exchange for those goods or services. ’

The Group collects Goods and service tax (GST) on behalf of the govemment and therefore, these are nod cconomic benefits flowing to the Group. Hence, they
are excluded from revenue.

The specific recognilion ¢riteria described below most also be met before ravenue is recopmised,

Sale of Gouods

Revenue from sale of goads is recopnised at the poim in dme when control of the goods 1s fearred o the cush B lly an delivery of the equipment.
Revenus from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and all trade di and vol
rebates,

In determining the transaction price for the sale of equiy e Group iders the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significam financing

eompanents, noncash consideration, and ideration

payable io the (iF amy ).
(i) Yariable consideratian

IE the ideraticn in 2 includes a variabl the Group est the of Mcration o which it will bg eofitted in exchange for
transfeniing the goods 10 the custemer. The variable considerntion is estimared ai inception and ined unmtil it is highly probable that a significant
revenie reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the pysociared inty with the variable consideration is subszquently
res0lved.

Rendering of Services

Revenue from emection service and job work is recognised as per the contractual 1erms and as and when services are rendered. The Group collects Goads and
service tax (GST) on behalf of the povernmen and, therefire, it is not an ¢conamic benefit lowing to the Group. Hence, 1 is excluded from revenue.

Interest Incorae

For all debt instruments measured either ot mnortised cost ar a1 fair value theough other comprchensive income, interest inseme is recorded using the effective
interest rate (E(R). EIR is the rate (hat exactly discounts the estimated futuie cash payments or receipts aver the exg d life of the financial inst of a shorter
period. where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to (he amortised cost of a financia liability, When caleulating the effective imerest
rate, 1he group estimates the expected cash flows by considering afl the I tenms of the financial instrament (for example, prepayment, cxtengion, call and
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Rental income arising fromn operating Teases an in properties is 1 for on a sraight-line basis over the lease serms and is ineluded in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.




DEE Development Englneers Limited
Notes to consolidated Kunncial siatements for the year ended Mareh 30, 2023

Sale of Electricity

Revenue from sales of electricity is billed on the basis of recording of supply of electricity through installed meters. R from safes of elecicity is accounted
for on the basis oF billing 1o customers based on billing cycles followed by the proup.

Contract balances

Contract nsseps

A coutract agset is the right 1o consideration in exchange for goods or sarvices ferred to the If the growp performs by transferting poods or senvices
te a customer before the customer pays congideration or before pay is due, & asset is recognised for the eamed consideration that is conditional,

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Group®s right o an amount of consideration that is unconditional (Le., only the passape of timg is required before pay of the
eonsideration is due). Refer 1o ing policies of financial assets in section (w) Financial instruments — initial recopnition and smbsequent measurement.

Contract liabilifes

A contract lishiliry is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received ideration {or an af consideration is
duc) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration bsfors the Group transfers pands or services to the customer, a conwact liability is recopnised when the
payment is imade ot the payment is due (whichever is carlier). Cantract liabilitics are recognised as revenne when the Graup performs under the cantract

Government Grunts

Govemmen| granys are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the prant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the
grand velates to an exg item, dy is ised 88 i on a sy ic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, arg

expensed. When the grant refares te an asset, 1 is recopnised as i in equal over the expecied usefu! life of the related asger,

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assers, the assel and the grant arc recorded al Fair value emounts and reJeased to profit or loss over the expected
useful life in 2 pattern of conswmption of the benefit of the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual iustatments. When loans o simitar-assistanee are peovided by
gavemments or related ingitutions, with an intessst rate below the cutrenc applicable market rate, the efiect of this favourabla interest is regarded as a government
grani. The loan or assistance is initially recopnised and measured at fair value and the gavernmen| gyant is measured as the difTerence between the initial camying
value of the loan and the progeeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accouming policy applicable 1o financizl liabilities.

Taxntion
Cutrent Income tax

Cuarent income tax assels end liahilities are measured at the amount expecied 16 be recovered from or paid to The 1axation autharities. The tax rafes and tax laws

used ta compate the amount are those thal are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group opsrates and generates
taxable ingome,

Current i tax refmling to items recopnised ide profit or loss is recognised outside proft or loss (gither in other compeehensive income or in equity).
Currenl tax items are recognised in comelation to the underlying iom either in OC] or direcily in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions 1aken
i the tax retums wills respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subjec 10 interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferved tax is provided usiny the liability method on temporary differences benween the fax bases of assets and liabHities and their cartying amounts lor financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary difTeiences, axcept when the deferced tax liability arises from (he initiz] recognition of goodwill or
an asset or lability in B ransaction that is not 3 business combination and, al the time of the yemsaction, Bffects neither the ing profit nor taxable profit or
loss

Deferred tax essets arc recognised for all deductible temparary differences, the camy forward of unused 1ax credits and any unused eax losses, Deferred tax assels
are recognised to the extent that it is probable iat taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the camy Forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be wtilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temparery difference arises from the initial
recagnition of an asset ot fiability in o transaction thel is not  business combination and, af the time of the transaction, aflecis neither the accounting, profil mor
taxable profit or loss.

The camrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that il is 1o longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the defemed tax asset to be utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax assets ara re. { at each reporting date and are
recognised o the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and lishilities are measused at the tax rates that are expected o apply in the year when the asset is realised oc the liability is sanled, based on rax
cates {and tax laws) that have been d or substantively 1 at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating fo items recognised ovtside profit or less is recognised cutside prafit or toss {sither in other comprehensive income or in equity). Defared (2x
items are recognised in lation to the underlying transaction either in OCU ar directly in equity.

Deferred tax includes Minimum Allernate Tax (MAT) and recognises MAT credit available as an saset anify ta the extenl that there is convineing evidence that the
Group will pay nomal income tax dwring the specified period i.e. the period Tor which MAT eredil is allowed 16 be camried fovward, The Group reviews the "MAT
credit entitlement® asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset o te extent the Geoup does not have any conyinging evidencs that it will pay normal 1ax
during the specified period.

Far operations caried ow under tax holiday period (801A henefit of Income Tax Acl, [961), deferred tax asset or liabilities if any, have been established for the
tax consequences of thase remporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases that reverse afler the tax holiday
period ends.




DEE Development Enpineers Limired
Notes to consolidated financial statemenis for the year ended March 31, 2023

k. Property, Plant and Equipment

Capna] w\)rk in progress is stated a1 cost, net of accumulated impainuent loss, if any. All the propaity, plant and equipment is siated at ¢ost, net of sccumulated
dep Iated impaimment losses, if any. Such eost includes the cost of replacing part of 1he plant and equ:pmmt and hnrruwmg costs for long-term
construction profects if the regognition critetia are mel. When sighificem pans of plamt and equif are requited to be replaced al imervals, the Group
depreciams ﬂlem separately based on their specific ussful lives, Likewise, when & major inspection is performed, its cost ig rccogn:sed in the carrying amount of the

plant and equip a3 o repl if'1he recognition criteria are satisied. All other repair and mai COSIS pre gnised in profit or boss as incurred.

The group. based o rechnical made by 1echnical expert and management gsti J iates plant and machineries of piping division over estimated
useful Yives of 15 to 25 years which are different from the useful lifs preseribed in Schedule 11 ho the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fuir approximatien of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

I case of other assets, depreciation has been pravided on stright line method on the ic usaful life prescribed by Schedule It to the Companies Act2013.
Depreciation an addirion to or on disposal of Fixed Asset is calculated on pro maa basis. Addition, to Fmed Assets costing less than or equal to Rs, 5,000 are
depreciated fully in the year of porchase.

An imm of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no fiture ezonomic benefits are
expested from its wse o disposal. Any goin or loss arising on derecognition of whe asset (caleulated as the diff t the net disposal procesds and the
catrying amount of the asser) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecagnised.

The residoal values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively,
if Bppropriate.

Intangible Assets

Intangible azscrs acquired separatcly are d en initiel recognitich & cost. Following rmtla! mogmtlon. intangible assels are cartied at cost less any
accumulated amorisation and accumulated impairment losses.. The cosl of intanpible assers seauired ik 2 busi bination is theit fair value at the dale of
acquisition. Foflawing initia) recognition, inangible assets are carried at cost less any lated emortisation and lated impairment lasses.

Aumortisation of i ible assets is all d b sy ic basis over e best estimate of their useful life and acsordingly sofware's are smodtised on straight line
basis over the period uf six yoars or license period which ever is lower,

Geins or lasses arising from de-recagnition of an intangibls asset are 1 as the difference between the net disposal preceeds and the carrying amount of the
assel and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. The CGroup has na intenpible assers with an indefinite life,

Borruw'mg Cust

B 1 a1 Tl

1g costs directly atr 10 the acquisitien, construction or production ofan asset that uemanly takes a substantial perod of time (o get ready for its
mlencled use o sale are capitalised as pan of the cost of the asset. All other t g COSIS are ey d in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connectian with the borretwing of funds. Botrowing cosl also incTud hange diff to the extent
regarded gs an adjostment to the borrowing costs.

Leases
The Group assesses ar canevact inception
for a period of time in exchange for conziderstion,
Group as lessee

The Group applies a singla recognition and m ch for all leases, except for shan-lerm leases and leases of low-value nssets. The Group recognises

lease liabilities to make Jease paymenis and cipht-of-nse assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

b gl

a<ontract is, or ns, a Jease. That is, if the contract conveys the rght to control the use of an identified assel

(a) Right-of use asse1
The Group recognises right-of-use assers at the commencement date of the lease (i.c.. the date tho underlying asset is available for use), Right-of-uss assels are

measured at cost, less any secwmulated depreciation and impairmem lnm m‘ld djusted for any ¢rent of Jease labilities. The coat of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lkase liabilities recognised, initial direct costs | , and lease pay made at ¢ before the commencement date less any lease
incentives reecived. Right-nf-use asse1s are depreciated op a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease torm and the estimated wusehul lives of the assets, as
follows:
Particulars Useful life (ycars)

AS pev Monagemen
Leasshold Land 5-10
Computer and data processing cquipment 4
Plas) & Machinery 5
I awnership of the leased asset wansters (o the Group at the end of the Iease teem or the cost refects the is¢ of a purchase option, d iation is calculated

using The estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use asscts are alse subject to impainnent. Refer w tha wu:nn'-tnuI policies in section {2.n} Impaiment of
non=financial assets.

b} Lease Liabilifies

Al the commencement date of the lease, the Group tecognises lease Tinbilities measured at the present valuo of lease payments to be made over the lease 1emm. The

lease payments include fixed payivents (including insubstanca fixed payiments) less any Jease incentives receivable, variable bease payments thar depend on an index

ar a e, and amounts expected to be paid wnder rosidual value guarantees, The lease payments also include the exercise prics of ap hase option bl
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penaltiss for terrnmatmg the Jease, if the lease temn reflects the Gronp B the oplion to terminate.
Variable leass payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as exp {unlcss they are incurred 1o produce mvcmorl:s) in the period in which

the ¢venl or condition thal mippers the payment ooours.

In calculeting the presemt valug of leass payments, the Group uses its incromental bormowing cate at the laase date | e i tate impligi

in the: lease is nol readily detenminable. After the o datz, the ol lease liabilifies is increased to reflect dhe iom of i st and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition. the carmying amoum of lzase liabililies is remecasured if there is a medification, a change in the lease texm, & change in the

leas: pay of & change in the of an option 1 purchase the onderying asset.
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(¢) Short-term leases and Jerses of low-valoe assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its shor-tenm leases of maclinary and equipment (Le., those leases that have a beave term of 12
months o7 less from the commencement date and do ol contain a purchase option). [t also applies the tease of low-value assets recognition exemnption to leases of
offics equipmen that are considered to be Tow value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-valne assers are recopnised as expenst on a straight-
lin: basis over the bease lemm.

Group as 3 lessor .
Leases in which the Group docs not trnsfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified ss operating leases. Rental income from
opesating [ease is {sed on a strmight-ling basis over We teom of the relevant tease. Initia) direct costs i 3 in negotiating and wWing an operating Jease
are added to the carrying, amount of the leased nsset and recognised over the fease teom o the same basis as renal j Conlingznt sents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they sre eamed,

Leases are classifisd ns financs Teases when substantially all of fhe risks and s of hiy fer from the Group 10 the lessee. Amounts due from lessees
under finance keases are recordeil as receivables at the Group™s net investinent in the leases. Finance lense incame is ellocated to agcounting peviods su as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of retum on the nel investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Inventories

Inveniories

Raw  marerialy, Stores, Spaves, Other Lower of cost and et realizable valus. Howaver, materials and other supplics held for use in the

Materizhs and Teaded Goods production of inventories are not writlen down below cost iF the finished products in which they
will be incorporated, are expested to be sold 2t oc ahove cost. Cost is determined on weighted
avernge cash basis.

Cost includes cos of purchase and vther costs incurred in bringing the inventories 1o thair prasent
lecation and candition,

Finished goods Lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost includes cost of direct matexials and labour and a
praporiign of manufacuring overheads besed oa the normal operating capacity, but excluding
boowing costs. Cost is determined on weighted average cost basis. Cost of finished goods
includes excise duty, wherever applicable,

Work in Propress Work in Progress is volued at the lower of actusl cost incured or net realizable value. Net
vealisable value is decermined ofter deducting estimated cost expected to be incumed for
completion of work. Cost includes direct materials, labous and propostionate overhsads, Cost is
determined on weighled averape cost basis.

Nel realizable value is the estimated sciling price in the erdinary course of busi legs esti d costs of completion and <sfimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

Impairmen! of non-financial nssers

The Group at each veporting date, wheiher there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. IT any indication exists, or when anpual impainment testing
lor an asset is required. the Group esti the asset's ble amount. An asset’s recovesable omount is the higher of an asset's or cash-penerating wnit's
(CGU) Fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is detenmined For on individual asset, unless the assst does not generate cash
inflows chal are laxgely independent of those from other assols or group of mssets. When the carrying emount of an asset or CGU eaceeds ils recoverable wnount,
the asset is considerced impaired and is writien down 10 its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated fature cash Nows are discounted 10 their present value using a pre-tax disconnt rte that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, Tn determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent markes mansactions are taken into accoum, If
no such transactions can be identified, an apprepriare valuation mode! is used,

Provisions

A provision is recagnised when Group has a present oblfgation as a result of past event and i is probable that an onflow of will b required to serde the
abligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate ean be made, If the cffect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a pre<iax rate thal
reflects when oppeopriate, Lhe risks spectfic 1o the Eability.
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Refirement and Oiher Employee Benefits

(i) Resirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined conwibutian scheme, The Graup bas no cbligation, other than the contribution payable 10 the

provident fund. The Group recogizes contribution payable to the provident fand sch 0g an exp when an employ ders the velated servics, If the
ibution payable to the sch for serviee received before the balance sheet dnte exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit paysble to the scheme is

vecognized as a liahility afier deducting the conwibution already paid. If the confributian already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the

balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an nssey to the exient that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, & reduction in future payment or 2 cash refind,

(i} Gratuity is a defined benelit plan and provision is befny made on the bas's of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary al the year end using
projecsed unit credit method, and is contributed to the Grawity fund managed by the Life Insurance Cowporation of India.

Remeasurements, comprising of actunrial gains and losses, the effect of the msset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability and the retum on plan assets {(excluding included in net i on the net defined benefit liability), are recopnised immediately in the bat
sheet with a coresponding debit or eredit 1o retained camings through OCI in the period in which they acour. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or Inss
in subgequent periads,

FPast service costs are recognised in profit or loss on tw earlier of:

» The date of the plan omendment or curtailmen, and

* The date (hat the Group recopnises related ing costs

Nei imerest is calenlated by applying the discoumt rate to the nel defined bengfit liability or assel. The Group recopnises the following changes in the net defined
benefin obligation as an gxp in the consolidated of profit and logs:

¥ Service costs comprising curment service cosls, past-service costs, pains and losses on iliments and non. ine sefil and

P Nei intarest expense or income

Compensated Absences
Accumulated teave which is expected ta be wiilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-leem employee benefit, The Group measures the expocted cost of
such absences as the additional amount that il expeets (3 pay as & result of the onused entitfanent that has accumulated ot dhe reporting date,

The Craup treads accumulated keave expected to be caried iorward beyond twelve months, as long-tenn employes benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-
tenn compensated sbsences are provided Ffor based on the actuarial valuation using the projestsd unit credit method at the year-end, Actuarial gainsfTosses are
immediately wken to siatement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they oceur, The Group presents the entire leave as a eurrent liability in the balance sheet,
since it doss not have an uncenditional right to defer its seftlement for 12 months after the reportin 5 dite.

Finaocial Instruments
A finaneicl instnament {s any conbrzet that gives tise to a financial asset of one catity and a financial liability or equity instument of another catity.

Financial assets

Initial recopnition and measurvement

Al fi ial assets ore recopnised initinlly al fair value phus, in (tha case of financial assets not recorded a¢ fair valus through peofit ar Joss, ransaction costs that are
anvibutable to the acquisiicn of the financial assel. Purchases ot sales of financiol assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame esablished by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way rades) are recognised en the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits wo purchase or sell the asser,

Subsequent measurerment

For purposes of subsequent measuremem, financial assets are classified in four categaries:

¥ Dobi instruments at amorised cost

» Debt instruments at fair value throngh other comprehensive § (FYTOCH)

W Diebi instruments, derivalives and equiry i ot fair valae through profit or Joss (FVYTPLY
» Equity instruments wneasured at fair value through oiher prehensive ingome (FYTOC])

Debt Instruments ar amertised cost

A "debt instrurment” is measured at the amaortised cost i both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whese objective is to hold assets far collecting contractual cash {Tows, and

b} Conwactual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash fows that are solely poyments of principal and interest (SPFI) on the principal amoum
mrsanding,

Afier initial measurement, such financial assels are subsequently messured at amortised cost using the effestive interest rale (EIR) method. Amertised cost is
saleulated by taking into account any discotnt or premium on 2cquisition and fees or costs they are an integral pant of the EIR. The EIR amertisation is included in
finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit ot logs,

Dabt instramen ar FYTOCT
A "debt instrument® is classified as ot the FVTOCH ifboth of the following criteria are met:
a) The olijective of the busi mode] is achieved bath by collecting § cash flows and selling the Anancial assers, and

b) The asser’s conmractual cash flows represent SPPL.
Debt instruments included within the FYTOC] category are measured initially as well as o each reporting date at fair value. Fait valug movements are recognized
in the other comprehensive imeome (OC),
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Dbt Instrument at FVTPL
FVYTPL is a residual catepory lor debl insty . Any debr insinnment, which does not mect the criteria for categorization as ot ized eost or as FVTOC, is
classified as at FYTPL.

In additfon, the Group may elect 1o designare a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amoriized cost er FYTOCT criterin, ns at FVTPL. However, such election is
altewed only if doing so redvces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsisieney (refierred 10 as “accounting mismatch). The Group has not designated
any debt insirurment as at FVTPL.

Debt insrunents included within the FYTPL category are measurcd af fair value with all chanpes recognized in the P&L.

Equlty investments
All equity investments in scape of Ind AS 109 are measured at fiir valus, Equity instruments which ara held for trading end contingent consideration recagnised by
am acquirt io a business cornbination 1o which Tnd ASI103 applizs are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an imevocable

top in other comprehiensive 1 hanges in the fsir valuz. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-insmument basis. The
clussificatian is made on initial recopnition and is imevocahle.

IF the Groap decides to classify an cquity instrument as at FYTOC), then al) fair velue ¢hanges on the i 1, excluding dividends, aro recognized in the OCI
These is no recycling of the ampunts Grom OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investmenl, However, the Giroup may transfer the cumulative gain or
Inss within equity.

Equity instrumznts included within the FVTPL category ara measured at fuir value with all cf B pnized in the of profit and loss,

Derecagniiton

A financial asset (or. where applicable, 2 pare of o financial ass¢ or part of a Group of similar financial assers) i primarily derecognised (e removed Brom the
Group's balance sheet) when:

» The rights to reczive cash Hows from 1he asset have expired, or

¥ The Group has iransierred its rights 10 receive cash fAows lfom the ysset or has assymed a0 abligation 1o pay the received cash Hows in foll without moterial
delay to o third party under a *gass-through™ amrangement: and eidier (a) the Group has ransferred substantially all 1he rigks and rewards of the asser, or (b) the
Group has peither ferved not remined substantially all the risks and rewards of the asser, but hag wansferred control of the asset,

When Ihs Grovp has trensfested its righes 10 receive cash flaws from an asset or has entered ino a pass-thrangh arrangeement, it evaluates if and to whal extent it

hag retained the risks and rewvasds of ownership, When #1 bns neither ferred nor netained sut ialty all ol the risks and rewards of the assel, nor transferred

contral of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the catent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that ease, the Group also

recopmises an associated liability, The wansherred assel and tha iated liability are d om a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has

retained,

Continving involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over e ferred assat is d at the lower of the criginal camying amount of the asset and the
i amounk of considerarion that the Group conld be required to repay.

Impakrment of Arancial agsets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credil loss (ECL) model for measwsement and recognition of impainmenit loss on the Fnancial assets.
The Group follows 'simplified approach” for recognitton of impai tass all <¢ on Trde receivablos,

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to mrack changes in credit risk, Ratber, it rrognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporring dare, right frawn its initial recognition,

For recagnition of impairment loss on other financizl assers and risk exposure, the Group detesmines thal whether there hias been a significant increase in the credit
vigk siiee initial recognition. §f credit risk has nol increased sipnificantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide foc impairment lass, However, if credit risk has
increased sipnificantly, lifetime ECL is used. [ in a subsequent period, credit qualiry of the instrument improves such that theve is o longer a significant inerease
in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity revents to recognising impainnent Joss allowance hased on |2-month ECL.

Lifelime ECL are the expected credit losses resuliing from all possible defanll eveats over the ¥ 1 lite o a financial i t. The |2-month ECL isa
porion of the lifetime ECL. which resuhs fiom defhulk events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
ECL. iz the difference behwcen oll contractun) cash fMows thet ane due to 1he Group in dange with the and afl the eash flows thal the eotily expects to

veceive (i.c., ali cash shortfalls), discounicd at the origina) EIR. When estimating the cash Nows, an entity is required to consider: )

* All conrmetual verms of the financial instrument {including prepayment, extension, call and similar aptions) over the expected Jife of the financial insorument.
Howaver, in rare eases when the expecied life of the financial instruinent cannot be estimated reliably, then the Group is required to use the remaining coniraceal
tern of the Financial instnament

W Cash flows fiom the sale of collateral held or other credit ent that are integral 10 the conmactual terms

ECL impaiement loss afl (o 1) recopnized during the peried is recognized as income/ expense in the statemem of profit and loss (P&L). This amoanat
is reflected under the head *other expenses” in the Profit and Loss.

Financtal liabiliries

Inifial recognition snd measurement

Financial liabilites are classified, m initial recogmition, as financial liabilities ar fair vatue through profii or loss, loans and bomowings, trade and other payables.
All financie liabilifies are recognised initially at fair valiee and, in the case of loans and barrowings and payables, net of directly artributable i ton costs. The
Group’s financinl linbilities include trads and other payables, loans and hotrowings incleding cash crodit and finaocial puarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurerent
The of financial liabilitics depends on their classification, as described below:
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Financial fiabilities at Fale value throupgh profitor loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit oc loss include financial liabilicies held for trading and financial liabilities designated upen initial recognition as at
fair value theough profit or loss. Financial labilitics are classified as held for trading it 1hey are incumed for the pwpose of repurchasing in the near term, This
ealegory also includes derivative financicl Instruments enteeed into by the Oroup that are not designated as hedging instr in hedge relationships as defioed by
lnd AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also chassified as reld for eeading unloss ihey are designated as effective hedging instruments,

Caiws or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilitics designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as swch af the initial date of recoghition, and only if the
eviteeia in Ind A5 109 are satisfied. For linbilities designaied as FVTPL, fair value pains/ losses awributable to changes in own credil risk are vecognized in OCL.
These gainsf loss are nat subsequently transfermed ta F&L. Howover, the Group may mansfer the cumulative gain or loss within squity, All other changes in fair
value of sueh liability are reeopnised in die statement of profil or loss. The Graup has nol designated amy Gnancial liability as at fir value through profin and loss.

Derecognition

A finzneial liability is derecopnised when the obligatian under the liability is discharged ar cancelled or expires. When an existing Araneial ligbility is replaced by
angthes from the same tender on substanriafly different 1erms, or e tenns of an existing liabiliry are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification s
treaed as the derecopnition of the original [ability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective camying amouats is recopnised in te
statement of prafit or loss.

Derivative fimancial insiruments
The Group uses derivative financial instrameats, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its forsign y risks respectively, Such derivative financin!
instruments are inktially recognised a1 fair valus on the date on which a derivative contract is entered int and are subsequently re-measured af Eair value,
Detivatives are carried as financial assets when the Fair value is positive and s financial lizhilities when the faic value is negative,

Any pains or Josses arising from chanpes in the fair vale of devivatives are faken directly to profit or Inss,

Fuir Value

The Group raeasures bnancial insinunents, such as, derivatives at fair value nt sach balance shee date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o tramsfer = liability in an orderly transaction b invarket participents at the measurement
date. The Fair value measurement is based on the p ption that the & ion 10 sell the asset or ransfer the liability takes place either:

» In the principal market for the asset or lisbility, oc
» In the absence of a principal marfist, in the most advantageous market For the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantapecus market st be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an assel or a lability is 1 using, the prions thar market participants would usc when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants azi in their cconomic best interest,

A Tair vadue of  non-finmcial asser rakes into accoum g market participam’s ability 10 generate economic benefits by using the asse in its highes
and best use or by selliog it 1o another wmarkel participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Growp uses valuation techniques. that are appropriate in the circumstances and For which sufficient data are available to measure Rair valuo, maximising he use
of relevant observable mputs and minkmising the use of unobsevvable inguts.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the fnancial are cateporised within the fair value hietarchy, described ag
follows, based on the lowest leved input thal is sipnificant 1o the fair value measurement as a whols:

» Lovel | — Quoted (unadjusted) marke! prices in acfive inarkets for identical assets or Tiabilities

P Level 2 — Valuation techiniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value { is dimectly or indirectly observable

P Level 3 = Valwtion techniques for which the lowest level input that s significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recagnised in the financizl statements an a recurring basis, the Group determines whether fers have d & levels in
the hierarchy by re-essessing earegarisation {based on the Jowest level input (hat is sipnificant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of cach reporting
petiad.

The Group's management determings the policies and procedures for recurring fair valre measurement, such as derivative Snstruments and unquoted financial
assets measwred af fair value,

At each reporting daie, the managsment analyses the movenents in the valees of assets and lisbilities which are required 10 be remeasured or re-assessed as pex the
Group's accounting policies. The also compares the change ip the Taic value of sach asset and ligbility with relevant external sources to delerming
whether the chanpe i reasonable,

15

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Geoup has determined classes of assets ond liabilities on the basis of Ihe nature, chamcteristics and risks of the asset ot
lizbility and the Jevel of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Contingent linbiliry

A contingent liability is a possible obligation tha arises from past evems whese aistence will be confinned by the eecumence or nop-cecurrenca of pne or mare
uncertain fisure svems beyand the conitiol of the Group or a present oblipation that is not recognised begauss it is not probahle that an cutflow of resources will be
required to setile the oblipation. A contingent liability slso arises in extremely rare cases, where there is a liability (hat cannot be recognised because it cannot be
mepaured relisbly. The Group docs not recognise a continent liability but disclases its existencs in the financial s1atements unless the probability of outflow of
rESOUICEs iS Temote.

Provisions and contingen! liabilities ere ceviewed at ench balance sheet dare,

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in 2 manner consistent with the intemal reparting provided 10 the Board of Directors jdentified as chiel operating decision-imaker
(CODM). The CODM is respansible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating Segs aré organised based on type of
services delivered or provided. Segiment reveme asising from third party cuslomess is reported on the same basis as revenue in the group Ind AS financial

Sear results fey profits before unallocatsd corporate expenses and taxes. *Unallocated Corporate Ex " include exp that relate to

costs attributable to the Group as a whole and are not anribucable ta segmenrs,
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1

w, Cashand Cash Equivalents

¥

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise eash s banks and on hand and shott-term deposits with an original maturity of three manths or Jess, which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash lows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shori-term depasits, as defined above as they are considered an
integral part of the Group’s cesh management.

Dividend Distributions

The Group recognises a Jiability to make cash to equity holders of the parent when the distsibution is amhorised and the distribution is o longes at (he discretion o

the Group. As per the corporate lows ia India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A comresponding t is recopnised direcily
in equiry.

Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share arc calculated by dividing the net profil er loss (after Tax) for the year ativibuiablz 1o equity shareholders of helding Co. by the weighted
avesage nomber of equity shares outstanding dusing the year.

Diluted eaminps per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or lags (afier Tox) for the year altributable o equity shareholders of holding Co. by the weighted
average number of equity shares which would be issned on the conversion of all the dilutive patential equity shares into equity shares, Dilutive potential equity
shares as deemed converied as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued a1 a Imer dae.

New and amented Standard

The Minisiry of Corperate AlVairs has natifisd Companins (Indian A ing Srandard) Amend Rules 2027 dated March 23, 2022, 10 amend the following Ind AS which are

effective from Agril 01, 2022,

{i)Onerous Contracss — Coss of FulMBing & Contrct - Amendments i Inid A5 37

An ita under which the idable cost of mecting 1he obfigarions under the {iz, the custs that ihe Group cannol avaid beesuse it has the
] exceed the i¢ benefits exg ] 10 be ived under ie

The amendments specly that when assessing whether & conteact is onerous oc boss-making. an emily needs to inchide costs that relale directly to a coniact W provide goads of

services including bath incremental cosls {e.g., the custs of direct labour and matedals) and zn aflocation of costs directly related to ivities fe.g,. depeeciation of

equipmen usad 1o Salfil the contrzet and costs of comract management and supervision). General and administrative costs da not refate directly to a contraet and are excioded

unless they are expliciily chargeable 1o the pany underthe

The gmsndments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning om or after [he | April 2022, This amendment bad na impact on the consclidated fmansial statements of the

Ciruen

(i) Reference to the Concepiaal Framework — Amegdments tp Ind AS 103
The d placed the ref 1o the ICAl* °F & for the Preparation and P ion of Financtl Statements under Indien Accounting Standands” with the
Ference to the “Conceptual Frs k for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standard™ without significantly ehanging its requirements,

The amendments atso added an ption 10 the grition peincigle of Ind AS 103 Busingss Combinations 4o avold the issug of peiential *dry 2* pains or losses arising for
linpilities and conringent liabilities that wauld be within the scope of Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Lizbilifles ang Conti Assets or Appendix C, Levies, of Ind AS 37, if
i J sepasanely. The exception requires entities 10 apply the criteria in Ind AS 37 or Appendix C. Lavies, of Ind AS 37, respectively, instead of the Conceprual Framework, (o
determine whether 5 present obligation exises ar the eequisition date,

The smendments also add & new paragraph 10 tFRS 3 1o clarify thay comingent assers do not quakify for recognition at Lhe acquisition dare.

In nccordange wilh the iransitional provigons, the Goup apglies the 4 ively. i.e.. 10 business combinmions scrumring afer the beginming of tha ennyal reposting
pevicd in which it Frsr applies the amendments (the dme of initial application).
These amendments had na impact on the fidated Bnancial of the Group s there were no contingent assers. liabilities oc contingent labifities within the scope of
these zmendaents that asose during the periad.

(il) Propeny, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before 1 ded Use— A i e Ind AS 16
The d modificd paragraph 17(e) of Ind AS 16 va clarify \hat excass of net salo proceeds ol itlems produced over the eost of testing, iFany, shall nol be recognised in the
profit or loss bus deducted from the directly atirfburable costs considescd as pari of cost of an item of property, plani, and cquipment.

The amendments are effective far anmual reporting periods beginning on or afier | April 2022, These amendments had wo impacl on the lidated financind s1 of the
Uroup a5 these were no sales of such items produced by propeny, plant and equipment made avaiteble far use on or after the beginning of the earfiest period prasented

(iv) Encd AS 501 First-time Adoption of Indian Acc ing Standerds - Substdkary a3 2 firt-time adopter

The d permits a subsidiary that elects to apply the exemption i pamgraph DI6{e) of Ind AS 101 16 lLati; dation differences For &l foreign operaions
in its finencial uging the ported by the parent, based on abe parent’s date of transition ta Ind AS, il no adjustoents were mads Far consclidation procedures
and for the effects of the business combination in which the parent scquined the subsidi y. This | is also available ra an iate or joimly lled entity \bzt vses

exemplion in paragraph DI6{a) of Ind AS 101,

The g arg ellective for annual repexting periods beginning on or afier 1 April 2022 but do nat apply 10 the Graup e it s nm a First-line adapter,
(¥}lnd AS 109 Financial Fnstruments — Fees in the 10 per cent fest for derecogmition of finamncial liabilities
The amendment chrifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the tenms af'@ new or modifled financial linbility are subsianiially dilferent from the terms of the

original (inancial liability, Thess fees inchude anly those paid or secsived b theb and the Jender, indluding fees paid or received by either the barrewer ac |ender on the
other's behalf.

In aceordance wilh the trensitonal provisions, the Group applies the amendment (o financial lisbilities thar are modified or exchanged on or afler the beginning of the anmual
repoiting petied in which the entity first applics the amendment {the date of Inktial appTication). These | had no impect on the lidared finangint of the

Graup a4 there were no maodifications of the Group's financial insiuments during; the year.

{vi)nd AS 41 Agriculiure — Taxation In fabr value measurements

The amendment removes Lhe requirement in paragraph 22 af 1nd AS 41 that entities exclide cash flows for taxation when measuring the (ir value of assers witkin the scape of Ind
A5 4]

The amendments are effective (or annual reponting periods begiming an or after 1 Apcil 2022, The amendments fad no impact o e dated financiel of the Group
#a it did not have asscta in zcope of 1AS 41 as at the repaning date




DEE Devefopment Engineers Limlted

Notes to

ial siat for the yeor ended Mareh 31, 2023

22

Siandards issaed hot not yel eMective

The Minisiry of Corporate Affhirs has notified Companies {lndian A ing Standards) Amwnd Rules, 2023 damed 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are
effective from O April 2023,

(i) Definition of A ing Estl - A di to Ind AS §

The il clarify the distinction between changes in ing esti and changes in ing policies and the correction of errors. It has alse been churified how
entities use measurement wechniques and inpuls to develop accounting estimaies.

The amendments are eflzclive for annual reporting periods beginning on ur afler | April 2023 ard apply 10 changes in ing policies and ch in ing eati that

oceur om or afier the start of that period.
The amendments re not expecied 10 have a material impaer on e Group's financkal slatements.

(i) Disclosore of Ace ing Polities - A I telod AS1
The amendments aim 1o belp entitbes provids accounting policy disclosures that are more wsefil by replacing the requiremen for entities 1o disclose their ‘significant” acounting
pelicies with a requiremem o disclose their *materia!’ accounting policies uad adding puidance on how entities apply Ihe concept of ialjty in making decisions abour

accoumking policy disclosures.
The amendments 10 Indd AS | are appbicable for annual periods beginning on or afler ) Apri! 2023 Consequential ameiddments have been mads in Ind AS 107,
The Qroup 15 currently revisiting their ing palicy inf; ion disal 0 £nsure i with the

q

(i1} Deferred Tax related 1o Assers and Liabiliiles arising from a Single Transaction - Amendmenn o Ind AS 12

The amendments namow the scope of the initial recognition exceplion under [nd AS )2, 5o that it ra longer applies (o Iransactions 1hat ghve dse to equal taxable and deduciible
1emporery differences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or sfter the begianing of the eadiest comparative period presented. In addiion, a1 the beginning of the earliest
comparstive peried | d, 2 deferred tax asset {provided thar sufficient 1axable profd is available) and 3 deferved tax Bability should alsa be recognised for all deduciible and
taxable tempocary differences associated with leases and d issioning obligatinns, O ial d have been made in Ind AS 101, The amendraents to Tod AS 12
are gpplicable for sonual periods beginning on or after | April 2023,

The Group is curmemly assessing the impact of the amendments.




DEE Development Emnwrs Limited

MNoses iv Lhe 1id: Ial for the yesr ended 31 March 2023
[Amount in INR Lacs)
4 Investments
Non suivent
. Asat Anad

P

articalary 31 Mavgh 2023 31 March 3033
lavestments s cozit
Unguoied
Investment in feundation
Atul Krishen Bamsal Foundaicn * L0 1.00
= L0:000-(31 March 2022: 10.000) cauity shares of INR 10/ each fully paid up
Total Investment —T 1.00
A of d | 100 1.00

=

=

* The Company has mady investment in its wholly cwmed subsids

for the purpose of d

Emong the

which is i

hers. A y, the sarve hns not be considered for consolidation,

d under Section 8 of Companies Act 2013 with the chjective of carrying ou chasitable and non- pluﬁt agiivities, The
Company is not having control on the activities of the suhsudiaty company and is not entiled for any varizble retumns for subsidiary company and thus any surplus or profit g

y i$ not

1 by the subsi

# In the praviows year; the Company i its Board of Dlracmm meelmg keld on September 20, 2021 passed a rﬁn[ullan approving winding up of its. joindly controlled smity DEE fabwicom LLC, Dubai and
accordimly, initiated the complenion of closure formelities. Accordmgly; [ P
subszquent kx dergisiration ol trade licence, VAT number had alsa been De- legmered and Clesucre cestificae is issued by the Federal Tax Authority dated 13th Janvary. 2022 Thus, the jointy contralled entity
standy chosed and the same had been reponed by the Campany wit RB1.

wmd tragk licenee ad been derevisiered ps per UAE, laws on March 29, 2021 Further

Finanednl asseds
Trade receivables
Cugpent,

Particulars Anal As at

31 Mareh 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Unsecured, ecasidered zood
Trade recervables 1727825 15,343.44
Teta trade receivables 1737323 15.333.44
sNa imde of ciher receivable ave dus from o o7 cther officers of the Group either severally or jainly with any other pemon. Nor anty tradz or ether recsivahle are due from firms ar Private compardes

respectively in which any dirceior is a parmer, 3 direstor oF a member
Mo trade recolvables are due fiom related party

~Tiade recesvables are nan-interesy bearing 2nd are wenerslly on terms of 30 to | 50 days,

Trade receivables Ageing Schedule

Az at 31 Mnreh 2023

Particolary

[4) lng far fellowing perieds from due date of payment |

Not due

[
| Less than 6 monhs

& menths - | year

11 years

-3 years Move than 3 yenrs |

Tatal

Undisputed
= Considered good

= Significant increass in credit dsk
- Creditimpaired

Disputed

- Considered good

- Significent mtrease in credit risk
- Credit impaired

I1,814.35

9718

51T

22,99 3.36

- A0.00

11,238,215

40.00

TOTAL

“&li;ﬁ

ML

5115

2199 4326

17.:13:;5_

As a1 M March 2022

Particutars

Qutstanding 41 Follorviog periods froem due date of payment

Nel dug

Less than & Moaths

& menths - 1 yenr

1-2 yenrs

23 yers Mare than 3 yems

Tatad

Undisputed

- Considered zood

- Signifieant increise in oredi risk
- Credit impaired

Disnuted

- Considered poad

- Significan\ increase in credis risk

- Credit impairgd

11.246.38

330.56

166 74

41300 .

. M5.467

15,097 17

245,67

TATAL

1124638

1534344




DEE Developmenl Engiocers Liotited
Nates to ik fidabed Rinancial

Tar the year ended 31 Maveh 2023

)

th

fAm Laes
Cash and cash equivalents
Curreat
As ot Axat
Partieetars MMareh 2023 3 March g2z
Cash £n hand 830 110
Batances with banks
On current agoounis 15391 762
On cash credit nooounis 15.63 086
Total cash and eash equivalents 14184 LS
Other bank balances other than gash and cash eouivalents
Current
Porleutars Asat Azal
31 March 2023 31 March 1022
Bank deposiis with
= Original matunity for more than three month bt i ity oflesy than |2 ths* 3,097.57 249331
= Original raturity for more than three months and remaining mareity of more than 2 months® 55577 T6L93
) 3,653.34 215621
L5z amount disclosed under ther finangial assers [rofer note 5(D9] {38570 [T62.93]
‘Tatal otber bank Lalances A.0937.57 ZIA93I]

* Drposita given its margin wmoney against non fund based facilities (lemes of credit, buyer's eredit, bank guarantes) and calateral SeEuOty.
Az at 31 March 2023, the Croup has available INR, 1,970 40 lacs (51 March 2022 THR 1,136 13 lacsy of undsawn borrowing facilities from various banks.
Cash al banks zams imeress a1 floating rates baced on daily bank deposit sates. Shore-term deposits are made for varymy, perinds of between ane day and three manths, depending on thy

ofthe €

cash reg

Changes iu link lities avising frem linancing neivities

y. and eam imeres! a1 the respective shortienn deposit krtes

This sectin so18 out an analysis of chanzes in iabilities arising from financing activities for each of the poriods presemted

Buyback of ¢quity  Lease Iabilities (a) Mom curvent Current Total

- sharey Borrowing ipcluding  Borrowing [M=atbtc)

Particulara currenl Matoriliss [L3]
| /) I
Asat | April 2021 - 500,59 851551 1.201.11 2621731
Cash flows (5,034.04) (67.610} (79399 181320 {2052.44)
Additions $.034.04 7217 - - szl
Diclationa - (9.08) - - 905
Foreign sxchange adiustments - - - {10.24) £10.24)
Imerest expenses - 4869 633.52 1,851.40 253161
Tmerest paid - {48.69) {633.52) {2,236 .90} 2919.11%
Transaction sast adjusement . - 052 16832 165.84
As al 31 March 2022 - 503,17 172304 201339 29.039,10
Lease liabilities () Non current Corrent Telal
Particulars Borrowing In:hfd_ing Borrawing {dmatirg}
oirrent maturities {c)
1h
Asar | Apeil 2022 S03.07 791004 2081389 19039.10
Cash Rows {125.40) 215765 551224 T544.49
Additions 5413 - - £84.20
Delstions (148.35) - - [148.35)
Foreiun excharte adjusimenis - {863 74) - [263_74)
Tnterest expunses 526 755,50 2.14%.46 1.990.22
Interest paid (85.26) (755 509 (2,152.40) (3,593.16)
Tramaction: cost adjusiment - (7990 ¥ %4
As al 31 March 3023 L,113,65 5,036,03 26.326,15 363758
Other Fnansind assets
{Unaeoured consilored zood nnless oiierwise stated)
Non-turrenl — Current

= Asal A at Asa Asat
Particulars 31 Murch 2033 31 Margh 2022 31 Marh 2023 31 Mareh 2012
Finandsl msets clanified af amortissd cosi
Bank depesits with eriginal mancity beyond 12 months * 8377 15293 - -
Interest receivabis oo . 1229 1La
Secunty depasits 18271 164.35 T 10.52
Reverable from casiamers ** - - 75945 -
Financial assets classi fed af Fair value through nrefit or loss:
Foreign exchangs forward (refer note belaw) - - - e
“Tatal 234,48 $273.28 0952 £0.55

* Deposits given a3 margin money agzinst non fund bsed (acilities {letter of eredi, brayer's eredit, bank guaraniee) and collateral se curity.
** Recoverable from cusiomer towards frefght and odier chares reimbursement

Naote:

Deemvriive instruments at far vabue throughy profit or loss reflect e positive

are, newenthaloss, intended to reduce: the level of foreign

chunge in Mair vatus of these foreign exchange forward cantracts that are no) designared in hedge reliticnehips, but




DEE Development Ensineers Limited
Notes to the lidated financinl for the year ended 31 Murch 2023

A

(B}

{Ch

i

(E}

{Amaant in INR Facs!

Breakup of financial asters earried ot amoriised eoat

Nen-corvent Cument
Asnt As o As at Asal
Particuns 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 1032
Teade receivables (refer nate STAN - - 17.278.25 13444
Cash and cash eauivakens {refer note (B - - 181,84 125
Cther hank balances [refer note SICH 09757 249331
Cither financial assetsz freler noto A 738.4B 91728 209,52 69.65
72! EJB 917118 2 I.Jﬁ‘!"lg 1 7.040.2%
Other nsses
Mop-furren Curent :
Axal As al Asat Asal
Particutars 31 March 2033 31 March 2032 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Unsecured eansidered goad unless otherwise siated
Capiral advances 83347 433,46 - .
Prepaid expenges 112.14 113,55 G56.24 395,37
Tncorse tax recaverable - - 128. M al.2%
Advance wo suppliers - - 31509 34683
Export entitlomen receivable - - 1995 38351
Advanct 1s employses - - 4467 14,52
Balanee with povemnment authoripes - - 4.539.36 3.589.01
Total ether ansels S&5.61 §43.01 £.913.95 352049
Iaventorics
¢¥nlued at lower of eost and nel realizable value) Current
s Asat Azt
Fari.

Arlicuias 31 March 2023 A Marchz0zz .
Raw matzrials {In lransit of MR 344,98 lacs {31 March 2032: INR §78.95 lucs]) 1482055 1447429
Fmished goods 159817 1.599.3%
Truded poods 31,50 nmn
Wark in progress 9,314,465 501598
Stores and spanes 1,650 22 2271745
Packing matenals 50257 3B1.40
Tatal invenioriss 2891817 2420373
During the vear eaded 31 March 2023, INR Nil {31 March 2022: INR Nill wes recornised as an expense Far invemoncs carrred at ngf reatisable value.

Eayity share capiia!
Authorised share canital: *

Equity shares Computsarily cogveriihle prefergues shares
Patlelar; No. in Ingg INR In Lnes No. in laca INR Ip Laes
As at 01 Avpil 202} I3T.50 1. 575.00 EL50 61540
Ingreasif {decreatod dunng the vear = - - .
Az at 31 March 122 187.50 1.375.00 62.50 625.00
[ncreasef {deeceate) during the vear - . - .
Asar M March 2023 132,50 Larson 62,50 2% 00

* Subsequen 1o the year ended 31 March 2023, the authorizod equity share capitel wes increased fram IRT § Iakhs equity shares of Rs, 10 each amounting o Rs. 1,875 lakhs to 687.5 lakha equity shares of INR, 10
exch amounting to Rs. 6,875 lakhs which was duly approved by the Board of direczars at their meeting held on July 27, 2023, and by the shareholders of the Company by means of an ordinery resolution dated July
23,2023,

i) Termy/ vights attacked 1o equity shares:

The Company has anly coe ¢lass of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each sharchobder is entifled fo one vote per share. The divadend except interim dividend propased by the

Board af Direckurs is subject 1o the approval of the sharzholders i the ensuing Annual General Megiing. In the cverd of Tiquidation of the C ry, the equity shareholders will be enfitled t

seceive the remaining asseis of the Company afler distribution of ol prefersniial in prapartion to their sharcholding,

i) Terms! vights attached te preference shares
Each convertible prefercote share has a par valug of INR §0 per shave and is conventible at the opticn of the sharehokders into equity shares of the Company. The preference shares rank ahesd of
the: equity shanss in the eventala hquidation. The Company has not issued the preference share eapital

Issued aosl naid wo eankry share copitnl #

Farticulary Mg, in lpes INR In Lacs

Enuity ghaves of INR 10 each issued. subscribed and fuliv oaid:

As a1 01 Apd1 2021 156,93 1.56%.27

Inereasef (docreassh during ihe vear (refer noie 9 {50.85) [508.49]

Ag at 31 March 1022 106.08 1060.73

Inerease’ (decreasel duning the vear - -

As at 31 March 2023 106,08 1.060.78_

# T Board of Direcoors ar its meeting held on September T, 2023, had ppp 1 the botws issua of four new equity shiere for every one share held on record date which was spproved by the sharcholders by
neans of a special rgsolution dared Seprember 7, 2023. Through a Poard msolfution dated September 7, 2023, the C ipany has lloned 4243131 2 equity shores of Rs. |0 each as bonus shares (o the sxisting equity
shareholders of the Company.

Detaila of sharebodders holdive more than 8% slinres jn the Growp:

As 01 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Partientary No. [n Lacy %6 ol holding No. indnes %4 of holding
Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal 928 T4 7328 MY
DOE Piping Componeat Pvt. Lid. 1507 4208 15.07 14.20%
Mrs. Aghima Bansel B.BD 83074 BRD 8.30%
Az per records of the Company, including its remsicr of shareholdersimembers and other daclarati ived Mram sharchold arding benelicial intevest, the abeva shareholding represens both legeal and
beneficial ownerships of shares ;

Aggrepme nuniber af equiry shares wwsucd &s bonus, shares Bsued far consideration other than cash and shares bought back duriny the period of five years i diately preceding the reporang date. (Also refer noie
- Buring the previons year, the Company has cancluded Ihe buyback of 5.084.891 equity shares of face value of INR 10/ each a1 2 price of INR 99 per uquity share (" Buyback™} fsen a
503 40 millions, as anproved carlier by the Board of Directors on May 07, 202 | and spproval of sharehatders thraugh special resoluton passed in oxira wrdinary general Meprhs




DEE Develonment Engineers Limated

Notes to the tidated i for the year ended 31 March 2023
fAmountin INKinewy
{F] Fromotersharehaldine :
Details af shores held by promonesy
Asat 3| March 2023
Ne. of shares al .
Fromuoier No. of sharves a1 ibe Change taring the *4 chenge doring
SN, Name beginning af the year year the e::&:f the % of Telal Stares ibe year
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid Promuorer
Mr. Knishan Lalit Bansal M2TEIT - 7917817 Td N -
Fromoter Group
DDE Piping Component P Lid, 15.06,555 - 15,06,555 14.208% -
Mrx. Ashims Binsal £.79.990 L)} B.79.980 8308 -
Mtr. Anl Kvehan Bansal 193,116 (293,326} - 000%  (L0Q.00%)
Mr, ShiXha Bansal 100 293326 291426 LT PIIELTS
g Sy Anparwal 10 - 10 0.0001%% -
Total 06 0T R18 €10} 1.05,07.808 100.00%%
Asnl 31 March 2022
. No. of shares at
S.No. Promoner Na, oi:sharual the Chnnge during the theend ofehe % of Totn! Shares % change durlop
Name beginning of the year year year the yenr
Equity shares of INR 10 each Fully paid Promoter
Mr. Kmshan Lafil Bansal 927437 - V937,817 N -
Prenigter Group
PDE Piping Componeni P L1d. 1493 811 12,744 15,086,558 14.20% 0.85%
Mrs. Ashima Bansal £,70.950 - #,79,990 4.30% -
Mr. At Kishan Bansal 253526 - 293326 2TT% .
Kirs. Shikha Bansal 100 - 100 0.0009% -
Mrs. Shnsti Arparwal 12 . 10 0,0001% -
Taal 1.0595.074 12,744 1:06.02.418 100.00%%
9 Otherequity
Partlentars Asat Asal
31 Morch 2023 31 Mareh 2022
1AY Secorifies mrmium
Opentog balmes 16,750.93 16,710.93
Increasef{decrense) during the year - =
Cloging balance 16.730.93 16,710.53
(B} Geperal reserve
Openiny balance QN 4,585.71
Ingreasefidecrease) during the year - {508.49)
Closing balance 407722 4077.23
1€y Capiral Redemotion Reserve
Openine balance 50849 -
Increasel {dectente] durine the wear # - 508.49
Clostng balanee 50549 08.49
(D} Retained sarnloes
Optring balance 18,267.98 21.%63.99
Add: Profit for the year 129722 81268
Onher comprehentive income/ {loss) for the year® (54.53) 9.8
Less : Bivback of equity shares 8 - (4,525.55)
Clasing balance 19500567 18,267,989
(EV Forcien carrency transiation reserve
Qpening bolance 55175 s81.89
Add : Changes during tha year [£6.56) {20.14)
Closing balance A36.19 85195
Toral reserved A41303.50 0407.7
* Tha disaggregation of changes in OCL by each rype of reserves in aquity it disclored in note 25,
HBayback of Equity shares
During the previens year, the Company has luded the buyback of 5,084,991 equity stuaws of face valus of INR, 104 ¢ach at a price of INF. 99 per equity share (“Buyback™) for an asgregnte amount of INR

5,034.04 laes, as epproved eadlier by the Board of Dircetors on 07 bizy 2021 2nd approval of sharcholders through

special resolution passed in extra ondinary peneral Meating dated 08 May 2021, Buyback was

done ot reterd dove of 08 Moy 2027 and the equity shares bought back were extinguished o 17 May 2024, Total outflow of INP. 5,034.04 tacs bad been wilisad finm the share gapiial, penera) reserves and relamed

eamings, in ling with the under the Ci
o of retained earnings, it ling with the

under the C Ast2013. O

Nature and nurpose of reserves @

Srturities prewinm reserve

A 2081, Additionafly, Capital Redemprion Reserve of INR $08.49 lacs (equivalent 1o nominal value of the equity chares bought back] had been created

sk of shares so bought back, the paid-up equity share capitat hod been reduced by INR 509,49 lacs,

Securiligs premium reserve is used 10 vecord the premuum en 1ssue of shares The reserve can be unlised only for Limied purpeses such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the pravisinne of the

Cotmyinies Aci, 2013,

Geoeral vesrive

Linder the erspwhile Compames Act (956, general reserve was ereated through an anewm! transfer oF net incomee at & spocified | in .

with epplicabh

lafipns. The

of these fe

was (@ ensure that iFa dividend dismibution in a given yearis mare duan 10% of the prid-up eapita! of the Company for thal year, then the totd dividend distributian is les than, the tota) dismbuiable results For thas
year. Consequent 1o introducrion of Compaties Aot 2013, the requirement ba mandatarily iransfer 2 specified perceniage of the net profit to gearsal reserve has been withdrawn, However, the amoum previously
Irensfenmed ¢ e general reserve can be wilised oy in accordanee with the specific requirements of Companies Act, 2013,

Capital redemption reserve

The Capilal redemption reserve has been created in dance with pravisian of the C Art, 2013 with respect 1o buy back of equity shares from the market during ihe previous year,
Foreizn currency transtation ceserve
Exthangs Efferences arising an translation of the foreign operticns are recognised in other h income 2x described ing poficy and lated in a gap eSS

curmudative amauntis reclassified 1o profitor Joss when the ne invesiment s dispesed-off
Retained carings

Retained esmings are the profitsqloss) that the Ciroup has eamedfineured 1l date, less iy transfers %0 general reserve, dividonds or ather dismit
measuremem Joss £ {gain) on defined bencfit plans, net of taxes that will it be woelassificd to Staiemen of Prafi and Less.

within equity. The

ps include tes




DEE Develapment Engineers Limired

iNDres 1a the ¢ lidated 1 far the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amountip INREBacs)
10 BDerrowings
{A] Non-current bervowines
Non-current portion Current matarities
Particulars Az af Asal Asal Asal
31 March 2073 3 Marsh 2022 31 Margh 2023 SLMarch 2022
Secared
Term Loan
a. From Banks [refer note i) # {vii)] 5, 196,56 448317 204273 260128
b. Vehick Loan from Banks [refer note (viii) oo (i) 245.29 198.98 100:53 80.83
Unageure
a From disectars (refer (x5) 32500 - 0535 -
b. Fiom relative of directors frefer {ai) 12834 - . -
. Banyan Treo - - 20551 W77
. Cther loans {refer (ix)) §222 - — -
Les " debs disclosed 615191 4687 15 27544 101982
52 cunrent imaturifics of long term debts disclp .
under 'shont (e barmowings' (refer note 10(BY) N {2asi14) B.03%38)
Total noa-current bovrowings 5,181.9] YN - -
Repnyment achedule of nan-carvent barrgwiog :
Az ol 31 Mareh 2023 As Al 2] March 2022
- Tenire Ampunl Repayment Amount Repayment
Particutars Instalments
Secured
iy VYR MCLR ol 2.25% + B33 of 0.30% +CRF of 0.40% June Xi24 4500 { equal quarety 225,00 3 equal quanerly
presently effechively T.95% pa (31 March 2022 | YR qstalmenis instalments
MCLR of 7.25% + BSS of 0.20% +CRP ol | 20%
eftectively 8.65%-895% pa (refor nota a)
1) 3 Month TB + 2.46% presently cfecively 9.53% p.a. July, 2027 104993 14 equal guarterly -
(weler noks af inziatments
(i) | Year MCLE + 1%, presently 8.25% effectneely wilh Ociaber_ 2026 962.29 31 equal monthly 133479 43 egual momhly
monthly rest (3| March 2022 | Year MCLR + 1%, = insiafments insalments
B.25% effectively with monthly rest ) (refer note 23
fiv] Presemly T3%pato 10.35% pa (3] March 2022: 7.5% June, 2025 15945 2-15 Equal monthly |65.79 14:27 Equal menthly
peato 1£.25%) p.a. (refer note by instalments instalments
{iv) Presently MLR- 0.25% pa., (31 March 2022: 3M LIBDR Feh, 2028 202978 47 Equal monthly 108645 4 equal quarterly
plus 3.30%% p.a. refer note d) instalments ingtalments
(v) Presently B% to £.6%5 (31 March 2022 : 8% to 8.60%%) Sep, 2026 794,54 5 equal quanerly 138224 'S equal quaredy
(refes note c) instalments and 30 instalments and 42
Monthly insiabments Monthly tnstalments
(v} Repo raietd 60% presently 10.10% {refer pote o) May,2025 155.56 14 tqual monthly 288.88 26 Monthly instalmenis
ingtalmenta
(i) Presemly 8.35% ro 10.15%, (31 Mareh 2022 8.35% 1o Junz, 2027 188.43 1943 equal momhly 9146 1+20 cqual monthly
10.15% p.2.) (Refer Note f) insralments instalments
{(viii) Fresently 4.18%% to 6.52% - p.a. (31 March 2022: 4.18% Tuly. 2026 EDHT 5+ 18 cqual monthhy 102.52 5- 28 equal monthfy
10 6.52%) p.a. refer noie M) instalients instalments
Unsecured
(ix} Presenily §4% - poa, (31 March 2022- Mil) p.a. Ducember 2024 B2.22 Anmuelly -
(x} Inierest free loant from direcioes Decambar 2024 32500 Annually .
(i) Presently 8% -pz., [31 March 2022: Nilj p.o Decermber 2024 32084 Annually -
S 17N ST

il Sequrity clauses

g} Temm lpan of INR. 2,907.40 lacs (31 March 2022; IR 2,357.81 lacs) is seeured by way of i} Atst parispassu charyz on the fixed assets and current assess of the pipiog unit situned at Pabwal of the Groug

ii) exclusive charges on the cumen! assets of the 8 MW power plam, of the Group i) first pani-passu chamges on e Land & Building situared &t plamt Mo-1 and 2, Tatamor Road, District. Palwal iv) first pari-passu
charge an the property situzted =t Jala Road, Tararpur Indusiial Area Maidepur, Tehsil & Dist. Palwal measuring 1, 770,00 5q. yards v} first pari-pasew charga on the fixed deposit of INR 350 lacs

i) second pari-passu charge o the basis of equitabl gage aver residentinl house situated at 1255, sector 14 Fandabad, ownership in the name of Mr. Keishan Lalit Bameal [{Chaiman and Managing Director)
{area 500 6q. yands)] wi) first pani-passu charges basis on net block of the 8 MW power uniit o1 Gaddzdhab, Tohsil - Abohar, Distt - Firozpur, Punjab iii) first pari-patsu charge on the propeny situated a1 Linft 11
and Unit [2, First Floor, Bloek Ho: 1) SIDCO Blectronic Complex, Thin Y1 Ka Indusinal Estate, Guady, Chesmai, measuring 2,053 5q. . in the name of the Group.

b} Term loan of TNR 265,84 lacs (31 March 2002 NI 221,98 lacs) is sceured by way of txclusive charges on fixed assels includi g property, plant and equip , Imd and building and others moveable assets of
TSMW power plant sitated 21 village Gulabewaln of the Group.

ol Term loo of MR 1,671.14 lacs (31 March 2022: INR 2,342 lacs) is secured by way of exclusive charge all existing and fulurz movable foeed assets siated gl Arjar, Gyjrat.

d) Term Joan outsiending far INR 2,495.11 { 31 March 2022: INR 2,225.28) is securedd by way of iy exclusive oh ge on land and bullding situated 2t Chachoengzas Thaitand of the Group, 1) exclusive charges m
fixed as3e1s including plamt and machinery of the Graup.

el Further, temm loan are secured by lirevecable and wneonditional, joint and several 1 | of the

N Vehick: toan ouistanding for INR 342,82 lacs (31 March 2022: 279.81 tars) from honk s=curcd by the vehicks of the Grovp financed under the scheme

#]  Loan Covenanie:
Term loan contnin cenain debt covenants relating lo secusily cover, debt-oquity ratio znd curcent rtio, DsbyEBITDA ratio, Total Ouiside Lizhility/Teral Het worth and Adjusted Tangible Nat Worth etc.. the Group
bs satisfiad all debr : ibed i the terms of term lpan.

h)  The group has ot defaulted on iy loans payable.

iy

All t2rm foans avaiked by the group have been wiilised for the purpose for which they have been obtrined.




DEE Developmeni Fagineers Limited

Notes to the lldated [ for the year ended 3 March 2023
{Amountin INBLg),
(B) Corrent borvowines
; Asat Aral y

Partivulare Bomaving rue 31 March 2020 ‘31 March 2022
Sesured
2] Loans repavable en demands from benks frefer note a. b and ¢ balow)

{1y Cash credn E.604.98 6,308.54

fif) Expont packing credi . 699,36

tiii} Working ¢apital demand toan 14,240.00 LTI
b Current maturities of kmg-term detis frefer mote 10{A)| 275414 1DI%AR
Unsegured
b} Laans sepavable an demands Fram hanks (refer note & and b below

i) By’ credit 342114 1.830.87

Total 20050 75 133506
Netes:

) The rate of imteresi banks from 6.50 % p.a. 10 10.85% pa. (March 31, 2022: 238 % pa o 12004 pa)

b) Cash eredit facilities, Werking Capital Demand Logn and Export Pecking Credh of INR 22,904,98 Lacs {31 March 2022; AR, 18,933.01 lacs) is secured by way af Brst pari-passu charge on the all tha
current nssers of the piping vl and power unit of the Holding Compeny and sl the curvent assets e, present znd fulure siock of rave tarerial, work in progress, finished goads, store & spares, book debis
ete. of respective whally swned subsidiary namely Malwa Powst Private Limited, DEE Fnbricom India Private Limited und DEE Piping System (Thoiland) Co. Ltd. The Loan is furtber secured by corparate

af the halding company and L4 of Promotes - Direciors.

¢}  Funher, Cash credit and WCDL are s;sured by imevocable and uncanditional, foint and several p | fthe p and cor B of DDE Piping Comy Private Limited.
d Detail of Quarterly statement/ refims of current assets filed by the Company with banks and reconciliation with 1 Books of accounts
1 ATwreh 2023
Quarter ending Name of the Bank A t 23 per books|A mrepocted in]  Amoont ol Rexson for material
(EY] ke quarterly dilference discrepanciey
; 1] (A-B)
fvearory
fune-2002 Bank af [ndia 1993050 19.181.19 75332 Varianee is oo acooun of iming
Seplember-2022 19.950. |9 12,651 .69 1,298 50 difference n reporting ke the
December-2022 2193035 23,036.50 §91.85 banks and rowing book closure
Margh-2023* 29,259.70 24.438.29 (198.59) process of the Compony
]
Tinde Receivable
Junea2022 11,140.88 1101689 2008
Sepember-2022 1323707 12,784.67 451 40
|Dreeember-2022 12,643,327 12,694.35 (31.03)
March-2023*% 13.679.56 13.111.04 S566.50
*The Sistement submitted for quarier ended NMarch 2023 is based on amount 25 on Mareh 29, 2023 in dnce with imefine Bar submission with Bank. H ampunt in cedumn B is based an
statement &5 on March 29, 2013 adjusied up to March 31, 2023.
31 March 2022
Quarter ending Name of the Baok | Amount ox per books|Amuunt a5 repasvedin]  Amountof Reasen for material
A the quarierly dilferemee discrepancies
reluTstatement (B) (A-B)
Inventery
June2021 Bank of tndia 17.009.00 16.895.00 11400 Varianee is on scoount of timing
Septombar-202| 18,7¢0.00 19,083.00 {173.00), difference in reporting w the
| December-2021 18.924.00 12,322.00 137.00 banks and routing boek closure
Mareh-2022* 2108100 20,952.00 129.00 process of the Comparny
Trade Receivable
June-2021 15,509 00 16.455.00 {956.00
Sepiember-2021 11,965.00 1 1,889.00 T6.00
Di ber-H02 11,239.00 1L 14600 93.00
March-2022" 12,767.00 12.767.00 -

* The Statemem subeiitted for quarter coded Manch 2023 is based gn amou as on Mareh 29, 2023 in accordance with Emeling for submission with Bank. However omaoim in ¢xlumn B is based on
statement a5 on March 2% 2022 adfusted op 10 March 31, 2022

Breakup of Financial libilhies cavrded ot amortised sos1

Nov-gurment portlon Current mainrites

Particalars Asat Asat As at Aral

3| March 2023 3] March 2033 3| Mayeh 2023 31 March 2022
Na-eument borrowings (Refer nota 10{A)) 6,189 4,682.15 - -
Lease liabilirtes (refer note 1143 &8).48 404,17 BT st
Curment bacrawings (refer note 10(B}) - - - 29.080.26 231.253.76
Trode payable (refer note 16) - - 13.207.3T 10.362.98
Qther financial lizbilivies (refer note 11) - - 545, 412

1583 41250
Total 105558 508533 43,165.63 35738.34




DEE Develapment Engineers Limited

Notes to the ¢ lidated for the year snded 31 March 7013
[A im IN.
11 nker Rnancial labilities
Curient
i Asat Aval
Fanicutars 31 March 2023 31 Margh 2022

Financial Habilities ot fr vatoe sthrough profit or loxs:

Foreign exchanpe foreard comracts 17041 -
Finanekal Jinbilities carvied at amorilsed cost:
Creditors for capital goods 35501 2i5.52
Interest zcerued and nat dus on bomowingg 12120 LA
Qthers payable** 12062 150,83
Tota) other Ninancial liabiliies 1624 AR50
Foreigm exchinge forward controcty
While the Group enrered into other foreign exch forward with thie of reducing the foreign exchan g risk of { sles and purch thees other contracts are net designated in hedis
relationships and are measured a1 Bair value @wough profil ar kess.
" lighility for customar elaim "
ttA Lense Lisbilies
Noncnreenl Current
Pasticuk Asat Azal Asat Asnt
it 1 b1k} 3 3 March 2082
Lesco Linbilides {refer nore 39) BE1.48 404.17 2357 99.00
Tota] lease linbillizs 58].68 1T 231,97 4900
12 Provision
Net emplovee defined benefin Bah(tithe
Nen-rurrent Cu
Particslare Az Asal Azal Asal
3l Tareh 20 M March 2033 Fa
Provisions for zragwicy frefer note 10] 8.99 824 T6.43 10133
Provision for compensated absences LE: 542 17187 0238
Talal employee defined beoefi Fabilities Iy T L3556 248,30 1942
13 Linbilities for current tas fnet)
Current
Particul As at Asae
ars 3 M {114 3. March X022
Prowsion ¥or current tax (el of sdvance tax md TDS receivabie) .06 L]
Tanal inbilities Far current G [oet] 20606 —td
14 Other linbilities
Non-rurrent Citrrent
Particul Asat Az Azl As sl
At 31 March 3023 A Mareh 2023 A March 2023 31 March 2022
Siatutory dues - - 21058 21229
Diefermed revenue 209.09 9592 - -
Contract liabilities - Adwance recaived from customers {refer note 17) B - 91257 940,58
Tatal othier liabilitlcs 200.00 959) Lz3as 115287
15 Incomeian
A1 The major components of incame tax expense for the period ended 3§ March 2023 and vear ended 30 March 2022 are:
Stavement of prafil and boss:
Particulars Asat Asal

AMMarchdzd . = 3 Monhdorr

a1 [ntomse 1ax expense reparted in Bz profit or loss section

Curren| lncone mxt
- Currgnd income tax charee
= Adfustmenis of tax relaied 10 earlier vears

Deferred 1ax:
+ Relafing to oncination and reverssl of temposary differences

Income (a3 exnense reporied in s profil or loss setlian

b1 Other rompreheasive income seetlon
Deferved tax eelated to iems recoenised in OCI durlng in the vear:
Re-measurement gainf{loss) on defined benefit nlans

Tncnme inx charzed to sther comprebsnsive income seclign

35251 705
341 {19.24)
.12y 13795
J39.98% 09.73

{3l.75% 324
2175 336




DBEE Qevelopment Englueers Limited

MNates ta the [ianneial for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023
{Amonne In INR Lags)
(B} Recorciliation of tax and the ine, profil multiplied by belding companys rate for 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
Particulars Axat Asar
41 March 2023 21 Mareh 2023
Aceounting profit hefare tax 203720 132641
M India’s stmnory incame rx rate of 23, 168%5 (31 March 2022: 25 168%) 51272 334.59
Tax effect of anwounts which ave not deduetible {taxable) in calculaling taxable incoines
Adiustments of tax refated to earlier vears (341 (20.84)
Tax inpagt of ¢xpenses pot dedictible under Income-tax Act 1961 18.63 20.62
Impact on account of wtilisation of carny forward/ourment vear Insses 9.7 363,10
Imnaet on aecount of difference in tax mie [28.:29) {69.28)
Oihiers {51.43) {105.45)
Income tax expense J35.98 509.73
Ineame tax din the of profivand lass 13558 $09.73
(C) Deferred inx
The balance comunises temuorary differences atmiburable wo:
Movement in defered tax balances
A at March 31,2023
Asar Recognlsed  Recognized in OCT Asal
Partbeutars 31 March 2022 in statement 31 March 2023
of profit and
Inga
(i) Deferred tna nssets
Unabsorbed busingss losses. dereciation and tisati 390.68 6226 452.94
Provisian (9r ¢maloves benelits 1.565 0551 17 0.30
Delerver sax aseds (A) 132,24 6L .71 453.24
Property. plant and equigmient and other intangible assats » deprexialion, bmpairment and unortis wion {14421y 10.70 {L33.5])
Deferved fax liabilithes (B) i144.21% 10,70 - {133,515
Deforved tas agsen (net) MC)=(A-B) 24803 T2d1 (0.1} a19.73
fia) Delerved tax liabilities
Unshsorbed busi losses. o tation and amortisation 4510 45.10% - -
Provision for employee bensfine 47,00 (11.65% 22.45 5T.ED
Expenditure allowed for 1ax pueposes on pavment basis 090 (0.50% - -
Deferred tax assent |DY 93.00 (57.65) 1245 57,80
Preperty, plint and equipment and other intaneibla assets - d ron, and 58t {2.438.73) 1237 - (2.426.36)
Others {1453 3742 - 4289
Deferred tax Rabilitiea (E) [2.453.26) 59,79 - 12.383.4%)
Subtoral [F)=(D- E] (2,360.26) 12,13 2245 {2,33567)
Minimum Aterwate tox coedit endileniene {G) 330.53 24.58 - assll
Net Defenved tan libailiey - tH 1 = (F+G1 {2.023.70) 6.0 22345 (1.970.56)
Net deferved tax asetsRliabilities) - | C+I {1.781.70) 102,11 1175 11.680.831
Az at Mavch 31, 2022 As al Recogndsed Recognized in OCI As nl
M March 2021 in seatement 31 March 2022
af prefit and
Inss
1 Deferred tax assels
Unzbzorbed b Tosses, o iation and amoctisation 19 {3B3.01) - 30068
Provision for emploves benchits 200 (D44} - .36
Deferved tax assets [A) TI5.68 (38345 - .24
Fropanv. lan and enuinment and other intanible assets - depreciafion, impairment and amortisation {568.65) 424.44 - {142.21}
Deferved rax linbitiies (B) 568.65) A.44 - (144211
Deferved taa assets dnet) (Ch=(A-B ) 207.04 30,00 - 24503
{ii) Deferred tax Nabilities
Unahsorbed business lnsses, depregiation and amorfisat . FLET . 45.10
Provision for emolovee benefis 36.83 {6.59) (3.24} 47,00
Others (1757 [24.61 - 0,50
Delerred 1ax assels (D} 111898 2502 (2.24) 93.00
Praperty, plast and equip ard other i il nssels - o aation, i i und iS04 {2,168.76) {269.97} - A8
DOthers [26.75] 12,72 - {1453
Deflerred tnx liabilisies (E ¥ (2,195.5]1 (252.75) - {2453.26}
Subtatal iF)={D+E} 231431 (42 6Jp 13.24) [F3
Miinanm alternate tax credit enliBemeni (G) 19095 139,58 - 330,53
Net Deferved paa libailice - (JE] = [F+ G (2123444 96.9% 13.24) {2.029.73)
Net deferred tun asselsfiliabililies) - C+H ) 1.9 1640) 132.95 3.240 (LISL70)




DEE Development Eoglneers Limitad
Motes ta th d 6 ial

for the year ended 31 Alarch 2021

{Amountin INR ).nes)

Indian wholly owned subsidiaries has secumulated tax losses of INR 48294 lzcs (31 March 2022: INR 421.87 lacs
which the lastes angse. Funher, there is unabsoched depreciahon of INR 1 J89.97 lacs
will expire duriny assessment year 30282010 2030-3| Bassd on fture Iaeablc prof

abowe is fully recoverabls

tdin whelly pwned subsidiary hus paid finimam Altemate Tox (MAT) of INR 355,11 ks {3t March

the is

under Income Tas Act, 1961 oF the companies. Majority of these MAT Credit will expire during AY 2033-34 o 2038-39.

) that are svailable for offsztting for eight years against furure tauable profits of the companies in
{31 March 2022 INR. 101232 fees) which can be el off with the future laxabla prafin . Majority of these accomulated losses
i it of utilising these losses sgains future txable profits and defemed e 2sse1s rocopnired o

2002 of INF. 330.53 facs) that 250 avaitable for offsetting For fifteen years #gginst future tzable profits

Trade Pavably
Current
A Asal
Panfeutars 30 Murch 2033 1 Bharch 2022
Trade Payables
-Tatal ding dues of micro enterg and small omerprises § 434.12 44985
~Tote! cutstanding duss of creditars ather than micra ises and small Gl 12,1145 29112
Tatal trade payables 1130757 1036298
Tradle Fayable Apelng Scheduls
Ominanding for follawing peripds lrom doe datg of payment
As ot 31 March 2023 Nat Doe Less than I year 1-2 yeary 23 years Move than 3 Tatal
T ding dues of mi i
ota) ommn' ing dues of miero cntemprises and . 43402 . . _ 43412
small emerprises
Tosal eutstanding dues of ereditors othor than 146,26 12.453.28 13855 82 663 12,773.45
micro and smal)
Disputed dwes of micoo enterpeisas and amall . . : . . ;
onterprises .
Dispuled dues of cvediinrs aiher tham misma .
525 and small i : b i ) )
TOTAL 146,76 1288740 15855 23 6.63 13207.57
Qutslamding for fellowing periods from due dnte of payment
Ara1 21 March 1032 Noi due Less 1han | year -2 years 2-3 years Mn:::l:n ] Total
Totsl outstandinng dues of mico eaterprises mnd
small enterprises - 985 ) - ) 4inbe
Totad oummtlling dumnrr.mdlm_mhcrl}m 162.30 970101 268 563 _ 991312
TG and small
Disputed dues of miero enteeprises and smal| B . . R R R
erleTDrises
Disputed duss of ereditors other than micr . ; . : . .
ises and small i
JTOTAL 16290 10,150.47 4268 5.63 L] 10,363,968,
Terms and ittions af the nhove [ inl linbitiesz
- Temde payables are non-inrerest beaxing and ane soemally seniled on® o 75-day 1erms
= For terms and conditions relating ro related party payables, refer to note 31
- For explanatiors on the Group®s credit risk managemen! proeesses, refer to note 36
Partleulors Aso Asal
— i haerh02), 0 MAlwhdez
* Ineludes Mollowing
Acteptances 3,508.16 109079
For payahls 10 related pertics {refer pate 3 1(C)) 185 24 5103
# Detaits o dives o miero ond small entorprises s dofined under the MSMED Act, 2006
Particulary Far the year ended For the year ended
March31,2023 Mayh¥ion
The prmcipal amava and the mterest due therson rem sinimy wopaid to ay supplier zs 91 the end of each aceoumiing year 43412 449.86
Principal sowount due to micro prises and small i 434.12 44236
Inizrest due on sbove . .
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of seciion |8 af'the MSMED At 2006 along with the smounts of the - -
sayment made to the supplice bevond the appointed day during each accouning year
The amoumi ol interest due and payable for the pesiod of delay in making payment (which have been paid bu! beyond the - . -
appeimed day dusing the year) but withoul adding the interest specified under te MSMED Acl 2006
The: traoum of inferest accrusd and remaining wnpaid &t the end of each asenmating year - -
The emourt of further intercal remaining duc and payable even o e soeeeeding years, unlil such daig when the inlersst duoes - -

Bt

undes section

25 aberve are netally paid wo the 2mall
23 of the MSMED At 2006

For the purp

23 a deduclibke expendi




DEE Development Engineers Limited
Notes to the conselidated Gnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Total revenue fram contracts with customers

Timing of revenue recagnition

(Ampunt in INR Lacs)
17 Revenue from contracts with customers
. Year ended Year ended

Farticulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Sale of preducts:

Sale of finished goods fincludes Job wark) 28,361,865 28,063.64

Sale ol iraded goods 467.37 166.07
Sale of electricity 737592 1.815.37
Sale of service:

Job waork 22,298.66 9,105,071

Erection and Design services 193,90 158.57
Other Operating Income;

Saole of Serap g12.1] T15.07

Export Incentive 39.70 47.26
Total revenue from contracts with eustamers 59,549,852 46,091.58
Within India 32,690.37 29.276.76
Outside India 26,859.15 16,814,82

59,549.52 46,091.58

Revenue recopmition over a period of time 193.90 158,57
Revenue recomition at a point of time 59,355.62 43933 .01
Total revenue from contracts with custemers 50,549,52 36,091.55
Contract Balances
Year ended Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Teade receivables from contracts under Ind AS 115 (refer note 5(A)) 17.2718.25 15.343.44
Contract liabflities

Advance from cusiomers (refer note 14) 91257 940.58

Coatract liabilities include amaunt received from customers as per the terms of sales order to deliver goods. Cmes the goods are completed and contral is transferved to

cuslomers the same is adjusted acoordingly,

Signifieant changes in the contract assets and the contract labilities balances during the year/period are as follows

Particulars

Movement of contract liability

Yeor ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

Amounts included fn coniract liabililies at the beginning of the vear 240,58 1,113.73
Performance obligations satisfied during the year (540.58) {1.113LTY
Amount teceived/ adiusted against contract liability during the year 212.57 040.58
Amounts ineluded in contract liabilities at the end of the year 212,57 040,58
Recaneiling the amount of revenue recognfsed in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Year ended Year ended
Pastieulars 31 March 2023 3t March 2022
Revenue a3 per contrasted price 59,549.52 46.091.58
Adjustments
Sales return . .
Disgount . -
Revenue fram contract with custemers 59,549,52 46,091,538

Performance obligation

Information about the group performance obligations for material contracts are summarised helow:

The porformance abligation of the Group in case of sale of Products is satisiied once the poods are transported as per tesms of ender and contral is transferred 1o the
Susiomers.

The custemer makes the payment for confracted price as per tenns stipulated under customers purchase crder.
Information about the group perfarmance obligations for electricity supply contract are summarised belows

The perfonmance obligation of the group in case of sale of elecicicily is based on supply of electeicity through installed meters. Revenue from salgs of electricity is
accounted for on the besis-of billing to costomers based on billing cyzles followed by the Group.

The customer makes 1he payment for electricity supplied during the billing cycle at contracted price as per terms stipulated under agreement.

There is no remaining performance obligation as on year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,




DEE Development Enpineers Limited
[MNates to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

8

4

H|

{Amouat in INR Lacs]
Other income
Particulars
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2013

31 March 2022

Inierest income

= from Bank 153.12 13481
Gain on foreign exchange (et} 471.02 -
Profit in sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 197.97 -
Renl income: 146.19 111,17
Liabilities no longer required writien back® 362.06 -
Amortization of deferred revenug 215.03 490,12
Insurance claim received 383 6.13
Miscellaneous ingome 3332 250.01
Tatal other income 188245 991.34
* Daring the year, the Company has written back excess liabilities peraining 1o one of its customer pursuant 1o seitlement agreement reached witl the customer.
Cost of riw materials consumed

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Invemary ai the beginning of the year 14,474.29 12,042.10
Add: Purchase during the year 22.956.25 21,921.92
37,430.54 33,964.02
Leess: [nvantary at the end of the year 14,820.55 14,474,290
Cost of raw materials eonsumed 22,609.99 1948973
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and worlt in progress
" Year ended Year ended
Particulars 3t March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening stock
- Work-in-projress 5,015.98 3,739.38
= Finished poods 1,959.39 882.86
- Traded goods 52.72 24.86
Less: Clesing stock
« Work-in-progress 2,314.46 501598
= Finished goods 1,598.77 1,999.39
- Traded goods 31.60 52.72
Total change in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and work in progress [3.876,74) [2,420.9%
Employee henefit expenses
. Year ended Yearended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 10,463,809 7.443.86
Contribution to provident and other funds 24318 );]2.3I
Gratuily expense {refer nate 30) 105.10 89.90
Siaff welfare expenses 282.51 183,75
Tatal employec benedlt expenses 11,094.68 1.929.83
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22 Depreelation and amortization expense
. Yrar ended Year eoded
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation on tangible assets (refer note 3) 3,524.35 3431714
Amartisation of intangible assets (refer note 3(a)) 90,02 65.61
Depreciation on right of use assets {refer note 39) 158.28 92.58
Total depreciation and amortizalion expense 3,792.72 3,589.93
23 Other expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Consumption of stores and spare parts 5,323.30 3,088.21
Packing matetial ¢onsumed 161678 145827
Fabrication and fob charges 5,212.51 3,620,01
Repair and maintenance:

- Buildings (64.46 113.20

= Plant and machinery 653.60 555.88

= Other 97.40 82.27
Qffice & {zeeary maintenance 8264 §5.60
Rent 230.67 13082
Equipment hire charges 556.93 21963
Rates and taxes 207.83 124.11
Insurance 25618 170.78
Power, fuel and water charges 1,572.59 1,165.6%5
Radiography & inspection B69 48 51736
Abditer's remuneration (refer note 23(a)) 38.06 377
Selling comunission & other selling expenses 590.43 225.15
Freight & forwarding {ne: of recovery} 1,165.22 612.06
Claims and deductions 265.34 68,09
Leal and professional 1,032.94 665.68
Travelling and conveyance expense 796,81 105.49
Bank charges 445.08 21584
Loss an fereign exchange (net) - 35,00
Sundry balaneces written off 140.45 0.26
Loss on salef discard of propenty, plant and equipment (net) - 13.42
Denation ‘ 0.98 372
Sevurity and servicing charges 33440 21418
Corporate social respsonsibility expenses (refer note 23{b)) 61,59 71.83
Directors' sitting fees 5.00 7.50
Miscellanacus 784.10 586.42
Total other expenses 22,514.92 14,5)8 88

23 {a) Payment to aulditors :
Year ended Yearended

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
As awditor:

= Statutory audit lee 35.13 34.75
Ls ather capacity;

- Cilier secvices {certification fecs) 1.09 1.00

- Reimbursement of expenses 1.84 1.96
Total 38.06 3T
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23 (b) Details of Corporate social respsonsibility expenditure:
Year ended Year ended
P
articulars 31 March 2023 31 Magch 2022
fa) Gross amount requined ta be spent by the Group during the year 61.66 71.63
{b) Amounl approved by the Board to be speni during the vear 61,66 7163
In Cash Yet to be paid in cish Total

(£) Amounit speat during the year coded Masch 32, 2023

{i) Censiruction/ acquisition of any asset - - -

(i) On purpose ather than (i) above 61.69 - 61.6%
{d) Ameuit spesil during the yenr ended Mareh 31, 2022

(i} Constrestion! acquisition of any assel - - -

(i) On pumpse other than (i) above 71.83 71.83

. Year ended Yeor ended

Particutars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{c) Details related to spentfunspent obligations

{i} Comtribution to charitable trust ¥ 5320 64.03
{f) Details of angoing project and other than ongoing preject
In case of 8. 135(5) (Ohher than oneoing project)
Qpening balance - .
Amomnt deposited in Specified Fund of Sch. VII within 6 months - -
Amount required to be spent during the vear 61.60 71.63
Amount spent duriog the year 61.6% 71.83
Closing Balance f0.03) 0.20)

4

5

HThe CGiroup has contributed its abligation towards CSR activities amounting to INR 53.20 laes (31 March 2022: INR 64.03 lacs) te Atul Kishan Bansal foundation
(AKB Foundation) in relation to CSR expenditure. Against the total contribution made by the Group to the charitable trust as at yerr end, [NR 46,48 facs (31 March
2022: Rs 73.36 lacs), (2021: Rs 5,50 Jacs) remains unspent and will be utilised by the trust for camying out CSR activities in subsequent years,

Finance costs

! Year cnded Year ended
Particulars 3t March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest Expense
= DA term Joans 558.83 439.30
= on working capital loans 2,149.40 1,850.40
Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 39) 85.26 48.69
Oiher Borrawing ¢os1 114,49 152.30
Exchange difference reparded as an adjustment to borrowing eost 82.18 41.93
Total 2.090.22 @.62
Components of other comprehensive income (OCI)

Year ended Year ¢nded

Particolars 31 March 2023 31 Atarch 2022
Foreign currency translation reserve
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operalions (66.56) (29.14)
Retained Earnings
Re-measurement pains/ (loss) an defined benefit plans {86.28) 13.10
Less: Tax impact of above {tems 21.75 {3.24)
Total {111.09) [19.28)
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26 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basie EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year atributable ta equity holders of the pareni by Ihe weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amaoums are calculated by dividing the profil attributable (o equity helders of the parent by the weighted average number of Equity shares oulstanding
duoring the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares thal would be issued on coaversion of all the dilutiva podential Equity shares into Equity shares.

Note :Subsequent to year end, an September 7, 2023, Company has issued 42,431,312 equity shares of Rs. 10 each as bonus shares in ratio of 4:1 to the existing equity
shargholders. This has been appraved by Board and Sharchelders on September 7, 2023. lmpaci of the same has been considered in the calculation of Basic and Diluted
EPS for (he year ended 31 March 2023 and Basic and Dilwled EPS for 31 March 2022 have been retrospectively adjusted.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS compulations:

Calculation of EPS after giving effect of boyuy issve:

Particalars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Prafit atinibutable to equity halders of the parent company (A) 1,297.22 819,68
Weighted averape number of Equily shares far basic and dilwted EPS* (B) 5,30.39,140 53670975
Earnings per share (A/B)

- Basie earnings per share 245 1.53

- Dnlused eamines per share 245 1.53
- Face Value per share 1000 10.00

Calculation of EPS prior to issue of benus shares:

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Earnings per share (A/B)

- Basic camings per share 1223 7.2
« Diluted gamings per share 12.23 712
- Face Valus per share 10.00 10.00

* There have been no transaction mvolving equity shares or potential equity shares between ibe reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial statements.
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27 Signilicant accounting judzements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's financial staterents requires management lo make judgements, estimates and assumptions thal affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the grouping disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent labilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions end
estimates could result in oulcomes that require a material adjustment Lo the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judeements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effeet on the
amounts recogrised in the financial statements;

Classification of Jeases —

The Group enters inte leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of the leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on
an assessment of several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of leasa term, lessee’s option to purchase and estimated
cenainty of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset's economit life, proportion of present value of minimunm legse paymmenis to Rir value of
leased assed and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset,

Deetermining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination oplions (Grousp as lessee)-

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any pericds covered by an option to extend the lsase i il is
reasonably certain to be exercised, or any pericds covered by an aplion to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain nat to be exercised. The Group has
several lease contracts that include extension and terminaticn options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not
to exercise the option to renew or terminate 1he lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it fo exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not 1o exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g,, construction of significant leaschold improvements
or significant custamisation 1o the leased asset),

Estimates and asssmplions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date. that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjusiment to the camying amounts of assets and fiabilities within the next financial year, are described below, The Group based its assumptions and cstimates on
parameters available when the financial stalements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change dug
to markel changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are refiected in the assumptions when they occur,

- Impairment of non-financial usscts

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating uni1 exceeds {15 recoverabte amount, which is the higher of itg fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arma’s
length, for similar asse1s or abservable market prices less incremental costs for dispesing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The
cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet commilted to or significant
future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate wsed for the DCF
model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growih rate used for extrapolation purposes.

- Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be wilised. Significant
management judgement is required to delermine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

- Defined benefit plans (gratulty)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An acluarial veluation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future safary
increases and montality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligetion is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumplions are reviewed at each repasting date.

The parameter most subject ta change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds with term that correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation.

The mertality ratz is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables fend to change only st interval in response to demographic changes.
Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity and long lerm compensated absences obligations are given in Note 30.

= Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recarded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in-active markets, their
fair value is measured using valuation techiniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets whers passible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Chanpes in assumptions sbout these factars could affeet the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 34 lor further disclosures.

= Usefud Life of Property Plant and Equipment

The Group, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates plant and machineries of Group over estimated useful
lives of 10 10 40 years which are different from the useful life preseribed in Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013, The management believes that these
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely 1o be used,
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28 [Intercst in subsidiaries

29

The Anancial statements of the Group include group information, wherever requited, peraining to the hatding company DEE Development Engineers Limited:

Subsidiary companies
Name of the Subsidiary / Principal Activit M:lhud r.:s:nl to Place of [ncorperation and  Proportion of Cwnership Interest and Voling
3 ¢ Subsiliary £ Frineipal Aetivity aceount for Place of Operation power held by the company
investments

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Malwa Power Private Limited Alcost tndia 100,00% 100.00%
Power generation
Dee Fabric?m‘lndia f‘ri\mte Limited Al cost India 100,00% 100.00%
Heavy Fabrication Unit
Dec Piping Systems (Thaitand) Co. Ltd. At cost Thailand 100,00% 100.00%

Pre-fabrication of piping and piping packages

All the investments in the subsidiary companes are 100% and there is 16 non controlling inferest,
Interest in Jointly controlled entity

The Group had a 49% interest in DEE Fabricom LLC, a jointly controlled entity invalved in the manufacture of some of the Group’s main preduct lines in pre-
fabrication of piping in UAE. The Group's interest jn DEE Fabricam LLC is accoumed for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements till
December 21, 2021,

In the ptevious year; the Company in its Board of Directors meeting held on September 20, 2021 passed a resolution approving winding up of its jointly controlled
entity DEE fubricom LLC, Dubai and accordingly, initiated the completion of closure formalities. Accordingly, company had completed the completion formalities
and trde licence had been deregistered as per UAE, laws on March 29, 2021 Forther subsequent to deregistratien of teade Meence, VAT number had also been De-
registered and Closure certificate is issued by the Federal Tax Amherity dated 131h January, 2022 Thus, the Jjointly controlled entity stands closed and the same had
been reported by ihe Company with RBI.
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30 Gratuity
A. Defined benefit plans - general description

The Group has 2 defined gratuity benefit plan. Every employee who completes service of five years or more gets a gratuity of 15 days salary (lest drawn
salary) for each completed year of serviee, The abligation lowards gratuity is being measured using projected credit line method, The Company hes
funded iIs grawity liability.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Prafit and Loss and the funded status
and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the plan (besed on aciuarial valuatien) :

Amount recognised in Consolidated Stutement of Profit and Loss

Net employec henelil expense recognized in the employee cost:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
' 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Service cost 57.20 78.95
Net interest cost 7.90 10.95
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 105.10 89.90
Amaunt recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Net actuarial lossf(gain} recognised in the year 86.28 {13.1)
Expenses recognised in the ather comprehensive income B6.28 (13.10)
Balance sheet
Benefit asget/ (Hability)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of defined obligation at the end of the year 874.47 704.30
Less : Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year 789.05 594,73
Net present value of defined benefit obligation (85.42) {109.57)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Partleulars Year ended Year ended
' 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening defined benefit obligation 704,30 622.51
Service cost 97.20 78.95
Interest cost 50.54 4232
Benefits paid {4541 (25.50)
Actuarial (gain)/ lass on obligation 57.84 {13.95)
Closing defined benefit obligation 874.47 704.30
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Year ended Year ended
Partieutars 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Opening fair valoe of plan assots 594.73 461.56
Expected Return on plan Assets 42.64 33.80
Actuarial gaini{loss) (1837 (0.56)
Montality charges - (1.83)
Contribution by the employer 215.52 127.29
Benefits paid (43.47) {25.533)
Closing fair value of plan asscts - 789,05 594.73
The major categorics of plan asscls as a percentape of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows;
. Year ended Yearended
Particulars

31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
The scheme is funded through a trust and funds are managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India 100% 100%
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B. The principal nctuarial assumptions used in determining gratuity are as follows:
{2) Economic assumptions
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Discount rate 7.36% 7.18%
Average salary escalation rate 5% -7% 5% - 6%
Average remaining working life of the employees(years)
Attrition at ages Withdrawal rate % Withdrawal rate %
Up to 30 years 3,00 .00
From 31 10 44 years 2.00 200
Above 44 years 1.00 1.00

The estimates of fulure salary increases, considered in actuarisl valuatian, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such
as supply and demand in the employment market. The overall expected rate of retutn on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that

date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

. Demographic assu:nptigns

Assumptions

Sensitivity Level

Particulars SUMreh 2035 3t Marey 202
Retirement age 58 years 58 years
Martality fable [D{D:gulgf-l?‘;;hd 100% uf.lﬁL.)M (2012
. A quantitative senshtivity analysis for significant assumption as 11 31 March is as shown below:
Impact on defined

benefit oblipation

Discount rate:
31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Future salary:
31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Increase of 0,50%
Decrease of 0.50%
Increase of 0.50%
Decrease of 0.50%

Increase of 0,50%
Decrease of 0.50%
Increase of 0.50%
Decrease of 0.50%

{(47.48)
51.94

(37.51}
41.48

5175
{47.90)
41.76
(3849

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method thal extrapoletes the impact on defined benefit obligatian as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions accurring st the end of the reparting peried. Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact

of change due to these not disclosed.

The foliowing payments are cxpected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particalars

Between 2 and 5 years
Beyand 5 years

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Within the next |2 months (next annual reporting period) 115,82 68.10
100.33 114.5]
658.31 521.69
Total expeeted payments 874,46 70430

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting periad is 18.15 years (31 March 2022; 17.63 years)
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31 Related party transactions
(A) Names of related partles and related party relationship

Nature of relattanship Name of related partics

(i} Subsidiary Companics: Malwa Power Py, Lad.
Dee Fabricom Indiz Pyvi. Lid.
Dee Piping Systems (Thailand) Company Lid.
Alul Krishan Bansal Foundation

{ify Jointly controlled entity Bee Frbricom LLC {Clesed in FY 2022)

(iii) Key management personnel: M. Krishan Lalit Bansal (Chairman and Managing Direcior )

Mrs. Ashime Bansal (Whole Time Director)

Mrs Shikha Bansal (Whole Time Director)

Mr.Teerayut Golaka {Director in Dez Piping Systems (Thailand) Co. Lid.} (upto 08-D3-2022)
Mr. Krisanakom Triwamanathongehai {Director in Dee Piping Systems [Thailand) Co. Ltd.)
Mr. Gruray Narang (Chief Financial Officer upto 03-03-2023)
Mr. Sameer Agarwal (Chief Financial Officer w.e.F. 04-03-2023)

Mr. Ranjan Sarangi (Company sccretary)

(i¥) Relative of Key Management Personael Mrs. Shruti Aganwal (Daughter of Mr. K.L. Bansal)
Mrs, Sunita Aggarwal (Sister of Mr. K.L. Bansal)
Mrs. Ravinder Aggarwal (Spouse of Mrs, Sunita Agganval)
Mrs. Charu Agarwal (Spouse of Mr, Sameer Agarwal)

(¥) Independent Directar of holding company Mr. Ajay Kumar Marchanda
M. Satish Kumar

{B) The fallowing table provides total amount of transactions that have been entered fnto with related parties for the velevant financial year:

Name of refated parey Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(i) subsidiary company
{a) Atu] Krishan Bansal Foundation

Contribution towards Corporate social responsibility Expenditure 4220 106.33
iii) With Kev management personnel and (heir relatives:

Shori-term employee benefits

Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal Remuneraiicn 270.60 34020
Mrs. Ashima Bansal Remuneration 82.09 81.00
Mrs. Shikha Bansal Remuneration 154.31 140.68
Mrs, Shruti Aggarwal Remuneration 66.45 42.00
Mr. Teermyut Golaka Remuneration . 85.21
Mr. Krisanakom Triwattanathongchai Remuneration 92,52 75.13
Mr. Gaurav Narang Remuncration 64,10 64.00
Mr. Ranjan Sarangi Remuneration 16.24 13.99
Mr. Sameer Aparwal Remuneration 18 -
Mrs. Charu Agarwal Remuneration 222 -
Loans

Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal Loan received 1.839.45 360.00
M. Krishan Lalit Bansal Repayment of Loan [1.514.65) {360.00)
Mrs. Shikha Bansal Loan received 30535 -
Mz, Sunita Apearwal Loan rxceived 164.42 -
Mr. Ravinder Apparwal Loan received 164.42 -
Mirs. Ashima Bansal Loan received 30.00 -
Mrs. Ashima Bansal Repayment of Loan (30.00) -
Others

Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal Rent Paymeni 1.44 1.44
Mr. Ajay Kumar Marchanda Sitting fees 2.50 125

Mr. Satish Kumar Sitting fees 2.50 175
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{C) Followlng are the balances ovtstanding as at year end:
As at Asal

Rame of related party 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022

(i) With Key management personnel and their relatives:
Account payable:
Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal 35154 30.21
Mrs. Ashima Bansal 441 4,39
Mrs, Shikha Bansal 315.78 2.35
Mrs. Shruti Apganval 3.52 4.09
Mrs. Sunita Aggarwal 164.42 -
Mr, Ravinder Agparwal 164.42 -
Mr. Sameer Agarwal 6.35 -
Mrs. Charu Agarwal 183 -
Mr. Gaurav Naran - kW]
Mr. Ranian Saranei 1.33 075

Apart from sbove, Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal, Mrs. Ashima Bansal, Mrs. Shikha Bansal and Mr, Krisanakorn Triwattanathongchai have given personal
guarantees as a collaeral for securing borrewings from the banks.

In the opinion of 1iv: Board of directors, the currem assels, investments, loan and advances have the value at which they are stated in the batanoes sheet, if
realised in the ordinary course of business and provisions for all known liabilities have been adequately made in the acopunts.

(D) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

Year ended Year ended
Name of related porty 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Shor-term employee benefits 751.69 84221
Post-employment gratuity and medical benefits 13.26 8,79
Total compensation paid to key manapeinent personnel 764.95 85100

The amounts disclosed in the lable are the amounts recognised a5 an expense during the reporting period related to key menagement personnel.

(E} Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
The transactions from selated parties are made an terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are
unsecured and intezest free. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by rélated
parties {31 Macch 2022; Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the marker
in which the related party operztes.
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32 Commitments and Contingencies

A.

C.

Commitments

Capital Commitments

Asat Asat

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of 1,279.05 492 47
advances paid TNR 853 47 lacs) (31 March 2022; INR 429.47 lacs)

Contingent Eabilities

Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of;

As at Asat

Pasticulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

_ @) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt

- Demand by Income Tax Depariment * 199.91 187.61
- Demand by Excise Authonties *¥ 3935 39.35
b} Custom duty liability which may arise (f obligations for exports are not

Fulfillad® e 17.95 999.63
<) Export obligation on account of duty free impor 206.43 11,495.73

¥The Income Tax Authorities have raised demands on account of disallowances of certain expenditures pertaining to different assessment years, The group
fs contesting these demands, which are pending at various appellate levels. Based on the advice from independent tax experts and the development on the
appeals, the management is confident that additional tax so demanded with reference to these cases will not be sustained on completion of the appellate
proceedings and accordingly, pending the decision by the appellate autherities, no provision has been considered in the financial statements,

**#The Excise Authorities have raised demands on account of non payment of excise duty on certain goods, The Group is contesting these demands, which
are pending at various appellate Ievels. Based on the advice from independent experts and the development on the appeals, the management is confident
thal the demands raised by Excise Authorities is not tenable and accordingly no provision has been considered in the financial statements,

d) The group is currently involved in a legal dispute with Hyundai Merchant Marine India Private Limited (HMMIPL) relating to the import of raw
materials in earlier years. The group has raised claims of INR 12.78 million against HMMIPL and in response, HMMIPL has lodged counterclaims
amounting to INR 17,84 million. Currently in ongoing litigation, the group is confident in its legal position based on evaluations and advice, and believes
that there will be no outflow of the group economic resources and accordingly no provision hias been considered in the financial statements.

e) The group had received a show-cause notice from the Directorate of Revenue Intelligence (DRI). demanding payment of customs duty of INR 81,50
million. This demand was made due to alleged non-compliance with pre-import and physical export conditions related to raw materials imported in
previous years. The group disputed the validity and merits of this notice, and the matter was put on hold, pending resolution with the authorities. Recently,
the Supreme Court issued a judgment in the case of Cosmos Films, affirming the vatidity of the pre-import conditions. As  result, the matter concerning
has been take out from the call book of the authorities.

The managenent has evaluated the basis of demand and believes that (he Company has fulfilled the pre impon conditions and based on the expert advise
is confident that the demand raised by DRI is not tenable and accordingly no provision has been considered in the financial statements.

f) On May 19, 2023, the Enforcement Directorate issued a natice in accordance with FEMA regulations, requesting specific information related to the
group's operations and financial transactions. The group duly furnished Lhe required information to the relevant authority on September 9, 2023, ensuring
compliance with FEMA regulations.

Guarantees
The Holding Company has given corporate grarantee for Ioans taken by subsidiary companies, 1o the extent loan amount outsianding a5 on balance sheet
date, The carrying amounts of the related financial guarantee contracts were [NR 4,971.75 lacs and 5,168.49 lacs at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
respectively,
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33 Segment information

On the basis of nature of businesses, the Group has three rep:mﬂhle sepInents, as Fnllows

- The piping segment which is mainly engaged in g of pre-fabricated engineering products, pipe fittings, piping systems,
= The powsr segment, which is engaged in biomass based pnwer generation

- The Heavy Fabrication segment, which is engaged in Wind mill tower Manufacturing

No operting segments have been spgregared to fonn the above reportable eperting sepments.

The Exceutive Management Cemminee mtonitors the operating results of its business units separutely for the purpose of making decisions about resoree allogation and
performance assessment. Sop perit is evaluated based an profit or loss and is rucasurcd consistently wilh profit or loss in the consolidated fnancial statements.

Teanster prices b operating

are on an arm’s length basis in a sinilar ra ians with third parties.

A, Segment Disclosures

Year ended 31 March 2023

Power Heavy Emintation and

Partigul i

articulan Fiping division dlvision Fabrication adjustuaents Toral
Revenne
Extemal customers 52,912.33 7.403.65 1.817.88 (2,584.34) 59,549.52
Segment Revenue §2,012.33 7.403.65 1,817.93 (2,584.34) 50,549,582
Income/{Expenses)
Cost of Taw materials consumed 17,588.56 341568 11125 [2.382.24) 18,733.25
Purchases of traded goods 288.98 - - - 288.98
Employee benefit expenses 9,166.05 000 .82 35834 379.47 11,094 68
Finance costs 3.097.69 173.51 342,99 {628.97) 2,990.22
Deprecistion and izat pe 3.014.5% 31631 A441.62 - 171112
Other expenses 19,633,76 1,680.46 1,236,12 (35.41) 22,51493
Orher incame . {2,230.68) {11.99) {180.75) 097 (1,832.45)
Toual 50,458.08 6,569,599 2,300,57 [1,826.19) £7,511.32
MNet Segment profil before tax 1,453.38 833,66 {491.69) (758.158) 2,037,140
Other luformation
Segment nssers 83,318.63 3.914.76 3.661.5%6 T20.64 96,625.89
Segment lialilittes 43,618,558 3,840.20 4444.1% 2,348.71 £4,261.61
Qther disclosures
Caplral Expenditure 6,238.32 438.34 183.86 - 6,860.52
Year ended 3[ March 2023
Particulars Piping division Fower Neavy Eminiation and Toml

e division Fabrication - adjustments

Revenue
Bxterna] customers 37.069.63 T.857.94 2.238.36 (1,074.15) 46.091,58
Segment Revenue 3706943 T857.94 223836 {1,074.35) +46,091.58
Eapenscs )
Cost of caw inaterials consumed 14,517.96 3.15823 21442 (821.87 17,068.74
Purchases of maded poods 113.52 - - - 113.52
Employee benefil expenses 6,127.37 385.93 37644 540,08 7.925.82
Finance costs 241827 156.22 403,36 (444.23) 2,533.62
Depreciation and antortization expense 2,900,27 264.32 42534 - 3.589.93
Other expenses 11,803.63 1,386.67 1,201.90 {7332) 14,518.88
Other income (1,414.64) (1973) {6.70) 448.73 (992.34)
Tatal 36,4663 6,031.64 21475 (350.61) 44,762.17
Net Segment profit before 1ax 603,24 1,826,531 (37647 (723.74) 1,329.41
Other Information
Segment assers 72,015.71 7.B66.59 &,048.74 611,46 B4.539.80
Segment liabilirles 33,906.95 1,803,368 448336 2,147.98 43,341.658

Other disclosures
Capital Expenditure 2,137.01 0332 37345 - 141379
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B. Reconciliations o veflected In the N ial stab 3
a. Reconciliation of profit
Partlenlars For the year ended Far the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Sezmeat Profit 2,795.35 2,083.1%
Salaries, wapes and bonus {37247 (540.08)
Umallocsble other expenses {179.68) {183.68)
Profit before tax 2,036.20 1,329.41

b. Reconciliatian gf assets

Particulars As nt 31 Morch 2022 As at M March 2022
Segment operating nssels 95,905,215 8302834
Mom current investments 1.09 | W]
Income tax recoverable 128.73 91.25
Defiared tax assels A19.73 43.03
Goodwill 27118 27118
Toual assers 96,625.89 84,539,480

¢. Regonciliagion of liabilifies

Particulars As at 3 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Segment eperating lizbilittes 51,912.90 41,193.67
Deferred tas Habilities (net) 1.970.56 2.029.33
Proviston for income tax {net) 206.06 4070
Trade payabls 8209 7755
Tuotal linbilities 54,261.41 43.341.65
Geographic infermatian

2)  Revenve from extemnal customers
. Far the year ended For the year ended

Particulars
bl 31 March 2023 31 Moreh 2022
id % lram wilh
India 32,650.37 19,276.76
Dutside India 26,859.15 1681482
Tatal revénue o3 per consalidated seatement af profit ar loss 59,549.52 46,091.58
The revenus information above is based on the localions of the customers.

B)  Mon-curvent opevaling assets:

Particutars As ot March 3], 2023 Asx ot Maceh 31, 2022
In India 30,138.92 27,263.80
Outside India 7.991.67 8,321.53
Total 38,130.59 35,585 33

¢) List of major customer whose revenue more than 10% of 1ozl entity revenue -

Parficulars For the year cnded For the year ended

31 Barch 2023 31 March 2022

JGC Flugr BC LMG joimly cantratled entity (FIY) 8,221,065 165746
% of Revenue 13.81% 3.60%
Punjab State Electricity Hoard 7375.92 7,818.37
% of Revenue 12.39% 16,96%
Larsen 8 Turbo Limiled §,180.80 4,600.10
% of Revenue 10.38% 9.98%
General Electric 4,735.10 4,779.04
%% of Revemue T.95% 10.37%
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M Fairvaloes

Set out befow, is a comparison by class of the camrying amounts and fais value of the Group®s Binancial instrumenrs, with carrying that are ble approximaticns of Fair
valees:
Carrying value Fair value
As at As at As at Asat
Particutars 31 March 2023 31 March 2032 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

{A; Financial assets

Nan-curvent
Tavestanent 1.00 1.00 i.00 Lot
Security deposiis 182,71 164.35 18271 164.35
Bank deposits with original maturity beyond 12 months 555,77 76293 1 b T162.93
Current
Trade receivables® 1721225 15,343.44 17.278.25 1534344
Cash and cash equivalents® 181.84 33.85 181.84 3385
Other bank balances* 3.097.57 2.493.31 3.097.57 249331
Security daposits* 3778 [0.92 s 10.92
[nrerest receivable? 12.29 1.01 1229 £.01
Foreign exchange forward comracts® - 51.72 - nn
Recoverable from Customer® 755,45 - 75945 - -
Total financial assets 22,106.66 15,568.53 22,106.66 18,868.51
(B Financial liahilities
Nan-current
Bormowings 6,181.91 4,682,135 6.181.91 4,682,135
Lease liahilities §3L.68 404.17 881.68 404,17
Current
Borrowings* 29,080.26 23,853.76 29,080,26 23.853,76
Trade payables* 13.207.57 10,362.98 13,207.57 16,362.98
Lease liahilities 23197 05.00 231.97 ea0
Orher financial liabilities* 645.83 412.56 645,83 412.50
Foceign exchange fonvard . 17041 - 170,41 -
Total financial liabilities £0,399.64 39.514.56 50,399.64 39,814.56
Note:-
* The management assessed that fair value of trade receivables, cash and eash equivalents, security deposiis, able from customers, other shact-lonm financial assets, short-

term bomrowings, trade payables and other shart-term financinl linhilities approximate their camrying smounts largely due to the short-tenm matusities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial asscts and labilities is included a1 the emount at which the instrument could be exchanged fn o cusrent ransaction between willing parties, other than
in & forced or liquidation sale.

The fallowing methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fir values:
a. Term deposits- The fair value af12mm deposits is equal 10 canrying value since they are carrying market inlerest rates &5 per the banks.
b. Fareign excl forward Foreiygn exchange forward caniracrs are valued wsing valuati hniques, which employs the use of market observable inputs. The maost

frequently applied val igues include ferward pricing

¢. Non-current bomawings - The fair value of non-cirment bomewings is estimated by discounting fiture cash flows wsing rates curenily available for debt on similar terms, credit
rish and remaining matarities. The carrying value and fair value o 1he borrowings has been idered the same since the existing interest rate approximates its fair valua.

d. Others- For acher financial assets and liabilitics that are measured al fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.
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35 Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instouments that are
{a) recognised and measured at fair value and
{b) mensared at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financin] stalements.

To provide an indication abow the reliability of the inputs wsed in determining fair value, the Group has classified ils financial instrments into the three levels prescrited
under the accounding standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

All assets and liabilities for which fair valiue is measured or disclosed in the financinl statzments are categorised within the fair value higrarchy, described as follows, based
on e lowest level input thal is significant 1o the Fir value measurement as a whole:

Level | — Queted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value mensurement is directly o indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpet that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

The following 1able provides the Fair value measurement hiecarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities.
A. Duantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilitics as 2131 March 2023

Fafr value measurement using

Quoted prices In active Significant observable Significant unobservable

Barticulars Total markets inpuls inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)

Financial assets menasured at antortised cost
Security deposits 182.7) - - 182.71
Bank depasits with ariginal maturity beyond 12 months 555.77 - - 355.77
Financizl liabilities measured at amortised cost
Non-cucrent borrowings 6.181.91 - - £,181.9]
Non current lease linbilities 881.68 - - 881.68
Financial liabilitics measured af fair value throush prafit or loss:
Foretpn exchanpge forward contraen 170,41 - 170.41 ] -

There have been no transfers between Level [ and Level 2 during the vear.
B. Quantitative disclosures falr value measurement hierarehy for nssets and liabilities as at 31 March 2022;

Fair value measurcment using

Quoted prices in aclive Significant observable Stgnificant unobservable

Particalars Total markets inputa inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Security deposils 164.35 - - 164.35
Term deposit accounts with malturity beyond 12 months 762.93 - - 762.93
Financial liabilities measored at amortised cost
Non-cument borrowings 4,682.15 - - 468215
Non current Jease liahilities 404.17 - - 40417
Financial gssets measured at Fair value through profit or loss:
Foreign excianie fonvard contract 5772 - 5772 -

There have been no ransfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.
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36 Financinl risk manarement obiectives and palicies

The Group’s principal financial lisbilities comprise borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose of (hese financial liabilities is to
finance the Group's operations. The Group's principal financinl assets include security deposits given, loans to related party, employee pdvances, irade
and other reecivables, cash and cash equivalents end other assets,

The Geoup is exposed to market visk, credit risk and liquidity risk, The Group’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. All
derivative activities For risk management purposes are earried out by specialist leams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. I is
the Group’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors revisws and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Market risk

Market risk is the rigk that the fair value of fure cash flows of a financinl instrument will fuctuate because of changes in market prices. Market rigk
comprises three types of risk: interest mte risk and currency risk, Financial insttuments affected by markel tisk include barrowings and foreign
exchange forwand contracts.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net dekb, the eatio of Aoating to fixed interest rates of the debi and the
proportion of financial instruments in foraign currencies are all constant in place at 31 March 2023, ’

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations and
provisions,

The following assumpiion have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity af the relevant profit or 1oss ftem is the effect of 1l assumed chanpes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets
and finzacial lizbilities keld at 31 March 2023 and 21 March 2022

Interest rate risk

Intercst rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interesi rates.
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market inlerest vates relntes primarily 1o the Group's long-term debi obligations with flcating interest
ates,

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because Group homrows funds ot both Moating interest rates. These exposures are reviewsd by appropriate
levels of management, The Group regularly monitors the market mte of interest to mitigate the risk sxpasure. The Fallowing table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasanably possible change in interest rates on that portion of borrewings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Group’s
prodit before tax is affected through the impact on Noating rate borrowings, as follows:

In¢rease/ Effect on prafit
As at 31 March 2023 decrease in hefore tax
(i) INR loans +0.50% 114.59
-0.50% {114.39)
As at 31 March 2022
(i) INR. loans +0.50% 94.93)
-0.50% 94,93

The assumed mavement in intenest rates for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently abservahle market environment, showing a
significantly higher volatility than in prior years

Forcign curvency risk

Foteign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or Future cash flows of an exposure will Nueiuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group's exposure ta the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily 1o the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is
denaminated in a foreign currency).

The Group manayes its Fareign currency risk by purchasing foreign currency forward contracts dral are expacted 10 ogcur within a maximum 12-month
period of forecnsted sales and purchases. The following tables demonstrate the unhedged foreign currency exposure and sensitivily to a rensonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, The impact on the Group’s profit befors tax is due 1o changes in the
fair value of monetary assets and lizbilities are as follows:

Particulars Currency 31 March 2023 Impact oo profit
befare tax
Foreign Indian 5% 5%
Currengy Rupges Inerease Decrense

Trade payables usD 954 784,14 (39.2) 2521

EURO 0.04 392 (0.20) 0.20

CHF 0,08 6.78 (0.34), 0.34
Loan to Subsidiary usp 86.85 714059 357.05 (357.05)
Buyers credit from banks EURC 1.59 142.11 (7.11) nn

usp 35.23 2,806,73 (144.84) 144.84
Trade receivables usp 3132 4,219.27 210,96 (210.96)
Imerest Receivable UsD 16.435 1.352.48 67.62 {67.62)
Balance with Banks Uso 0.0003 0.02 0.0010 {0.00l0
Cash in hand THB 0.05 013 LXH] 00N

UsD 0,004 0335 0.02 {0.02)

YEM a.19 D12 0.0 (0.01y

GBP 0.002 0.20 0.01 {0.01)
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Particulars Currency 31 March 2021 Impact on profit
before tax
Foreign [ndian 5% %
Currency Rupers Increase Decrease
Trade payables ' uUsD 266 196.90 (9.85) 9.8
CHF ol 925 (0.46) 0.46
Buyers credil from banks usD 2041 1,547.2% (77.36) 77.36
Trade receivables ELIRO 0.27 2243 1.12 1.12)
Interest receivable usD 10,37 785.81 39.29 [39.29)
Cash in hand usp i X1)] 0.76 0.04 {0.04)
Credit risk

Credit risk js the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligatiens under a financizl instrument or cusiamer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities including trade receivables, deposils with banks and financial institytions, foreign exchange
trasactivns and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables do ot have any significant potential credit risk for the Group as the business of the Group is majorly cash based, An impairment
analysis is performed by the management ai each reporting date on individual basis for major clients.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Group's. treasury department in accordance wilh the Group’s policy. Investments of surplus
funds arc made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned 1o each counlerparty, Covnterparty credit limits are reviewed by
the Grovp®s Board of Directors on an annwal basis, and may be vpdated throughout the year, The limits are 5¢t to minimise 1he corcenitation of risks
and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s patential failure to make payments,

The Group’s maximum exposure to eredit 1isk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2023 is the camying amoutils
as stated in Note 3(A).

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when 2 number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or have scanomic featutes thal would cause their
abilily to mect contractual obligations to be similasly affected by changes in economic or olher condilions. Concentmtions indicate the relative
sensitivity of the company”s perfarmance (o developments affecting a particular industry, In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, (he
Company’s policies and pracedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of & diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of
credil risks are controlied and managed accordingly.

Ligquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of Funding and flexibility through 1he use of cash credits and bank loans,
Approdimately 27 3% of the Group’s long tecm debt will malure in less than one year at 3! March 2023 (31 March 2022; 40%) based cn the carrying
value of borrowings reflected in the financial statements, The Group assessed the concentration of risk with respect (o refinancing its debt and
concluded it to be low. The Group has access (o a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with
existing lenders,

The table below summarises the maturity profite of the Group®s financial liabifities based o contractual undiscounted payments.

<12 muonths 1 to % years > 5 years Tatal
INR lacs [NR lacs INR Jacs INR lacs

As at 31 March 2023
Mon-current bormowings - 6,915.41 - 6915.41
Current borrowings 29.667.67 - - 29,667.67
Trade payables 13.207.57 - . 13.207.57
Lense linbiliies 274,10 800.51 42893 1.503.54
Other financial lisbilities 645.83 - - 645.83
Fareign exchange farward contract 170.41 - - 17041

43g G§ S8 7.715.92 42893 $hL11043
As a1 31 March 2022
Non-current borrowings - $.665.10 - 5,665.10
Current borrowings 141250 - - 2441259
Trade pavables 10,362,08 . - 10,352.98
Lease liabilities 120.96 388.81 167.36 677.13
Mier financial liabilities 412.50 - - 412.50

3530003 6,053,91 167.3 41,530.30
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37 Capital management

Far die purpose of the Group™s capital g , eapital includes issued cquiry share capital and oll other equity reserves nttributabl: 16 the shareholders of the Group,
The primary objective of the Group®s capital smanagement is o maximise the shareholder value.

The Graup manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the i of the financial To maintain ar
adjust the capiial structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, renm capital to sharcholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors capital
using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by to1al eapital plus net debt, The Group includes within net debt, inerest bearing loans and borrowings, wade and other
payables, less cash and cash cquivalents.

The Greup*s gearing ratie is as follows:

Asat Asat

Particulars 11_March 2011 31 March

Bervowings includime cusrent ities and i d 35.389.37 28.581.05

Less: Cash and cash cquivalents (131 84} (33.85)

Net debt* (A) _35.207.53 28.547.21

Tatal equity 42,364.28 41,198,15

Equity (B} 42,364,285 41,198.15

Capital and pet debt (C)={A] + (D) FASTLEL 69,745.36

Gearing ratia (A}/ {C) (%) 45399 40.93%

* Excluding lease liabilities

In order te achieve Lhis overall obiective, the Group's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial 1 hed ta the &
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital sinscture requis Breaches in iny the financial ts would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
bomowings. Theve have been no breaches in the Snancial co ts of any i bearing loans and borrowings in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, palicies er processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

This page is intendtonally lefl blank
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38, Statement of informatian regarding Group Companies:

N Share in profit/{loss) after | Share in Comprehensive Share in Total
et Assets _
tax incomef{lass) Comprehkensive income
Name of the entity in the Group Peried AsThof As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of iotal
. Amount . . consolidated Amount
consolidated . consalidated {Rsin .| [(Rsin | comprehensive N
( Rs in Lacs) Comprehensi N ( Rs in Laes)
net assels profit or loss Laecs) Lacs) income
ve Income
Parent
DEE Development Engineers Limited |31 March 2023 11195 4742551 143.27 1,858.54 0.04 (65.56) 153.75 [,792,98
31 March 2022 110.76 45,632.53 130,16 (382.79) (56.25) 10,79 155.12 (572.00)
Subsidiories
Indian
Malwa Power Private Limited 31 March 2023 531 2.247.59 16.77 217.58 0.6% (0.98} 18.58 216.60
31 March 2022 4.93 2,030.99 (58.30) 579.52 4,69 (0.94) 7.8 578.58
Dee Fabricom India Pvi. Ltd. 31 March 2023 (0.04) -17.06 (15.12) (196.16) {1.53) 2.00 (16.65) {194.15)
31 March 2022 043 177.09 (40.01) (328.04) - - 40.97 (328.04)
Foreign
DEE Fiping System (Thailand) Ce. Led. |31 March 2023 (1.69) -714.93 (43.56) {566.37) 50,80 (66.56) (54.28) (632.93)
31 March 2022 {0.14) (59.43) 64,40 (640.13) 151.56 (29.14) {83.60) (669.27)
Less: Intercompany elimination and
adjustments 31 March 2023 (15.52) (6,576.84) {1.26) {16.38) - - (1.40) (16.28)
31 March 2022 (15.98)] (6,523.03) 227 {22.59) - - 213 (22.59)
March 31, 2023 00.00 | 42,364,289 100,00 1,297.22 100,09 -13L.10 00.00 1,166,12
{hiarch 31, 2022 00.00 | 41,1985 118.52 994,03 100.00 -19.28 87.00 | .1,013.31]

This page is intentionally lefi blank
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39 Group as a lessee

) The Group's leased assets primarily consisis of lease for factory lands, plant and Machinery, compuiers and data processing equipment having lease term
of 5-10 years.

The Group recorded the teass liability at the prasent value of the remaining fease payments discounted at the incremental berrowing rate as on the date of
tansition and has measured right of use asset ot an amount equal o lease lability adjusied for previously recognised prepaid or sccrued lease payments.
Futther, lease arrangements where the Grouy is lessor, lease rentals are recognized on steaight line basis over the non-cancellable period

The Group’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's lide 1o the lensed assets. Generally, the Group is restricied from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets .

The Group alse has centain leases of machinery with lease tesms of 12 months er less and leases of office equipment with low value. The Graup applies
the “shant-term lease” and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these lsases,

it} Set-oul below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the ycar:

Factory Land  Computer and Plant and Total

data processing  Machinery

equipment
As at 01 April 2021 3602 64.22 78D 459.13
Additions 3895 - 41,71 80.66
Deletion - - 1322 13,22
Depteciation expense {refer note 22) 51,65 19.76 20,16 92.58
As at 31 March 2022 30241 44,45 87232 434.09
Additions 588.02 - 296.21 88423
Deletion 11213 - - 1212
Diepreciation expense (refer nota 22) 93.73 19.76 44.79 158,28
As at 31 March 2023 61750 24.70 338.64 1,040,834

il Sel-ow below are the camying amounts of lease liabilities (included under other Tinancial liabilities) and the movements during the period:

Factory Land  Computer and Plant and Tatal
dalz processing ~ Machinery
cquipment
As ai D1 April 2021 353.23 66,63 80.83 500.69
Additions 3746 - 41,71 ™7
Accretion of interest {refer note 24) 34.44 LN 8,54 48,69
Payments 4223 23,85 50,21 116,30
Drisposal - - 5,08 9.08
As at March 31, 2022 agz9n 48.48 71.79 303.17
Current 53.84 19.12 26.04 09,00
Non- current 3128.06 2936 45.75 404.17
Additiens 58802 - 296.21 884,23
Accration of interest (refer note 24} 62.66 3.7 13.89 85.26
Paymems 134.56 23.86 5224 210,66
Disposal 148.35 - - 148.35
As at March 31, 2023 ’ 750.67 2833 334.65 1.113.65
Current 12276 16.78 9242 231,96
Non- current 627.01 1155 242,23 381.69
bv)  The maturity analysis of contractusl undiscounted cash Mow-: -

Asal March 31,2023

Less than L vear 1to5 vears More than 5 year
Factory land 161.39 541,92 428.93
Compwier and daka processing equipment 23.86 596 -
Plant and machipery 88.85 252.63 -

. 274.10 §00.51 - 428.93

As at Mareh 31, 2022

Less than 1 vear 1 oS yvears More thap 5 year
Factory land 64.66 269.90 167.36
Computer and data processing 2quipment 23.86 4772 -
Plant and machigery 32.44 71.19

12095 3B8.8( - 167.36




DEE Development Engineers Limlted
Notes o the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amouvot in [NR Lacs)

v}

i)

The following are the amuunts recagnised in the Statement af Profit and Loss:

Depregiation expense of right-of-use assets (refer note 22

Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer nate 24)

Expense relating 1o short-term leases (inchded in other expenses) (refer note 23)
Total amount recopnised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Impact on statement of cash Hows {increasef{dccrease)):

Operating lease paymenis*

Net cash flows used in operating activities
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities
Net cash Mows used in financing activities

* Composed of difterent ling items in the indirect reconcilinticn of operating cash Nows.

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
158.28 92.58
85.26 48.69
230,67 130.82
474.21 172.09
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31,2022
210.66 116.30
21065 116.30_
125.40 67.61
85.26 4869
210,66 11630

The Code on Sociat Security, 2020 (*Code’} relating to employse benefiis during emplayment and post-employment benefiis received Presidential assent
in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gozette of India, However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not besn
notified and the final rules/ interpretation have not yet been issved. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will

record any related impact in the period the Code becames effective.




DEE Development Engineers Limited
Nates to Lhe lidaed Binnncial sint for the year ended 31 Murch 2023

{Amt in INR Lacs)

41

41

ELl}

Other statutory information;

(i) The Gronp do not have any B j Property, where eny p ling has been initiated or pending ageimst the group For holding any Benami Property under the Benami Transactions
(Pechilbition) Act, 19388 (45 of 1988) and rules made theseunder.
{ii) The Group do no have any transactions with compandes struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013

Gily The Group do-nol have any charges or satisfaction which is yet 10 be regi 1 with Registraz of C ies beyond the statutocy perigd
{iv} The Growp heve not traded or invested in Cryplo currency ar Vintual Currency during ihe financial year.

(v} The Group hive nor advanced or loaned or invested funds to any athcr person{s) or entity (es), including foreign emities (i Jiaries) with the und fing thal the i Siary
shall:
{a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person o entities idemified in any manner whatsoever by or on beha!F of the eompany (1t Beneficiaries) o

) Provide any guarantze, security, or the like ta or an behalf of the Ultimete Beneficiarics.

{vi) The Group have not received any fund from any peeson(s) or entity(iesk, incliding foreign entities (Funding Party) with the und ding {wheth fed in wriling or etherwisc) that
the yroup shall:
{2) Directly or indirectly lend or favest in other perions or entities identificd in eny manner whalsoever by or on behadf of the Fundi e panty Ll Beneficianes) or
b Provide any yoarantee. secunty or Lhe like on behall of the Uhimace Beneficinries,
(it} The Group kave nat any such transagtion which 1s not recorded in the Books of aceoanis 1hat has been dered or disclosed as dunng the year 1n the tax assessment under the
income lax Act, 1961 (Such &5, search or survey or any other relevan provisiens of the Income Tax Act, 1781
{wiii) The Group heas not been deslared 25 wilful defaulier by any bank or financial i or G or any G honity o other lender, in | with 1he guidel
on wilful defsuhers issued by the Reserve Bank of India.
(i%) The Graup has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies {Resiietion on numt of Layers) Rules, 2017 from the
date of their implementation
Follewing rezroupings/ reclresifieations have been made in the compaative inancial infernation of lidated financial , wh guined, in erder to bring theom in line with
the axcouniing policies and classification as per the lidated financial for the yzar ended March 31, 2023 pregared in } with Schedule N of Companies Act, 2043,
requirements of lnd AS 1 =P an of financial ' and other applicable Ind AS principh
Particulars Mol March 31 2021 March 31 2022 Change Nature
[reporied) {restated)
Canaolidated bafance sheet
Bank with Original maturity for mere hina 3 .
h bul r tning matarity of less than 12
Other financinl assets 8 2,562 96 59.68 249331 Reclassification
Bank balances giher than (jf) above 0| - 2.493.31 {24933 1))
Consofidaled eash Moy siarement
Buy back of equity shares
Financin: vilies [5.034.04) 5084 04 |assificati
liovesting sctivitics 503.0%) 15.004.04) Reclassifivatian
The sbove reclagsification m the previous year's (ssued numbers have been made for betier p ion n the lidated financial and to confirm ta the cumrent year's

classification/disclosure, This does not have any impact on the equity, ratio and profil and henee, no changs an the basic and diluted eaming per share of previous year,

Eveat occurred aiter the Balunce Sheet Date

Subsequent to year end, on Seprember 7, 2023, the Company has alloncd 4,24,31.312 equity shares of Rs. 10 each as bonus sharea in raiin of 41 1o the existing equity shatcholders. This has
been approved by the Board of di and Shareholders in their ing held on September 7, 2023, (also refer note &},

As per our eepon of Bven date

For . R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For gnd on behelf ol the Board of Directors of

Charrerad Accountants DEE Developmenl Enpgincers Limited

ICAI Firm Renisption Number: 201003E/E200005

per Yaday K.L. Bansal Ashimp Bansal
Paingr Chairman & Managing, Director Dimstor
Membership Na: 501753 DIl pyg. 01125021 DIN No. 0192844%

Ronion Zuraaei Sameer Aparwal
Company secretary Chyef Fimancial Qfficer
FCS-8604

Place Mew Dethi Plage Palwal

Date  September 22. 2023 Date . Seprember 22, 2023
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